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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Categories: 

Good afternoon, 

BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Wednesday, September 23, 2015 5:02 PM 
'chriswit@saber.net'; 'betsybrown@comcast.net'; 'pberlese@hbcondolaw.com'; Givner, Jon 
(CAT); Stacy, Kate (CAT); Byrne, Marlena (CAT); Malamut, John (CAT); Nuru, Mohammed 
(DPW); Sanguinetti, Jerry (DPW); Sweiss, Fuad (DPW); Storrs, Bruce (DPW); Sanchez, Scott 
(CPC); Jones, Sarah (CPC); Rodgers, AnMarie (CPC); Starr, Aaron (CPC); BOS-Supervisors; 
BOS-Legislative Aides 
Calvillo, Angela (BOS); Caldeira, Rick (BOS); Adina, Seema (DPW); BOS Legislation, (BOS); 
Carroll, John (BOS) . 
Continuance Request - Tentative Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard- September 29, 
2015 . . 

150858 

Please find linked below a memo received by the Office of the Clerk ofthe Board from the Office of Supervisor Campos, 
proposing a continuance of the Tentative Map Appeal of the proposed project at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard: 

Continuance Request Letter - September 23, 2015 

The appeal hearing for this matter is scheduled for a 3:00 p.m. special order before the Board on September 29, 2015. 

I invite you to review the entire matter on our Legislative Research Center by following the link below: 

Board of Supervisors File No. 150858 

Thank you, 

John Carroll 
Legislative Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 
San Francisco City Hall, Room 244 
San Francisco, CA 94102· 
(415)554-4445 - Direct I (415)554-5163 - Fax 
john.carroll@sfgov.org I bos.legislation@sfgov.org 

• d!l,'t!J Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying 
information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the 
Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not 
redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information-including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a 
member of the public elects to submit to the Board and Its committees-may appear an the Board of Supervisors website or In other pub/le documents that members 
of the public may inspect or copy. · 
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From: 
To: 

Chung Hagen. Sheila (BOS) 
BOS Legislation. (BOS) 

Subject: 
Date: 

Continuance Request: 40 Bernal Heights Blvd. (File Nos. 150858-150861) 
Wednesday, September 23, 2015 4:46:24 PM 

From: Chung Hagen, Sheila (BOS) 

Sent: Wednesday, September 23, 2015 4:41 PM 

To: Carroll, John (BOS) <john.carroll@sfgov.org> 

Cc: Campos, David (BOS) <david.campos@sfgov.org> 

Subject: Continuan.ce Request: 40 Bernal Heights Blvd. (File Nos. 150858-150861) 

Dear Mr. Carroll, 

Our office has been contacted by both the appellants of the 40 Bernal Heights Blvd. Tentative Map 

appeal and the project sponsors (see emails below) requesting that the Board of Supervisors 

continue the item (File Nos. 150858-150861) scheduled for Tl:les, September 29, 2015 in ordi;:r for 

Supervisor Campos to facilrtate a mediation between both parties. Thank you iri advance for 

informing the relevant City departments. 

Sheila 

Sheila Chung Hagen 

Legislative Aide 

Office of Supervisor David Campos 

415-554-5144 I sheila.chung.hagen@sfgov.org 

APPELLANTS 

From: chriswit [mailto:chriswit@saber net] 

Sent: Monday, September 21, 2015 9:38 PM 

To: Chung Hagen, She.ila (BOS) <sheila.chung.hagen@sfgov.org> 

Cc: Betsy Brown <betsybrown@comcast.net>; Deborah Barron <barrondeborah@hotmail.com>; 

melissashaw@mindspring.com; Lindy McKnight <lindymck2@yahoo.com>; 'Erin ~unningham' 
<erinmckc@yahoo.com>; mboss@rockandrose.com; kellycarlone@~mail.com; nicola griffin 

<njcolagriffin57@hotmail.com>; colin.petheram@gmajl.com; steverudm@yahoo.com; barbara 

underberg <bjunderberg@yahoo.com>; Michael Snead <mvsnead@gmail.com> 

Subject: RE: mediation, re 40 Bernal Heights subdivision 

Sheila, · 

Following up on your voicemail'today, yes the community will stipulate to the continuance of the 

Appeal, so that your office can facilitate a mediation between the parties. We thank you for this. 
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Copying some of the signatories on the appeal letter. 

Chris 

PROJECT SPONSORS 

From: Boe Hayward [mailto:Boe@gphassociates.com] 

Sent: Friday, September 18, 2015 2:00 PM 

To: Chung Hagen, Sheila (BOS) <sheila.chung.hagen@sfgov.org>; david.campos@sgov.org 

Cc: 1Patrick Harty' <wp1997@aol.com>; harty hartyprop@yahoo.com; John Kevlin 

<jkevlin@reubenlaw.com> 

Subject: Request for a continuance 

Dear Supervisor Campos and Sheila: 

I am working with Patrick and Ciaran Harty on their project located at the 900 block of Powhattan/ 40 

Bernal Hieghts Boulevard in Bernal Heights. · 

On behalf of Ciaran and Patrick, we request a continuance of the lot line appeal so that we can meet with 

your office and neighbors to discuss the project. 

We look forward to sitting down with your office. 

Sincerely, 

Boe Hayward 

Boe Hayward 

Principal 

Goodyear-Peterson-Hayward, LLC 

100 Pine Street, Suite 1525 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

Cell: (415) 533-4238 

Direct: (415) 362-6872 

Fax: (415) 276-5775 

Email: boe@gphassociates.com 

Web: www.gphassociates.com 
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etsy Brown, Chris Wittemr-· on Behalf of 14 Named Ind iduals 

Be~na~/Powhattan Neighbor~ c/ o 114 Nevada St SF 94110 -,,··., ':·r?/~/;{,l;:'.:;F-~'.,, ~': .;.· . 
. hriswit@saber.net betsybrown@come·as-t:,--;,'Dcet>~- .. '.: ::: · · 

'.:.1 :: •. i-: r :-: .... -.. ·· ~ .. 1 .:: ~./ • · 

September 3, 2015 · 
-•>,Ir"" .r~,.--··, ..-l r,1, f ~ n ... ~ 3 

Re: Appeal of Tentative Subdivision D~cision for Lot at 40 Bern~r1Rei~g~~ D~v~· ii r. ~-. 
(Block/Lot 5640 010) . ____ .. __ ,, _____ .... ~--.... -..... _ .. --

.,, 
Dear Board of Supervisors: 

Please accept this Appeal of Tentative Approval of 4 Lot Subdivision at Powhattan Avenue and 
Bernal Heights Boulevard. 

We the undersigned neighbors appeal the attached August 24, 2015 nNotification Letter" 
informing us that the City and County Surveyor, apparently in conjunction with the SF Planning 
Dept., has approved a four-lot subdivision of one lot that sits on a tiny and irregular-shaped 
triangle at the corner of Powhattan Avenue and B.ernal Heights Boulevard in Bernal Heights. See 
Attachment A. This lot is one of the last open space hillsides on East Slope of Bernal, and offers 
commanding views to pedestrians, bike riders, car passengers, and commuters on the 67 Bernal 
Heights bus. · 

Our primary objection to this development, however, is that it is too large and too dense for the 
space, and for the neighborhood. The four houses proposed for this space are hugely out of 

. proportion with surrounding houses, even those built at the height of the 1960s square-box trend. 
Properties within a 3 00' radius of the proposed· development average 1313 square feet of livable 
space on lots averaging 2064 square feet. The developers of this lot, however, flip this ratio, 
proposing to build four luxury houses ayeraging 2139 square feet of livable space (with garages 
and roof decks that can take that square footage close to or over 3000 square feet), on lots 
averaging only 1903 square feet. See neighborhood email to Planning Department, Attachment 
B. 

We have requested that the developers reduce the footprint of this development to three houses at 
2,000 square feet, and the East Slope Design Review Board has also made a similar suggestion, 
to no avail. More than 120 neighbors have signed a letter opposing the development in its current 
configuration. See letter, Attachment C. We believe the tentative subdivision approval was made 
in derogation of the City's General Plan, its Residential Design Guidelines, the Bernal Heights 
East Slope Building Guidelines, and the Bernal Heights Special Use District, all of which put a 
high premium on retaining neighborhood character. This massive, dense development will 
materially alter the character of our neighborhood. We.ask you to stop it in its current 
configuration, and send it back to the Planning Department for further consideration. 

Sincerely; 

Bernal Heights Neighbors 

Deborah Barron, 1 Nebraska Street; Linda Bettencourt, 3 Nebraska Street; Mike Boss; 42 
Nevada Street; Betsy Brown, 2 Nebraska Street; Kelly Carlone, 98 Nevada Street; Erin 
Cunningham, 140 Chapman; Steve Fritz-Rudser, 120 Chapman; Nie Griffin, Prentiss/Powhattan; 
Michael Lerner, 9 Nebraska Street; Lindy McKnight, 140 Chapman; Karteek Patel, 38 Nebraska 
Street; Colin Pether , 38 Nebraska Street; Melissa Shaw, 3 Nebraska Street; Chris Witteman, 
114 Nevada Street . 
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Edwin M. Lee 
Mayor 

tvlohammed Nuru 
Director 

Jerry Sanguinetti 
Bureau of Street Use & Mapping 
Manager 

Bruce R. Storrs P.l.S. 
City and County Surveyor 

Bureau of Street Use & Mapping 
1155 Market St., 3rd floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
tel (415) 554-5827 
subdivision.Mapping@sfdpw.org 

sfpu blicworks.org 
facebook.com/sfpublicworks 
twitter.com/sfpublicworks 

Date: August 24, 2015 
PID: 8257 

THIS IS NOT A BILL. 
The City and County Surveyor has approved a tentativ.e map for a·proposed subdivision 
located at: 

Adgress· Block Lot(s) 
40 Bernal Heights 5640 010 

This subdivision will result in: 

4 Lot Subdivision 

This notification letter is to inforfl) you of your right to appeal this tentative approval. 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO FILE AN APPEAL OF THE TENTATIVE APPROVAL: 

You must do so in writing with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors within ten (10) days 
of the date of this letter along with 13 check in the amount of $306.00, payable to SF 
Public Works. 

The Clerk of the Board is located at: City Hall of San Francisco 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
(415) 554-5184 

If you have any questions on this ·matter, please ·call us. at (415} 554 - 5827 or cur email 
address: Subdivision.Mapping@sfdpw.org. 

Sincerely, 

Bruce R. Storrs, P.L.S 
City and County Surveyor. 
City and County of San Francisco 
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From: Betsy Brown <betsybrown@comcast.net> 
Subject: 40 Bernal Heights Subdivision Application - follow-up data 
Date: August 14, 2015 at 1:15:34 PM PDT 
To: brittany.bendix@sfgov.org 
Cc: Deborah Barron <barrondeborah@hotmail.com>, Linda Bettencourt 
<lbetten29@gmail.com>, Mike Boss <mboss@rockandrose.com>, Kelly Carlone 
<kellycarlone@gmail.com>, Erin Cunningham <erinmckc@yahoo.com>, SRudser@aol.com, 
Michael Lerner <mlerner@learnthenet.com>, Lindy McKnight <lindymck2@yahoo.com>, 
Karteek Patel <karteek@hotmail.com>, Colin Petheram <colin.pethetam@gmail.com>, Melissa 
Shaw <melissashaw@mindspring.com>, Max.setyadiputra@sfgov.org, 
Jenny.delumo@sfgov.org, Amir Afifi <m;nir@siaconsult.com>, reza@siaconsult.com 

Dear Ms. Bendix: 

Thank you once again for meeting with representatives from our neighborhood group last morith 
to discuss the proposed subdivision of the vacant lot at the intersection of Bernal Heights Drive, 
Nevada St., and Powhattan. We have been tracking the status of the subdivision decision online 
and see that approval by city agencies is pending. 

We understand from our discussion with you that the relationship between lot size and proposed 
livable space does not figure into a subdivision dedsion. However, we remain concerned that a 
four-lot approach to this unique space will result in properties that are out of character with our 
neighborhood. We have gathered data to that effect, and wanted to share it with you as a follow­
up to our meeting. 

As you can see, compared to a neighborhood average based on information from the Recorder's 
Office, the proposed project would put nearly 1,000 additional square feet of livable space on 
each of four lots that are, on average, smaller than others in the vicinity. 

Livable space 
Total lot size 

Neighborhood Average* 

1,313 sq. ft. 
2,064 sq. ft. 

*Based on houses within a 300-foot radius of the site 
**Average of four proposed houses/lots 

Proposed Project** 

. 2,139 sq. ft. 
1,903 sq. ft. 

We believe this data supports our concern that the proposed project is out of scale and character 
with the surrounding neighborhood. 

II 
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Thank you for allowing us to have a voice in this process. If you have questions - or any 
additional information to share with our group - please do not hesitate to be in touch. 

Sincerely, 

Deborah Barron, 1 Nebraska Street 

Linda Bettep.cciurt, 3 Nebraska Street 

Mike Boss, 42 Nevada Street 

Betsy Brown, 2 Nebraska Street 

Kelly Carlone, 98 Nevada Street 

Erin Cunningham, 140 Chapman 

Steve Fritz-Rudser, 120 Chapman 

Michael Lerner, 9 Nebraska Street 

Lindy McKnight, 140 Chapman 

Karteek Patel, 38 Nebraska Street 

Colin Petheram, 38 Nebraska Street 

Melissa Shaw, 3 Nebraska Street 

cc: Amir Afifi 
Reza Khoshnevisan 
MaxPutra 
Jenny Delumo 
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March 2, 2015 

Jenny Delumo 

San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission St., Suite 400 
San Francisco, CA 94103-2479 
Jenny.Delumo@sfgov.org 

Bruce R. Storrs, P.L.S. 
City & County Surveyor 
Department of Public Works, 
Bureau of Street Use & Mapping 
1155 Market St., 3d Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
bruce.storrs@sfdpw.org 

Re: Comments in Response to 11Notification of Project Receiving 
Environmental Review" (Case No. 2014-0002982ENV) 
40 Bernal Heights Blvd/965-1025 Powhattan Avenue -
Protest & Objection to DPW Tentative Approval of Subdivision Map 

Dear Ms. Delumo and Mr. Storrs: 

We the undersigned provide these comments on the environmental ·impact of the 
above-referenced project, in response to the Planning Department's February 17, 2015 
Notification of Project Receiving Environmental Review, and in response to an earlier 
notice of approval of tentative subdivision map, purportedly dated January 15, 2015. 

We also take this opportunity to strenuously object to and protest the deeply flawed 
process by which DPW and the Planning Department arrived at their Tentative Map 
Decision, approving the sub.division of one lot into four substandard parcels, without 
any formal findings, based on materially misleading or incorrect statements by the 
developers, and with entirely inadequate notice.to affected neighbors and nearby 
landowners. 

!n short, the current scope of the project greatly exceeds the existing scale of the 
neighborhood and is too large for the site. The project would blocks views, exacerbate 
neighborhood parking problems, and chew up one of the last open spaces on the Bernal 
Heights East Slope, home or potential home to threatened animal and plant species. 
The proposed market-rate (luxury} homes will do.nothing to affect affordable hous[ng. 

We ask that this project, if it is built at all, be approved only after the current subdivision 
approval is rescinded and the subdivision reconsidered, and after substantial reductions 

) to the project size are effected, in order to minimize the impact on open space, and 
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Comments to SF Public Works &-Planning Departments 
Re Environmental Impacts of Project at Bernal Heights Blvd & Powhattan Avenue 
March 2, 2015 · 
Page2 

. conform it to existing neighborhood scale. and character. We note that the asse:: :::.s '-: 
this letter are based on the information we have been able to obtain from t~~ ,.:·:. :=:-.::: 
analyze (in conjunction with limited expert input) in the last ten days. 

In particular: 

1. The project exceeds the existing scale of neighborhood and is too large for the 
site. Until very recently, there was only one lot on the site, filling an irregular, 
acute-angled space where Nevada St., Powhattan Ave., and Bernal Heights Blvd. 
come together. The developer has requested subdivision into two lots, which 
will in turn consist of two parcels each, producing four parcels in the range of 
1755-2073 square feet each, all substantially smaller than the 2500-square-foot 

·and larger lot parcels on adjoining Nevada Street. On these relatively smaller 
lots, the developer plans to build structures substantially bigger than anything 
else in the neighborhood, ranging from 2760 to 3430 square feet when 
structures on adjoining streets are in the 900-1300-square-feet range.1 The size -
of these proposed structures exceeds what would be permitted underthe Bernal 
Heights Special Use District, while backyards, setbacks, and other design 
parameters are also not in conformance - reflecting, again, that the proposed 
structures are too big for the neighborhood. 

2. The project will eliminate the largest piece of open hillside on the East S!ooe of 
Bernal Heights, destroy large trees and native grasses, and destroy oo:er:::a' · 
habitat for threatened species. This irregular lot, together with Rosenkra:-:z and 
Carver Street easements, currently constitutes the largest piece of open hE:slce 
remaining on the East Slope of Bernal Heights. Amazingly, the developers' 
Proposition M Findings Form states that "No ... open space will be affected by 
this development," the first of several materially incorrect statements!·~ that 
Form. This open meadow - which was reseeded with Bernal grasses and 
secured by new retaining walls as part of major life-safety and utility upgrades to 
the neighborhood in the last decade - cont.ains beautiftil wildflov..rers in the 
spring and other flora throughout the year, and provides habitat for a rich array 
of bird life and other fauna .. We have reason to believe that rare, endangered, 
or threatened species, including unique various forms of manzanita? are found 

1 On Nebraska and other adjoining Bernal streets, lot size may be as small as 25x75, or 1875 square feet, still putting 
two of this project's lots below the lower norm of lot size in Bernal (lots on which the built square footage typically· 
hovers around 1000). 

2 For example, Bernal Heights is a designated habitat for the Franciscan Manzanita. See 
https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2012/09/05/2012-21744/endangered-and-threatened-wildlife­
and-plants-designation-of-critical-habltat-for-franciscan, and linked findings: 
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comments to SF Public Works ... r'larming Departments 
Re Environmental Impacts of Project at Bernal Heights Blvd & Powhattan Avenue 

· March 2, 2015 
Page3 

or could be found on this property.3 In addition, there are a number of trees on 
the property which command its crest, at least two of which fit the San Francisco . 
definition of "Significant Trees," and may not be removed without a special 
proceeding and permit.4 Such open space is increasingly rare, and important, in 
a city of increasing density. Particularly in Bernal, such open space contributes 
an essential element of the neighborhood character. 

3. The project will block views. Neighbors, pedestrians, and riders of the 67 Muni 
bus now enjoy expansive views of the East Bay and South Bay and out the 
Alemany Gap to the west as they' travel Bernal Heights Blvd. in either direction 
between the Nevada/Powhattan intersection and upper Bradford Street. These 
vistas will be virtually obliterated by the proposed 30'-high structures. In 

addition, the developers apparently intend to excavate deeply into the existing 
hillside in order to build these houses, and will of necessity have to build large 
fences along Bernal Heights Blvd. to protect against pedestrians accidentally 
falling into these excavated "back yards." Yet again the Proposition M Findings 
Form submitted by developers - dated May 21; 2014 but not proVided to 
neighbors until a February 2015 Public Records Act Request, and on which the 
City may have relied to make its tentative su.bdivision approval - flatly and 
incorrectly states that "the project will not block access to sunlight or vistas.11

) 

4. The project will cause parking problems. Although final plans are not yet · 
available, the developers will presumably be required to make 3 or 4 substantial 
curb cuts along Powhattan Ave. to accommodate driveways, which will in turn 
take away approximately 6-8 parking spaces from Powhattan·. In addition, these 
2760- to 3430-sq uare-foot households will almost surely have and attract more 

Unit 10: Bernal Heights - Unit 10 consists of approximately 24 ac {10 ha}, is located 
north of Cortland Avenue and west of U.S. Highway 101, and is surrounded by Berna I 
Heights Blvd. This unit is currently unoccupied. The unit is within·an area that 
experiences summer fog; is located on sloping terrain; and contains Franciscan Complex 
(greenstone) and Franciscan bedrock outcrops of chert, volcanic, and sedimentary 
materials, soils derived from these formations, and open grassland habitat. This unit 
would assist in establishing an additional population of A. franciscana outside the 
Presidio and Mount Davidson areas. As a result, we have determined that the area is 
essential for the conservation of the species, because It provides for one of multiple 
independent sites for A. franclscana and contains some of the last remaining appropriate 
habitatforthe species within the area. 

~ No study has been d~n_e: This is why it is critically Important to revisit the behind-closed-doors Tentative 
Map Decision, which without explanation exempted the project from environmental review. 

4 
San Francisco Public Works Code, Article 16, Urban Forestry Ordinance, Section 808a. 

5227 



\ 
/ 

Comments to SF Public Works & Planning Departments 
Re Environmental Impacts of Project at Bernal Heights Blvd & Powhanan Avenue 
March 2, 2015 
Page 4 

cars than can fit inside the proposed garages.5 Parking spaces are alreac·:' ~-=~,:~ 
in Bernal Heights. (The Proposition M Findings Form submitted by develccs-.:-::. 
however, states thatthe Project "will not overb.urden ... street traffic ::c: .:;- .. 
cause parking problems," with no backup for this asserti.cr",.\ 

5. The project will not contribute any affordable housing to the citVs. stoc!<.. 
Nothing i'n developers' package suggests tha.t the four proposed structures will 
be anything other than market-rate, luxury homes. 

6. The.subdivision of this lot was done behind closed doors, without adequate 
notice to neighbors, with no supporting findings of fact, and apparently based o:-: 
materially incorrect or misleading statements in the developers' application. As 
detailed in various emailsto Messrs. Storrs and Lee at DPW; neighbors ':.'ere 
entirely unaware that a subdivision process was ongoing.6 The subdivisio;; 
approval and exemption from environmental review was approved \Nith :1C 

findings,7 and based (if based on any factual record) on the developers' materia: 
misrepresentations in the Proposition "M" Findings Form (which asserted there 
was no impact ~n open space, views, or parking, among other statements). We 
are now informed that DPW now admits that the environmental exemption was 

·a mistake. It must,_therefore, revisit the tentative approval of the subdivision 
map. We believe that dividing one lot into four parcels raises a nu~~er of 
environmental issues which should be considered here. 

Moreover, the San Francisco Subdivision Code dearly contemplates :.'.':2: 
neighbors will have ten days to decide whether or not to appeal a s~o::: ,,:.s:c:-­
decision,8 an'd in this case neighbors effectively had only three days :o ~::::: s ... :::-: 
an appeal. At least two households are willing to sign declarations ::-:at::--,:;:: 
clearly remember nofreceivingthe putative January 15, 2015 nctlce ;;::t:. :2:e ::-: 

5 Early plans for the project call for elevator-stacking garages accommodating more than one car in a: least s::ir:1e cf 
the structures. As a threshold matter, such plans indicate the luxury nature of this development. Moreover, visitors 
to these residences - and residents who choose not to use their elevator-stacked parking {e.g., for quick trips to the 
market) - will compete with neighbors for the reduced amount of street parking. 

6 Neighbors met with the developers in Fall.of 2014 under the auspices of the Bernal Heights East Slope Design 
Review Board. At that time, the developers stated that they "would be" applying for subdivision approval, even 
though the subdivision process was then pending. 

7 The Tentative Map• Decision refers to "attached findings/' but we are informed by Mr. Storrs, a signatory 
to that Decision, that there were no attached findings. 
8 San Francisco Subdivision Code Article 9; SEC. 1314 provides that an appeal must be filed "in ·writing with 
the Clerk of the Board within 10 days of release of the decision appealed." 
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CommentS to SF Public Works & Planning Departments 
Re Environmental Impacts of Project at Bernal Heights Blvd & Powhattan Avenue 
March 2, 2015 
Page 5 

the day on January 20, leaving only 3 days to appe9I (the 24th and 25th being 
weekend days): There are many other anomalies with the notice.9 

Mariy of the undersigned property owners have been in the neighborhood for 
more than 20 years, .and they deserved meaningful notice of, and an opportunity 
to be heard on, the substantial changes to neighborhood character which the 
proposed subdivision threatens. Three days is not enough, not under the City's 
S1,1bdivision Code, and not iri any sense of fairness. For this re9son, the 
undersigned neighbors protest and object to the tentative approval of the 
subdivision, and ask that it be reconsidered. 

For the foregoing reasons, the undersigned neighbors object to the project as proposed, 
and ask that the project not be approved, or not be approved until the subdivision 
decision is re-analyzed and the.project's scope and scale are substantially reduced. 

This letter may be signed in counterparts. 

Very truly yours, 

cc: Supervisor David Campos 
Supervisor John Avalos 
Frank Lee, DPW 

I~~~ 

le.. ~\2.::r:.. l--\AGl..A..E:. 

1 G Be y't'\tA c lAe.iJ l-tts 
,,~ CA q'-11.'LD 

... > r 

9 The envelopes were postmarked June 6, 2014, over 7 months before DPW says it mailed the notice. 
DPW confirms that it does not have any certificate qr proof of service for the purported January 15, 2015 
mailing - nor could it. The actual mailing is apparently not done by DPW, but by a separate office. 
Moreover, the Tentative Map Decision is dated January 9, 2015, almost a week before the purported 
notification letter, leaving in question when the Decision was "released." The notification letter also 
contains this confusing header: "THIS IS NOT A BILV Contrast this with the "Notification of Project 
Receiving Environmental Review," which was dated, postmarked and received on February 17, 2015. 
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List of Signatories to March 2, 2015 Neighborhood Comments re Bernal Heights/Powhattan Subdivision 

(partial) 

Betsy Brown 

Helene Brow (sp?) 

Sam T Urai 

Melissa A Shaw 

Linda Betten 

Socorro Molina (sp?) 

Andres & Socorro Malina Living Trust (sp?) 

Nelson Kobayashi 

Sandra D. Barron (sp?) 

Peter J Dardis 

Fozia Sacet (sp?) 

Victoria Gonzalez 

Shelley Munger (sp?) 

Kenneth Garrett 

Julie Fong 

Alain Vandiepenbeech 

Michael Groh 

Carole Zing~sen 

Jose Garrotte 

Hilary Hobbs 

M B Bongroun (sp?) 

Valerie Sinkavich 

Frank Sinkavich 

Barbara Underberg 

Mary Carisolo (sp?) 

Heather Lidemann (sp?) 

Erin Cunningham 

Lindy McKnight 

Oliver Shock 

Kirsten Quinto 

Ronald Lang 

Steven Fritsch-Rudser 

Edric Alu nan 

Nancy Zeches 

Sid Hilderson (sp?) 

Edward A. Jackson (sp?) 

Mike Boss 

Robyn Talman 

Thomas Wu 

Rachel Chin 
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Zuceli Sedar 

Warren Sch? (sp?) 

Jennifer Cohn 

Jeff Couture 

Lena D'Giulia 

David Page 

Loretta Wilson 

Shawn Scott 

Lua Scott (sp?) 

J Bowers (sp?) 

Russ? Keio (sp?) 

Kelly O'Brien 

A.M.O .. 

Judy Hiserman 

Micaela Guitron 

Juan Antonio Guitron 

Alondra Orellana (sp?) 

Chris Witteman 

Matt Peterson 

Amy Peterson 

Dennis Berrios 

Jennifer K Devlin 

Nie Griffin 

l\llichael Marrelli 

John N. Mathies 

Kevin Chard 

Alfonso D'Allesandro 

Doug Dunderdale 

Leonor Vera 

Dafna Wu 

Kathy Angus 

Larry Nelson 

Geralyn Koziarski 

Lawrence Montgomery 

Deborah Gerson 

Herb Felsenfeld 

Gail Newman 

Patricia B. Hughes 

Sam Orr 

Ann Lockett 

Marilyn Waterman 

Karen Helmuth 

Terri Hague 



Michelle Wolf 
Gina Black 

Arash Babaki 

Joseph Bartlow Jr .. 

Bob Muller Jr. 

Robert Muller Sr. 

Henrietta Muller 

Polly Arenberg 

Graciela Trevisan 

Lisa Rafel 

Bethany Gn:idert 

Niroj Hazari (sp?) 

Bardell J Beversdorf 

Evelyne Michaut 

Milton Brown 

Felicitas W. Brown 

Melody Mundy 

Mita Naff (sp?) 

Tom Doriald 

Sarah Thompson 

Bayinaah Jones 

Jeff Kilik 

G ... Kim (sp?) 
Allen B. Bennett 
David Radke 
Amy Reticker 
Michael Snead 
Divya Patel 
Souran Bandyopadhyay 
David McCarthy 
Keisf:ia McCarthy 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Categories: 

Good morning, 

BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Thursday, September 24, 2015 8:36 AM 
'chriswit@saber.net'; 'betsybrown@comcast.net'; 'pberlese@hbcondolaw.com'; Givner, Jon 
(CAT); Stacy, Kate (CAT); Byrne, Marlena (CAT); Malamut, John (CAT); Nuru, Mohammed 
(DPW); Sa11guinetti, Jerry (DPW); Sweiss, Fuad (DPW); Storrs, Bruce (DPW); Sanchez, Scott 
(CPC); Jones, Sarah (CPC); Rodgers, AnMarie.(CPC); Starr, Aaron (CPC); BOS-Supervisors; 
BOS-Legislative Aides 
Calvillo, Angela (BOS); Caldeira, Rick (BOS); Adina, Seema (DPW); BOS Legislation, (BOS); 
Carroll, John (BOS) · 
Planning Department Response - Tentative Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard~ 
September 29, 2015 

150858 

Please find linked below a memo received by the Office of the Clerk of the Board from the Planning department, 
responding the the Tentative Map Appeal of the proposed project at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard:. 

Planning Memo - September 21, 2015 

The appeal hearing ·for this matter is scheduled for a 3:00 p.m. special order before the Board on September 29, 2015. 

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

• tl:ir; Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disdosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying 
information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or.oral communications that members of the public submit to the 
Clerk's Office reg.arding pending legislation or hearings will be mode available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not 
redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information-including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a 
member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other public documents that members 
of the public may inspect or copy. 
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·Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Categories: 

Dear Clerk Calvillo, 

Rodgers, AnMarie (CPC) 
Monday, September 21, 2015 11 :54 AM 
Calvillo, Angela (BOS); BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Bendix, Brittany (CPC); Cleveland-Knowles, Susan (CAT); Jones, Sarah (CPC); Delumo, 
Jenny (CPC); Townes, Christopher (CPC); Setyadiputra, Max (CPC); Malamut, John (CAT); 
Mabry, Paul (DPW); Byrne, Marlena (CAT); Storrs, Bruce (DPW); Starr, Aaron (CPC) 
Planning Department Response: 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard appeal of the Tentative Parcel 
Map [BF 150858 . 
40 Bernal Heights - Subdivision Appeal Response.pdf; 2014-002982ENV.pdf 

150858 

Please find the attached response to the 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard appeal of the Tentative Parcel. Map [BF 

150858]. This is the Planning Department response for the hearing tentatively scheduled for September 29th, 2015. A 
hardcopy of this will be sent via inter-office.mail. 

Thank you, 

AnMarie Rodgers 
Senior Policy Advisor 

Planning Department I City and County of San Francisco 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103 
Direct: 415.558.6395 I Fax: 415.558.6409 
Email: anmarie@sfgov.org 
Web: http://www.sf-planning.org/Leqislatlve.Affairs 
Property Info Map: http://propertym.ap.sfplanning.org/ 

:0 ··~·· ·~ ·1;. 
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DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SAN FRANCISCO 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Appeal of Tentative Parcel Map 
40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

September 23, 2015 

Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors· 

. AnMarie Rodgers, Senior Policy Advisor - Planning (415) '558-6395 

Btjttany Bendix, Case Planner - Planning Department (415) 575-9114 

RE: Board File No. 150858, Planning Case No. 2014.1032S-
Appeal of the Tentative Parcel Map for 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

HEARING DATE: September 29, 2015 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Categorical Exemption Certificate, June 22, 2015 

PROJ.ECT SPONSOR: 1360-1364 Stevenson Street, LLC 
c/o John Kevlin 

. APPELLANT: 

INTRODUCTION: 

Reuben, Junius & Rose, LLP 
One Bush Street, Suite 600 
San Francisco, CA 94107 
Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors 
c/o Chris Witteman and Betsy Brown 
114 Nevada Street 
San Francisco, CA 94110 

This memorandum and the attached documents are in response to the letter of appeal ("Appeal Letter") 
to -the Board of Supervisors (the "Board") regarding the Department of Public Works ("DPW") August 24, 
2015, approval of a Tentative Parcel Map for a four-lot subdivision related to a project at 40 Bernal 
Heights Boulevard (Assessor's Block 5640, Lot 010, "Project Site"). The related project consists of two 
components: (1) the subdivision of one lot into four lots on the Project Site, (Planning Case No. 
2014.1032S), and (2) the construction of four new single-family dwellings, one on each new lot, currently 
under review, (Building Permit Applications No. 2014.05.2i.6382, 2014.05.21.6394, 2014.05.21.6395, and 
2014.05.21.6396). The application for parcel map/final map subdivision was filed with DPW on May 28, 
2014, and referred to the Planning Department (the "Department") for review on June 10, 2014. The 
Department recommended approval of the subdivision on January 12, 2015. However, on March 13, 2015, 
the Department requested that DPW rescind the recommendation of approval pending completion of the 
proposal's environmental review under Planning Case No. 2014-002928ENV. On June 22, 2015, the 
Department issued a Certificate of Determination that the subdivision and new construction project is . 
exempt from environmental review under California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") State 

· Guidelines Section 15332, or Class 32. Sul;>sequently, the Department re-affirmed its recommen<iation of 

Memo 
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Appeal of Tentative Parcel Map 
Hearing Date: September 29, 2015 
40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

File No. 150858 
Planning Case No. 2014.10320 

approval on August 17, 2015, and DPW granted a Tentative Map approval on August 24, 2015. The 
Appeal Letter to the Board was filed on September 3, 2015, by Betsy Brown and Chris Witteman on behalf 

. of 14 named individuals referred to as the "Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors." 

The decision before the Board is whether to uphold or overturn the Tentative Parcel Map approval. We 
write to explain the extensive process of Planning Department review, which is still presently tmderway. 
At this time the Department has completed review of the proposed subdivision .. The corresponding 
development of the resulting four parcels with the new construction of four single-family dwellings is 
still undergoing review. At this time, the proposed new construction does not require authorization by 
the Planning Commission or exceptions from the Zoning Administrator. Upon a determination by the 
Department that the new construction projects are Code-complying and consistent with the General Plan, 
the individual projects will then be publicly noticed pursuant to the requirements of Planning Code 
Section _311. At that time, individuals in opposition to the new construction activities will have an 
opportunity to request Discretionary Review by the Planning Commission. The issues presently raised by 
the Appellant are generally best addressed as part of the development review, not as part of the 
subdivision request. 

We urge the Board of SuperVisors to reject this appeal; to consider these issues at this time could thwart 
the well-established, thoughtful and public review process that occurs at the time the Planning and 
Building permit review takes place, which also include rights of appeal. Both Planning staff and the . 
Commission (if Discretionary Review is requested) can contribute to the discourse on massing; and 
provide specific direction relative to the applicable design guidelines. Further, we would suggest, as this 
memo details, that a project where the lot is subdivided into three parcels, instead of four may result in 
three larger houses than the four houses currently under review. · 

SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AND NEIGHBORHOOD 
The Project Site is located within an RH-1 (Residential, House, One-Family) Zoning District, the Bernal 
Heights Special Use District and a 40-X Height and Bulk District. The Project Site is an irregular lot of 
approximately 7,612 square feet arid is bounded by Bernal Heights Boulevard to the north and Powhattan 
A venue to the south. Unimproved sections of Rosenkranz Street and Carver Street bind the property on 
the west and. east sides, respectively. Directly north of the property and across Bernal Heights Boulevard 
is approximately 8,600 square-feet of city-owned undeveloped land that is designated as open space. 
Immediately east ~f the property, and across the unimproved right-of-way for Carver Street, is a series of 
three-story single family dwellings. The area south of the property, and across Powhattan Avenue, is 
developed with single family homes that are predom:fuately two-stories. East of the property, and beyond 
the unimproved portion of Rosenkranz Street is an additional 344 square feet of city-owned open space, 

. followed by the intersection of Bernal Heights Boulevard, Powhattan Avenue and Nevada Street. Finally, 
the subject property is also within a quarter-mile pf four MUNI bus lines and the neighborhood's primary 
neighborhood commercial corridor on Cortland Street. 

BACKGROUND: 

2014: Applications for Tentative Map, Development and Environmental Review Filed 
On May 21, 2014, 1360-1364 Stevenson Street, LLC (hereinafter "Project Sponsor") .filed four applications 
for new construction with the Department of Building fuspection (hereinafter "DBI") for development of 
four single family dwellings on four proposed corresponding vacant lots within a RH-1 Zoning District, 
the.Bernal Heights Special Use District and a 40-X Height and Bulk District. On May 28, 2014, the Project 

SAii FRANCISCO 2 
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Appeal of Tentative Parcel Map 
Hearing Date: September 29, 2015 
40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

File No. 150858 
Planning Case No. 2014.1032Q 

Sponsor submitted the corresponding Application for Parcel Map/Final Map Subdivision to DPW. This 
application was then referred to the Planning Department for review on June 10, 2014: The proposed map 
subdivided an existing.lot of approximately 7,612 square feet into four smaller parcels ranging from 1,755 
square feet to 2,073 square feet in ·size. On December 22, 2014, the Project Sponsor filed an Environmental 
Evaluation Application with the Planning Department for evaluation of the subdivision and new 
construction proposals. 

January to March 2015 - Rescinding of the initial Tentative Map Approval 
On January 12, 2015, the Planning Department recommended approval of the proposed Tentative Map. 
Subsequently DPW publicly noticed the pending tentative approval on January .15, 2015. Upon 
recognition that proper CEQA review was inadvertently not conducted for the proposed map, the 
Planning Department rescinded the recommendation for approval on March 13, 2015. The referral was 
then placed on hold until the environmental evaluation under Case 2014-002982ENV was complete. 

Planning Department Co1npletes CEQA Review, DPW Approves Tentative Parcel Map Application . 
On August 17, 2015, the Project was determined to be exempt from t11e California Environmental Quality 
Act ("CEQA") as a Class 32 Categorical Exemption under CEQA as described in the determination 
contained in the Planning Department files for this Project (Case 2014-002982ENV). No appeal of the 
categorical exemption has been filed as of the writing of this report. Upon completion of CEQA review, 
the Planning .Department re-issued its recommendation of approval on August 17, 201!;>, and DPW 
resumed the approval process and granted a Tentative Map approval on August 24, 2015. An Appeal 
Letter to the Board was then filed on September 3,. 2015, by Betsy Brown and Chris Witteman on behalf of 
14 named individuals referred to as the "Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors." To date, none of the active 
Building Permit Applications have completed Planning Department review nor has staff commenced the 
Planning Code Section 311 Neighborhood Notification process. Further, as currently proposed the new 
construction proposal does not require any exceptions from the Planning Code or specific authorizations 
from tl1e Planning Commission. 
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Appeal of Tentative Parcel Map 
Hearing Date: ·September 29, 2015 
40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

File No. 150858 
Planning Case No. 2014.10320 

APPELLANT ISSUES AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT RESPONSES: 

In the appellant's materials describing the basis for the appeal, the Appellant raises issues relative to the 
density and scale of the project as follows: 

1. The density of the proposed project. The proposed subdivision reduces a single lot of 
approximately 7,612 square feet into four properties ranging in size from 1,755 square feet to . 
2,073 square feet. Planning Code Section 121 requires that any newly created lot has a minimum 
frontage of 16 feet and a minimum lot width of 25 feet. Additionally, for properties that are 
entirely within 125 feet of the intersection of two streets that intersect at an angle of not more 
than 135 degrees, the minimum lot area is 1,750 square feet. All four lots exceed these minimum 
reqtrirements. Further, only one dwelling unit is proposed per lot, which is consistent with the 
density controls of the RH-1 Zoning District. 

. . 
In regards to the Housing Element of the General Plan the subdivision is consistent with the 
following objectives and policies: 

OBJECTIVE 1: Identify and make available for development adequate sites to meet the Gty's 
housing needs, especially _permanently affordable housing. 

POLICY 1.1 Plan for the full range of housing needs in the City and County of San 
Francisco, especially affordable housing. 

POLICY 1.10 Support new housing projects, especially affordable housing, where 
households can easily rely on public transportation, walking and bicycling for the 
majority of daily trips. 

OBJECTIVE 4: Foster a housing stock that meets the needs of all residents across lifecycles. 

POLICY 4.1 Develop new housing, and encourage the remodeling of existing housing, 
for families with children. 

OBJECTIVE 11: Recognize the Diverse and Distinct Character of San Fran~sco's Neighborhoods. 

POLICY 11.1 Promote the construction and rehabilitation of well-designed housing 
that emphasizes beauty, flexibility, and innovative design, and respects existing 
neighborhood character. 

POqCY 11.3 Ensure growth is accommodated without substantially and adversely 
impacting existing residential neighborhoo4 character. 

POLICY 11.5 Ensure densities in established residential areas promote compatibility 
with prevailing neighborhood character. 

OBJECTIVE 12: Balance housing growth with adequate infrastructm;e that serves the City's 
growing population. · 

SAN FRAIJCJSCO 

POLICY 12.~ Encourage new housing that relies on transit use and environmentally 
sustainable patterns of movement. 

POLICY 12.2 Cons1der the proximity of quality of life elements, such as open space, 
child care, and neighborhood services, when developing new housing units. 

POLICY 12.3 Ensure new housing is sustainably supported by the City's public 
infrastructure systems. 

Pl.ANNINO DEPARTMENT 
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Appeal of Tentative Parcel Map 
Hearing Date: September 29, 2015 
40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

File No. 150858 
Planning Case No. 2014.1032Q 

OBJECTIVE 13: Prioritize sustainable development in planning for and constructing new 
housing. 

POLICY 13.l Support "smart'' regional growth that locates new housing close to jobs 
and transit. 

POLICY 13.3 Promote sustainable land . use patterns that integrate housing with 
transportation in order to increase transit, pedestrian, and bicycle mode share. 

The proposed lot size, width, dedicated frontages, and density are compliant. with the 
requirements of the Planning Code, as well as the General Plan. The subdivision also enables the 

. construction of four single family dwellings near existing neighborhood services, public transit 
and open space. Additionally, while the lot size and boundaries do determine the maximum 
building enveloJ?e for future development, approval of the new lots does not restrict the 
Department from further sculpting the allowable mass per the East Slope Design Guidelines and 
the Residential Design Guidelines. · · 

2. The scale of the proposed building and consistency with neighborhood character. The scale of 
the proposed development is currently under review by the Platining Department. In general, the 
surrounding neighborhood can be characterized by lots ranging in size from approximately 1,480 
square feet to 2,900 square feet and dev~loped with two- to three-story single family homes. This 
irregularity of lot sizes is characteristic of Bernal Heights and is a reflection of the topographic 
conditions. The neighborhood is also .characterized by pockets of open space. However, while the 
subject property is vacant, it is zoned for development and under private ownership. Further, as 
previously noted, directly north and east of the property is city-owned undeveloped land that is 

. designated as open space. 

At present, the proposed new construction complies with the requirements of the Planning 
Code and does not require any exceptions or authorizations from the Zoning Administrator or 
Planning Commission. Further, both the proposed subdivision and new construction proposals 
are generally consistent with the neighborhood character as noted above. The proposed lots fall 
within the range of the existing context, and the corresponding single family dwellings are either 
two stories (40 Bernal Heights BoUlevard) or three stories (965, 985, and1025 Powhatta].lAvenue) 
at the street front. 

Beyond review for consistency with the general requirements of the Code, the Planning 
Department will also consider the new ~onstruction's compliance with both the East Slope 
Design: Guidelines and the Residential Design Guidelines and the General Plan. Once the new 
construction projects are foU:nd to be in compliance, the proposals will then undergo Planning 
Code Section 311 Neighborhood Notification. This process alerts neighboring building owners 
and occupants to the Planning Department's intent tb approve the new construction projects. 
Those challenging the Department's review of the proposal can then seek Discretionary Review 
request, bringing the Project approval before the Planning Commission. 
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Appeal of Tentative Parcel Map 
Hearing Date: September 29, 2015 · 
40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

File No. 150858 
·Plann.ing Case No.·2014.1032Q 

The appellant is challenging the subdivision approval as a means to control scale, suggesting in 
their appeal letter that only three. parcels should be created instead of four. While this would . 
reduce the overall density of the subject property (enabling only three dwelling units instead of 
four dwelling units) it may have an inverse impact to massing. Tiris is because there are no side 
setbacks or maximum floor areas applicable to this site. Regardless of whether the property is 
divided into three parcels or four, similar height, front setback, and rear yard requireme~ts 
would apply. Therefore, this in turn would encomage larger single family homes and result in 
one less unit. 

CONCLUSION: 

The proposed subdivision reflects adequately sized lots which enable a density that is compliant with the 
Planning Code and consistent with the General Plan. As noted.above, the proposed subdivision was also 
found to be exempt from CEQA. In regards to the scale of the corresponding new construction projects, 
the Department recommends that the appellant proceed through the standard Discretionary Review 
process, whereby the Planning Commission can review the proposed designs in detail; contribute to the 
discourse on massing; and provide specific direction relative to the applicable design guidelines. 
Accordingly, the Planning Department recommends that the Board uphold the Department of Public 
Work's decision in approving the Tentative Parcel Map for 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard and deny the 
Appellant's request for appeal. 
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SAN FRANCISCO 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Certificate of Determination 
Exemption from Environmental Review 

2014-002982ENV 
Project Title: 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard/965-1025 Powhattan Avenue 
Zoning: RH-1 (Residential - House, One-Family) District 

B'ernai Heights Special Use District 
40-X Height and Bulk District 

Block/Lot: 5640/010 
Lot Size: 7,612 square feet 
Project Sponsor: . Amir Afifi, SIA Consulting Corporation 

(415) 922-0200 ext. 104 · 
Staff Contact: Jenny Delumo-(415) 575-9H6 

Jenny.Delumo@sfgov.org 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
' . 

The project site is located on an undeveloped, approximately 7,612-square-foot (sq. ft.) upslope lot in the 

1650 Mission St. 
Suite 400 
San Francisco, 
CA 94103-2479 

Reception: 
415.558.6378 

Fax: 
415.558.6409 

Planning 
Information: 
415.558.6377 

Bernal Heights neighborh<md. The roughly triangular-shaped project site is bounded to the south by 
Powhattan Avenue, to the north by Bernal Heights Boulevard, to the west by an undeveloped portion of 
Rosenkranz Street, and to the east by an undeveloped portion of Carver Street. The proposed project 
would include subdivision of the project site to create four new, separate lots, and construction of one 
single-family home on each new lot. Three of the new lots would front Powhattan Avenue and the fourth 

· lot would front Bernal Heights Boulevard. 

[Continued on next page] 
EXEMPTION CLASS: 

Categorical Exemption, Class 32 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 
15332). See page 306. 

DETERMINATION: 

I do hereby certify that the above determination has been made pursuant to State and local requirements. 

dQ$f fv~ 
Environmental Review Officer 

cc: Amir Afifi, Project Sponsor 
· Max Putra, Current Planner 

Supervisor David Campos, District 9 (via Clerk of the Board) 
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Exemption from Environmental Review 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION (continued): 

Specifically, the proposed project would ;result in the construction of: 

Case No. 2014-002982ENV 
40 Bernal Heights Boulevard/ 

965-1025 Powhattan Avenue 

·(1) 965 Powhattan Avenue: An approximately 2,756-gross-square-foot (gsf), 30-foot-tall,_ three­
bedroom home with a two-vehicle garage, on an approximately 2,073 sq. ft. lot. 

(2) 985 _Powhattan Avenue: An approximat~ly 3,426-gsf, 30-foot-tall, three-bedroom home .with a 
three-vehicle garage, on an approximately 1,997 sq. ft. lot. 

(3) 1025 Powhattan Avenue: An approximately 3,033-gsf, 30-foot-tall, four-bedroom home with a 
three-vehicle st(!.cked parki_ng garage, on a~ approximately 1,755 sq. ft. lot. 

(4) 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard: An approximately 2,843-gsf, 30-foot-tall, four-bedroom home with a 
two-vehicle garage, on.an approximately 1,787 sq. ft. lot. 

Collectively, the four proposed buildings would result in an approximately 12,058 gsf residential 
development with ten off-street parking spaces. Excavation, to a maximum depU1 of approximately 22 
feet below grade, is proposed in order to accommodate the basement levels. Eight new street trees would 
be planted as part of the project. 

Project Approvals 

The proposed project is subject to notification under Section 311 of the City and County of San Francisco 
(th~ City) Planning Code and would require the following approvals: · 

• Subdivision Authorization: The proposed project.would require auth~rization by San Francisco 
Public Works (Public Works) to subdivide the existing lot pursuant to provisie>ns of the California 
Subdivision.Map Act and the City's Subdivision Code and Subdivision Regul.ations. 

• Site Permit: The proposed project would require the issuance of a site permit by the Department 
of Building Inspection (DBI). 

Approval Action: 1he granting of the subdivision by Public Works is the Approval Action for the project. 
The Approval Action date establishes the start of the 30-day appeal period for this CEQA exemption· 
determination pursuant to Section 31.04(h) of the San Francisco Administrative Code. · 

EXEMPTION CLASS (continued): 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, or Class 32, provides an exemption from environmental review for i~­
fill development projects that meet the following conditions. As discussed below, the proposed project 
satisfies the terms of the Class 32 exemption. 

a) The project is consistent with applicable general plan designations and policies as well as with applicable 
zoning designations. 

SAN fRANGISCO 
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Exemption from Environmental Review 
Case No. 2014-002982ENV 

40 Bernal Heights Boulevard/ 
965-1025 Powhattan Avenue 

The San Francisco General Plan articulates the objectives and policies that guide the City's 
decision making as it pertains to, among other issues, environmental protection, air quality, 
urban design, transportation, housing, and land use. Permits to construct, alter or demolish 
buildings, or subdivide lots may not be issued unless the project conforms to the Planning Code, 
or an exemption is granted pursuant to provisions of the Planning Code. The project site is 
comprised of an undeveloped lot in a RH-1 (Residential Hou.se, One-Family), 40-X Height and 
Bulk District. The project site is also located withi_n the Bernal Heights Special Use District (the 
"Bernal Heights SUD"), a zoning district established in Section 242 of the Planning Code to 
enable consistent and contextually appropriate development within the Bernal Heights 
neighborhood. For projects within the Bernal Heights SUD, all RH-1 zoning controls apply 
unless otherwise provided for in Section 242. The proposed project would include subdivision 
of the project site into four separate lots and construction of a two-story-over-basement home on 
each of the new lots. The use (residential) and height (30 feet tall) of the proposed buildings 
would conform to the use and height restrictions in RH-1 Distri~ts and the Bernal Heights SUD. 
In addition, the proposed buildings would conform to the rear yard depth, building mass, and 
parking controls prescribed for RH-1 zoned lots within the Bernal Heights SUD. 

The subdivision process is overseen by Public Works and implemented pursuant to provisions 
of the California Subdivision Map Act, and the City's Subdivision Code and Subdivision 
Regulations. However, prior to Public Works approval, the proposed project must be reviewed 
by other applicable City agencies, including the Planning Department. Planning Department 
review ensures the subdivision proposal is consistent with the General Plan, Proposition M 
(Planning Code Section 101.1), and other provisions of the Planning Code. The proposed 
subdivision of the existing lot, which is being reviewed under Public Works Project ID No. 8257, 
would result in the following new lots: 

(1) 965 Powhattan Ave1me: Ar:i approximately 2,073 sq. ft. lot with a roughly 60 foot frontage. 

(2) 985 Powhattan Avenue: An approximately 1,997 sq. ft. lot with a roughly 35 foot frontage. 

(3) 1025 Powhattan A~enue: An approximately 1,755 sq. ft. lot with a roughly 45 foot 
frontage. 

· (4) 40 Bemal Heights Boulevard: An approximately 1,787 sq. ft. lot with a roughly 36 foot 
frontage. 

As proposed, the subdivided lots would meet the minimum width (25 feet) and minimum area 
(1,750 sq. ft.1) requirements for lots in an RH-1 District, pursuant to Planning Code Section 121. 
The proposed subdivision would also increase the allowable dwelling unit density on the 

1Per Planning Code Section 121(e)(2), in RH-1 Districts the minimum lot area is 2,500 sq. ft., except for lots.with their street frontage 

entirely within 125 feet of the intersection between two streets that intersect at an angle of 135 degrees or less, then the minimum· 

lot area is 1,750 sq. ft. The proposed lots are located within the first 125 feet of an intersection where the two streets meet at an 

angle of 135 degrees or less. 

SAN FRANCISCO 
PLANNINO DEPARTMENT 3 

5244 



Exemption from Environmental Review 
Case No. 2014-002982ENV 

40 Bernal Heights Boulevard/ 
965-1025 Powhattan Avenue 

project site. Per Planning Code Section 209.1, in RH-1 Districts residential density is principally 
permitted at a ratio of one dwelling unit per lot and conditionally permitted at a ratio of one 
dwelling unit per 3,000 square feet of lot area, up to a maximum of three dwelling units per lot. 
The existing lot is approximately 7,612 sq. ft. Therefore, the project sponsor would be permitted 
to construct one dwelling unit on the project site or seek Conditional Use Authorization to 
construct up .to three dwelling units on the project site.2 Should the· proposed project be 
approved, the subdivision would result in four lots, enabling the project sponsor to construct 
four dwelling units on the project site. While the proposed project would result· in greater 
density on the project site, the subdivision would not conflict with applicable Planning Code 
provisions. 

Overall, the proposed project is consistent with applicable General Plan objectives and policies 
as well as applicable zoning designations. · 

For informational purposes, on January 9, 2015, the Planning Department approved the 
Tentative Map Decision referral letter for the proposed subdivision.3 The letter was sign~d in 

· error as the Planning Department must issue a CEQA determination for the proposed 
subd:i.vision prior to the approval of a Tentative Map. Therefore, the Planning Department 
submitted a Revocation Request to Public Works on March 13, 2015 requesting that Public 
Works rescind the subdivision map approval and return ~he map to the Planning Department 
for further review.4 The City's Surveyor rescinded the approval on March 16, 2015.5 Once this 
Certificate of Determination (the "Certificate") is published, the Planning Department may 
determine whether to approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the Tentative Map. Should 
the Planning Department approve or conditionally approve the Tentative Map, Public Works 
would be required to re-notice property owners within a 300-foot-radius of the subject parcel, 
and undergo a 10-day appeal period prior to approving a Final Map. · 

b) The devefopment occurs within city limits on a site of less than five acres surrdunded by urban uses. 

The project site is an approximately .17 acre (7,612 sq. ft.) undeveloped lot located within a fully 
·developed area· of San.Francisco. The project site is zoned residential and the lots in the project 
site vicinity are fully developed and serve residential uses. Therefore, the proposed project 
would be appropriately characterized as in-fill development of fewer than five acres, 
surrounded by urban uses. 

2 Per the rules for calculating dwelling unit density under Planning Code Section 207, any "remaining fraction of one-half or more of 

the minimum of lot area per Dwelling Unit shall be adjusted upward to the ~ext higher whole number.of Dwelling Units". 

3 San Francisco Public Works. Tim ta five Map Decision: Tentative Map Referral lo the Department of City Planning, Project ID 8257. June, 

10,. 2014. This document, and all other documents referred to herein, are available for review at the San Francisco Planning 

Department, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 as part of Case File No. 2014-002982ENV. 

4 San Francisco Planning Department. Revocation Request. Case No. 2014.10235. March 13, 2015. 

s San Francisco Public Works Subdivision Project Tracking system. Project ID 8257. http://bsm.sfdpw.org/subdivision/tracking{ 

Accessed May 13, 2015. 
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c) The project site has no habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. 

The project site is located in the Bernal Heights neighborhood on an undeveloped lot, which is 
adjacent to an undevelope.d portion of Rosenkranz Street (west of the lot) and an undeveloped 
portion of Carver Street (east of the lot). As they are undeveloped, Carver and Rosenkranz 
Streets feature the same mix of plants and ground cover that occupy the subject lot and give the 

subject block the impression of one continuous open space. While the project site is currently 
undeveloped, it is located within an urban area with established development patterns. 

The Bernal Heights neighborhood was once under evaluation by the. U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service (the ."USFWS") for its potential to serve as a critical habitat unit for Franciscan 
Manz'anita,6 an evergreen shrub once believed to be extinct. Bernal Heights was initially placed 
on the. list of potential Critical Habitat Units on September 5, 2012 when the USFWS published a 
proposed rule for designating critical habitat for Franciscan Manzanita, "Endangered and 
Threatened Wildlife and Plants; Designation of Critical Habitat for Franciscan Manzanita''/ 
which identified eleven potential Critical Habitat Units. Bernal Heights was removed from the 
Critical Habitat Unit list when the USFWS's final rule was published on December. 20, 2013,8 as 
the USFWS determined that the area is "highly degraded" and does not feature the biological or 
physical characteristics required for the conservation of the Franciscan Manzanita, and therefore 

does not meet the USFWS's criteria for designation as a critical habitat.9 Consequently, the 
Bernal Heights Unit is considered non-essential for the conservation of Franciscan Manzanita 
and was not included in the final list of Critical Habitat Units. 

The project site is located in a developed urban area and does not contain any known rare or 
endangered plant or animal species, or habitat for such species. Therefore, the p~oject site has no 
value as a habitat for endangered, rare, 01: threatened species. 

d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or 
water quality. '-' 

Traffic 

In order to determine whether the proposed project would result in an adverse environmental 
impact on traffic conditions within the vicinity of the project site, the Planning Department used 
the Transportation Impact Analysis Guidelines for Environmental Review (the Transportation 
Guidelines) to evaluate traffic conditions during the weekday PM peak· period (4:00 PM - 6:00 

6 "Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and Plants; Designation of Critical Habitat for Franciscan Manzanita; Proposed Rule,'' 77 

Federal Register No. 172 (September 5, 2012), pp. 54517-54548. 

1 Ibid. 

R "Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and Plants; Designation of Critical Habitat for Arclostaplrylos franciscrma (Franciscan 

Manzanita); Final Rule," 78 Federal Re~ister No. 245(December 20, 2013), pp. 77290-. 

•Ibid. 
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PM). Weekday PM peak hours generally represent the time when the transportation system is 
most heavily used and is more likely to reach maximum capacity. 

Based on the residential trip generation rates in the Transportation Guidelines, the proposed . 
project is estimated to add 40 daily person trips. This includes 14 daily vehicle trips, three of 
which would occur during PM peak hour. The additional vehicle trips are not anticipated to 
significantiy increase traffic in the project site.victnity or result in an adverse impact on the level 
of service; Based on this analysis, the. proposed pi:qject would not substantially increase traffic 
relative to the existing capacity of the surroun~ing area's street system. 

Construction-related impacts, generally, would not be considered significant due to their 
temporary and limited duration. While construction. workers who drive to the project site would 
temporarily increase traffic volume and demand for street parking, the additional trips would 
not substantially affect traffic conditions. Therefore, the proposed project would not result in a 
significant impact on traffic. 

Noise 

Residential uses are considered noise· sensitive uses because residential occupants are 
considered sensitive receptors. The Planning Department requires a detailed noise analysis· for 
projects that propose to locate new residential development in areas where ambient noise is 

. greater than 75 decibels (dBA10). The proposed four single-family residences would not be 
located in an area where environmental noise exceeds this threshold. As such, an Environmental 

. Noise Study was not required for the proposed project. However, ; proposed projec;s must 
comply with noise insulation requirements prescribed by Title 24, Part ll of the California Code 
of R~gulations (Title 24). Through the building permit process, DBI would ensure that Title 24 
requirements would be met. 

Operations-related noise primarily comes· from two sources: (1) ·increased yehicular traffic 
generated by project residents and employees, and by service and delivery trucks requiring 
access to the project site; and (2) mechanical building noise. Typically, traffic volume would 
have to double to produce an increase in ambient noise levels noticeable to most people. As 
previously discussed, the proposed project is estimated to add forty daily vehicle trips. Potential 
residents and visitors would increase the number of trips taken within the project area, but it 
would not result in a doubling of traffic. While one of the proposed' buildings would include a 
mechanical parking stacker, building mechanical noise is regulated by the San Francisco .Noise 
Ordinance (Article 29 of the Police Code). Therefore, the proposed project would not result in a 
substanti.al increase in operational noise within the vicinity of the project site. 

Construction activities, another potential source of noise, are also regulated by the San Francisco . 
Noise Ordinance. The ordinanc~ stipulates when it is· permissible to engage ill' constriction 
activities (7:00 AM - 8:00 PM), the type of equipment that can be used,. and the conditions under 
which that equipment may be utilized. Construction-related noise would be temporary and 

1o A-weighted sound levels ( dBA) is the method for measuring environmental noise to reflect that human hearing is less sensitive to 

low sound frequencies. 
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intermittent, and the proposed project would be required to comply with the City's Noise 
Ordinance. Based on mandatory compliance with all applicable state and municipal codes, the 
proposed project would not result in a significant impact with respect to noise. 

Air Quality 

In accordance with the state and federal Clean Air Acts, air pollutant standards are identified for 
the following six criteria air pollutants: ozone, carbon monoxide (CO), particulate matter (PM), 

nitrogen dioxide (N02), sulfur dioxide (502) and lead. These air pollutants are termed criteria 
air pollutants becaus~ they are regulated by developing specific public health- a~d welfare­
based criteria as the basis for setting permissible levels. The Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District (BAAQMD), in their CEQA Air Qua.Iity Guidelines (May 2011), has· developed screening 

. criteria to determine if projects would violate an air quality standard, contribute substantially to 
an air quality violation, or result in a cumulatively considerable l1et increase in criteria air 
poilutants within the San Francisco Bay Area Air Basiri. The proposed project meets the 
screening criteria, and therefore would not result in significant criteria ajr pollutant impacts.11 

In addition to criteria air pollutants, individual projects may emit toxic air contaminants (TACs). 
TACs collectively refer to a diverse group of air pollutants that are capable of causing chronic; 
(i.e., of long-duration) and acute (i.e., severe but of short-term) adverse effects to human health, 
i'.lcluding carcinogenic effects. In an effort to identify areas of San Fra11cisco most adv~rsely 
affected by sources of TACs, San Francisco partnered with the BAAQMD to inventory and 
assess air pollution and exposures from mobile, stationary, and area sources within S~n 
Francisco. Areas with poor air quality, termed the "Air Pollutant Exposure Zone," were 
identified based on health-protective criteria. Land use projects within the Air Pollutant 
Exposure Zone require special consideration to determine whether the project's activities would 
expose sensitive' receptors to subslantial air pollutant concentrations. The project site is not 
located within an Air Pollutant Rx:posure Zone. Nor would the proposed project include the 
operation of stationary sources of air pollution. Therefore, the proposed project would' not result 
in a significant impact with respect to exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial levels of air 
pollution. 

Though the proposed project would require construction activities for the approximate eight­
month construction phase, construction emissions would be temporary and variable in nature 
and would not be expected to expose sensitive receptors to substantial air pollutarts. The 
proposed project would also be subject to, and comply with, California regulations limiting 
idling to no more than five minutes,12 which would further reduce nearby sensitive receptors' 
exposure to temporary and variable TAC emissions. Therefore, construction-period TAC 
emissions would not result in a significant impact with resped to exposing sensitive receptors to 
substantial levels of air pollution. Overall, the proposed project would i;tot result in significant 
air .quality impacts. 

ll Bay Area Air Quality Management District, CEQA Air Quality Guideli11es, Updated May 2011. Table 3-1. 

12 California Code of Regulations, Title 13, Division 3, § 2485. 
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·Water Quality 

. The project site is an undeveloped lot covered with porous surfaces. While the proposed project 
would increase the impervious surface area on the project site~ the proportion of _impervious to 
por.ous surface cover would be similar to that found on other residential-development 16ts in the 
neighborhood. Any wastewater and storm water discharge resulting from the proposed project 
would flow into the City's combined sewer system and be treated to the standards of the City's 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit prior to discharge to a receiving water 
body. 

In addition, the City's Stormwater Management Ordinance requires any project that involves 
ground disturbance of 5,000 sq. ft. or greater to prepare a Stormwater Control Plan. The 
prop~sed project would exceed this threshold and i~ therefore sU.bject to the ordinance. The 
project sponsor must pr~pare a Stormwater Control Plan demonstrating how the project will 
adhere to the performance measures outlined in the November 2009 Stormwater Design 
Guidelines (the "Guidelines") including reduction in total volume and peak flow rate of 
storin.water for areas in combined sewer systems. The San Francisco Public Utilities (SFPUC) 
Wastewater Enterprise, Urban Watershed Management Program is responsible for review and 
approval of the Stormwater Control Plan. Without SFPUC approval of a Stormwater Control 
Plan, no site or building permits can be issued. The Guidelines also require .a signed 
maintenance agreement to ensure proper care of the necessary stormwater controls. Compliance 
with the ordinance requires the project to maintain or reduce the existing volume and rate of 
stormwater runoff at the subject property .by retaining runoff onsite, promoting stormwater 
reuse, and limiting site discharge entering the combined sewer system. Therefore, the proposed 
project would not substantially alter existing groundwater quality or surface flow conditio~s 
and would not result in significant water quality impact~. · 

e) The site can be adequately served by.all required utilities and public services. 

The project site is located in a dense urban area where all public services and utilities are 
currently available, and the proposed building would be ab~e to connect to the City's water, 
wastewater, and electricity services. While the proposed project would minimally increase 
demand on public services and utilities, that demand would not exceed the capacity provided 
for this area. In addition, the project would minimize potable water usage in the proposed 
buildings, and subsequently the volume of wastewater discharged, through compliance with the 
City's Residential Water Conservation Ordinance (Building Code Chapter 12A) and the 
residential requirements for. increasing indoor water efficiency, pursuant to Green Building Cod,e 
Chapter 4. Therefore, the proposed project would. be adequately served by all. required utilities 
and.public services. 

DISCUSSION OF OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 
. . 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 establishes exceptions to the application of a categorical exemption for 
a project. None of the established exceptions applies to the proposed project. Guidelines Section 15300.2, 
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subdivision (c), provides that a categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where there is a 
reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment due to unusual 
circumstances. As discussed above,' the proposed project would not have a significant effect on traffic, 
noise, air quality and water quality. In additiOn, the proposed project would not have a significant effect 
on the environment due to unusual circumstances for other environmental topics, including those 
discussed below. 

Geology and Soils. According to Planning Department records, the project site has a slope of equal to or 
greater than 20 percent. Therefore, a geotechnical investigation was conducted on the site and the 
subsequent findings are summarized in this section.13 

The geotechnical investigation involved project site ~econnaissance, review of a 1993-94 investigation of 
and construction on a lot directly northeast of the subject property, review of engineering studies and 
observations made at properties in the project site vicinity, a review of pertinent geotechnical data, and 
geotechnical analysis of all findings. The project site features a northward uphill slope of approximately 
20 to 25 percent. Two exploratory borings were drilled for a subsurface investigation at 81 Carver Street, 
just northwest of the project site, to a depth of approximately 10 feet below grade. The investigation 
reveaJed a soil mantel consisting of very loose silty clayey sand and firm sandy clay mixed with rock and 
glass fragments approximately five to eight feet deep. The fill is underlain by a layer of stiff to very stiff 
sandy silty clay approximately fou~ feet deep, which grades into Greenstone bedrock to the maximum 
depth explored (15 feet below grade); though in some .instances the Greenstone bedrock grades into chert 
bedrock. The area in which the project site is located typically features a subsurface of hard, brittle 
Franciscan formed chert intermixed with weathered, firm shale .. Tu.is material was. also observed at 
nearby properties at depths and with sampling. resistance that indicate the presence of minimally 
weathered bedrock. No free ground water was detected on the site. According to Planning Department 
records, the project site is not in a Seismic Landslide Hazard Zone, nor did the geotechnical consultant 
observe signs of instability: Based on the stability of the of the hard bedrock below the soil mantel arid 
low risk of landslides or liquefaction, the geotechnical ·report concludes that the site is suitable for 
construction of the proposed structures, provided their recommendations are incorporated· into the 
design and implementation of the project. 

The report recommends that (1) prior to the commencement of any work on the project site, survey points 
should be placed around the site and monitored while the foundation is installed; (2) due to the proposed 
depth of excavation, temporary shoring will be required during construction, particularly along Bernal 
Heights Avenue; (3) the foundation system should include steel-reinforced spread footings, and be 
constructed in a grid formation wher.e isolated or perimeter footings are tied into the grid system; (4) a 
sub-drain system should be installed beneath garage slabs and lower level residential spaces. Additional 
recommendations regarding specialty contractors, site preparation, excavation, slab-on-grade placement, 
retaining walls, drainage, and other foundation engineering specifications are included in the report. Due 
to the variation in slope across the project site proposed excavation would range from approximately nine 

1"Harold Lewis &·Associates Geotechnical Consultants, Faundntion im;iestigatfon, Four Proposed Residenlinl Buildings, 965, 985, 1025 

Powltatta11 Avenue and 40 Bernal Heights Bouleriard, Snn Fra11cisco, California, September 21, 2014. 
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to 15 feet below grade, with' a potential maximum depth of approximately 22 feet below grade depending 
on site conditions during construction activities. 

The proposed project would be required to conform to the San Francisco Building Code, which ensures the 
safety of all new construction in the City. Decisions about appropriate foundation and structura.l design 
are considered as part of the ·DBI permit review process. DBI would review background information 
including geotechnical and structural engineering reports to ensure that the security and stability of 
adjoining properties and the subject property is maintained during and following construction. 
Therefore, potential damage to structures from geologic hazards on the project site would be addressed 
through the DBI requirement for a geotechnical report and review of the building permit application 
pursuant to its implementation of the Building Code. In light Qf the above, the proposed project would not 
result in a significant effect related to .seismic and geologic hazards. 

Neighborhood Concerns. A "Notification of .Project Receiving Envfronmental Review" was mailed on 
February 17, 2015 to community organizations, tenants of affected property and properties adjacent to the 
project site, and those persons who own property within a 300 foot radius of the project site. Overall 
concerns raised 'by the public in response to the notice were taken into consideration and incorporated 
into this Certificate, as appropriate for CEQA analysis. 

The Planning Department received approximately 127 comments from 115 people. Concerns related to 
physical environmental ·effects .were raised about increased traffic, loss of open space, the potential 
presence of wildlife habitat on the project site, air quality, scope of excavation activities, and the potential 
noise and air quality impacts resulting from construction activities. These concerns are addressed in the 
Remarks section of this Certificate. Additional comments regarding the physical environmental effects of 
the proposed project include: (1) Off-street parking constraints cause by increased density; (2) shadow 
obstructing light to adjacent properties; (3) an.exposed water blow valve on the project.site; (4) removal of 
Significant Trees; (5) public access to the existing bus stop on Bernal Heights Boulevard; (6) public safety 
along Bernal Heights Boulevard. These concerns are addressed below: 

(1) Section 242(e)(4) bf the Planning Code prescribes the minimum number of off-street parking 
spaces for new construction projects located i1'. the Bernal Heights SUD. Based on the amount of 
usable floor area the project proposes to construct (ranging approximately 2,043-2,244 sq. ft.), a 
minimum of two parking spaces must be provided for each of the four dwelling units. Therefore, 
a total of eight parking spaces are required. The project would include construction of a two­
vehicle garage for two of the proposed homes and a three-vehicle garage for the other two 
homes. This wouid result in a total often parking spaces, thereby satisfying the off-street parking 
requirement for projects in the Bernal Heights SUD and the projected parking space demand for 
the project. Potential residents and visitors to the project site would also .have access to 
alternative means of transportation. The project site is served by Muni bus routes 9, 9R, 23, 24, 67 
and 292, which have stops within .5 miles of the project site.14 In addition, pursuant to Planriing 
Code Section 155.2.10( the project must include at least one bicycle parking space per residential 

14 511 SF Bay. http://511.org/ Accessed January 22, 2015 
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dwelling unit, for a total of four spaces~ Therefore, the proposed project would facilitate adequate 
public transportation, biking, and vehicle access to the project site ' 

(2) · Proposed projects are typically evaluated for their potential to cast new shadow on parks and 
open space if the proposed project may potentially· cast new shadow in a manner that 

substantially affects the use and enjoyment of outdoor recreational facility or other public areas. 
The proposed buildings would potentially shade two Public Works-owned properties (Assessor'.s 

Block and Lot 5640/019 & 5641/011) just north of the project site. The lots are passive open spaces 
held by Public Works in order to protect slope stability. The spaces are not actively used for 
recreational enjoyment, nor are they conducive to such activity due to their steep slopes. In 

addition, while the proposed buildings would add new shade to portions of the project ·site and 
surrounding properties, the new shadow would be typical of that found in urban areas for in-fill 
development projects. Therefore, for the purposes of CEQA analysis, a shadow analysis is not 
required for the proposed project. 

(3) The project site currently features a San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) water 
blow valve, located at approximately the middle of the Powhattan Avenue frontage on the public 
right-of-way. DBI would consult with SFPUC during the building permit review process to 
determine the most appropriate location of the pipe, should relocation be required. Thus the 
location of the infrastructure would not substantially impact the safe provision of utilities and 
public services to properties in the project site vicinity. 

(4) The proposed project is subject to the City's Green Landscaping Ordinance (Planning Code Section 
138.1) and Urban Forestry Ordinance (Public Works Code Article 16). The Green Landscaping 
Ordinance outlines a provision for adding street trees when ·undertaking new construction. The 

Urban Forestry Ordinance outlines provisions for the protection and/or removal of existing trees. 
To comply with these measures, the project sponsor submitted a Tree Planting and Protection 
Checklist form for each of the proposed subdivided lots.15• The Checklist discloses the number of 
existing Protected Trees16 on the proposed project site, the proposed project's potential impact to 
Protected Trees, the estimated number of required new Street Trees, and new Street Tree planting 

requirements based on the applicable Tree Schedule.17 The Checklist is reviewed by the Planning 
Department as well as Public Works, as the latter department must approve the removal and/or 
pianting of any Protected Trees on the project site prior to issuance of a building permit. Based on 
the Checklists submitted for the proposed project, the project site contains four Significant Trees 
and no Landmark or Street Trees. The project sponsor must receive approval from Public works 

1s SIA Consulting Corp., Auti10rized Agcmt, Required C/1ecklist f<lr Tree Planting n11d Proleclion, 965, 985,- and 1025 Powhattan Ave. 

and 40 Bernal Heights Blvd., May 20, 2014. 

16 Protected Trees collectively refers to Significant Trees, Landmark Trees, and Street Trees located on or over a development. More · 

information about these designations can be found in Public Works Director's Bulletin No. 2006-01: Tree Disclosure and Protection 

Requirements. 

17 Based on the characteristics of the proposed project, new Street Tree requirements may fall under one of three Planning 

Department Tree Schedules. Please refer to the Tree Planting and Protection Checklist, located on the Planning Department "".ebsite 

at http://www.sf-planning.org/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid~8321. for a full description of the Tree Schedules. 
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for the proposed removal of the Significant Trees and for planting new Street Trees. Though the 
proposed project would include the removal of four Significant Trees on the project site, the Tree 
Protection and Planting Checklist reflects the City's stand~rdized policy for addressing the 
routine protection, removal and/or pl~ting of .Protected Trees as prescribed by. the Green 
tandscaping and Urban Forestry Ordinances. Therefore, any potential impact to Significant Trees 
would be addressed through the requirement that the sponsor obtain a permit from Public Works 
in order to remove or plant Protected Trees. 

(5) A Muni bus stop, which serves route 67, is located on Bernal Height Boulevard near the. 
northwest corner of· the project site. where the subject property's western lot line meets 
Rosenkranz Street. It is not unusual for an in-fill development project in an urban area to be 
located near a public transit stop. In instances where a proposed project would impact access to a 
public transit stop, or in some way i:equire the relocation of the transit stop; the project sponsor 
would coordinate with the Planning Department, any public agencies with jurisdiction over the 
transit stop, and Public Works to ensure the proposed work does not substantially impact the 
provision of public transportation services. As the proposed scope of work does not include any 

· changes to the portion of the sidewalk where the bus stop is located, access to the bus stop would 
not be impacted by the proposed project. 

(6) The project would construct the proposed buildings so that two of the homes, 965 and. 985 
Powhattan A venue, would have backyard patios facing Bernal Heights Boulevard. The proposed 
backyar,d for 985 Powhattan A venue would provide a two~tiered, .stepped patio where the 
portion of the patio closest to the sidewalk would be approximately one foot:and eight inches ii:1 

. depth and the lower patio would be approximately four feet and· eight inches in depth. This 
would result in a back yard with a total depth of approximately six feet and four inches below 
Bernal Height Boulevard's sidewalk grade. The proposed single-tiered patio for 965 Powhattan 
Avenue would be approximately four. feet and four inches below g:rade. As the proposed 
recessed patios ':Vould be located along a public sidewalk, a neighborhood resident expressed 
concern that the depth of the patios would result in a public safety hazard. 

Evaluation of public safety on sidewalks and streets is considered as part of the DBI permit 
review process. Project plans are .routed to the Public Works, as iippropriate, for a Plan Check to 
ensure compliance with the Public Works Code. Public Works Plan Checks include review of 
proposed activities that could affect public safety on the public-right-of-way. Therefore, ensuring 
public safety from potential sidewalk hazards in the project site vicinity would be add:i:essed 
through the requirement for a Public Works review of the building permit application pursuant 
to its implementation. 

Other comments about the merits of the proposed project were-shared, however, comments that do not 
pertain to physical enviionmental issues ·and comments on the merits of the proposed project will be 
considered in the context of project approval or disapproval, independent of the environmental review 
process. While local concerns or other planning considerations may be grounds for modifying or denying 
the proposed project, in the independent judgment of the Planning Department, there is no substantial 
evidence that the proposed project would have a significant effect on the environment. 
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The proposed project satisfies the criteria for exemption under the above-cited classification. In addition, 
·none of the CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 exceptions to the use of a categorical exemption applies to 
the proposed project. For the above reasons, the proposed project is appropriately exempt from 
environmental review. 

. SAN FRANCISCO 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 13 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Sent: Tuesday, September 22, 2015 8: 11 AM 
To: Board of Supervisors, (BOS); BOS Legislation, (BOS) 

FW: BOS File No. 150858 - Concern an proposed Bernal Heights houses Subject: 

Categories: 150858 

-~---Original Message-----
From: Marilyn Waterman [mailto:yaviene@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 21, 2015 8:51 PM 
To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Concern an proposed Bernal Heights houses 

Dear Board of Supervisors, 
I am writing to express my concern about the proposed housing at 40 Bernal Heights Blvd. I respectfully ask you to study 
this proposal with great care and ensure the project would not create more reasons to tear down existing neighborhood 
houses and replace them with larger, profitable ones. 

Bernal Heights, like other traditionally working class and mixed class neighborhoods in San Francisco, are quickly 
becoming "neighborhoods of teardowns" - as new housing goes up that are disproportionately out of scale, creating 
get-rich-quick incentives to demolish smaller houses. · 

Please demonstrate responsible stewardship in protecting the neighborhoods of San Francisco. 
Thank you, 
Marilyn Waterman 
61 Gates St. 
San Francisco 

Sent from my iPhone with apologies for typos· 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

. Categories: 

Dear Board of Supervisors, 

Marilyn Waterman <yaviene@yahoo.com> 
Monday, September 21, 20·15 8:51 PM 
BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Concern an proposed Bernal Heights houses 

150858 

I am writing to expres~ my concern about the proposed housing at 40 Bernal Heights Blvd. I res,pectfully ask you to study 
this proposal with great care and ensure the project would not create more reasons to tear down existing neighborhood 
houses and replace them with larger, profitable ones. 

Bernal Heights, like other traditionally working class and mixed class neighborhoods in San Francisco, are quickly 
becoming "neighborhoods of teardowns 11 

- as new housing goes up that are disproportionately out of scale, creating 
get-rich-quick incentives to demolish smaller houses. 

Please demonstrate responsible stewardship in protecting the neighborhoods of San Francisco. 
Thank you, 
Marilyn Waterman 
61 Gates St .. 
San Francisco 

Sent from my iPhone with apologies for typos 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

ann fockett <lockett514@icloud.com> 
Monday, September21, 2015 2:12 PM 
BOS Legislation, (BOS) . 
40 Bernal Hill Blvd 

150858 

I oppose the development of four large, out of character for the neighborhood houses at 40 Bernal Hill Blvd. 
Ann Lockett 
61 Gates Street 
San Francisco, CA 94110. 

From my iPad 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

Herb Felsenfeld <herbfelsenfeld@gmail.com> 
Monday, September21, 201.51:01 PM 
BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Letter of Opposition to proposed 40 Bernal He.ights Blvd. project 

150858 

Dear Honorable Members of the San Francisco Board of Superviso"rs; · 

I oppose the-proposed subdivision at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard. The .developers want to subdivide one 
irregular piece of open space into four lots and then build four houses of 2,100 sq. feet to 2,200 sq. feet of 
liveable space on each of these lots - essentially flipping the typical house-to-lot ratio for the surrounding 
neighborhood. 

The developers want to b.uild substantially larger houses than those of the neighbors on lots that are generally 
smaller .. This will result in a densely packed cluster of houses out of character with the houses and 
neighborhood aro·und them: The addition of large roof decks and 2-4 car garages will exacerbate the 
problem. · 

Below is a list of both City of San Francisco, and Bernal Heights neighborhood sources that support the many 
neighborhood claims ("out of character and scale") that have been made against this project. Sources cited 
are: General Plan (GP); Priority Policies (PP); Residential Design Guidelines (RDG); General Plan - Urban Design 
Elements (URB); Special Use District policies (SUD}; and East Slope Design Review Board guidelines (ESDRB). I 
have enumerated the reckless and egregious disregard for, as well as direct conflicts with, city of San Francisco 
and neighborhood policies (abbreviations refer to the sources in the previous· sentence}: 

GP; pp. 1/7. 2/7, and 3/7 

" ... (development should) maintain the area's quality of life ... (it is) imperative for protection, preservation, 
and enhancement of aesthetic values and unique character (of a neighborhood) ... (to foster) improvement of 
housing representing good standards and adequate open space." · 

PP, URB.CPN.1.9 SECTION 101.l (b), p. 4/7 

These priority policies all stress the importance of affordable housing as connected to neighborhood 
character. 

ROG, pp. 9, 10, and 23 

" ... buildings must be designed to be compatible with the scale, patterns, and architectural features of 
surrounding buildings.' " ... designer (should) help define, unify, and contribute positively to existing visual 
context."" ... building scale (is) to be compatible with that of surrounding buildings, in order to preserve 

neighborhood character." 

URB - URB.CPN.1.3 

4 
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"(Developers should) recognize that buildings when seen together, produce-a total effect that characterize a 
city and its districts.". 

SUD 

This section of the San Francisco Planning Code encourages development "in context and scale with the 
established character (of Bernal Heights)." · ' 

ESDRB - page two 

"Bernal ... is a special neighborhood (with qualities that are cherished by all with a) commitment to seeing them 
preserved." "Much recent development is not only inconsistent but often at odds with the smaller existing 
structures ... some new buildings ... present facades which are copies of a single undistinguished design." 

The above mentioned city and neighborhood policies are clearly designed to enhance, preserve, and protect our 
unique Bernal Heights neighborhood character. The proposed development at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 
flies in the face of respectful consideration of our neighborhood and the design values we stand for. 

Thank you for your attention. I hope you will be sensitive to the many concerns raised by neighbors regarding 
this project. 

Herb Felsenfeld 

3574 Folsom Street 

San Francisco, California 94110-5650 

415-601 -5062 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 

Elizabeth Brown <betsybrown1@mac.com> 
Monday, September 21, 201·5 9:07 AM 

To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) . 
Subject: Tentative Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

Categories: 150858 

San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
c/o John Carroll, Legislative Clerk 
San Francisco Board ofSupervisors 
San Francisco City Hall, Room 244 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

Dear Mr. Carroll, 

Kindly include my comments, below, in the Supervisors' packets for the September 29 hearing. 

I am writing to appeal the decision to allow subdivision of the single lot referred to as 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard into 
four lots, on which the developer intends to build four large luxury homes:. 

I have lived across from this lot - one of the last open spaces on this side of Bernal, offering a vista south to passersby 
on Bernal Heights Drive - for approximately 20 years. It is an irregularly shaped triangle of land, with a very narrow 
point at the intersection of BernalHeights Drive, Powhattan Ave., and Nevada Street. The slope of the lot is 
steep. Between slope and shape, it's very difficult to imagine this space supporting four dwellings - particularly the 
oversize dwellings intended by the developer. 

Current pla·ns for the site include four luxury homes, with 2,100 to 2,200 square feet of livable space each (larger than 
nearby homes - mine, among the closest to the site, is 1,000 square feet of living space} on lots between approximately 
1,900 and 2,070 square feet. 

This plan.effectively flips the typical house-to-lot ratio for the surrounding neighborhood. Allowing this single lot to be 
subdivided into four will result in a densely packed cluster of dwellings - four large homes, with expansive roof decks 
and 2-4-car garages on a steep and narrow triangle of land - out of character with the houses and neighborhood 
arou'nd them. 

I respectfully request that the Board of Supervisors deny the proposed four-lot subdivision, so that the. developer may 
consider alternatives that better reflect t.he character of our neighborhood. 

Thank you, 

Betsy Brown 
2 Nebraska Street 
$an Francisco 
415-826-334 7 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

· Karteek Patel <karteek@hotmail.com> 
Sunday, September 20, 2015 7: 11 PM 

·BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Subdivision of Bernal Heights Blvd/Powhattan Open Space 

150858 

Dear Board of Supervisors, 

· 1 am a neighbor of the proposed subdivision at Bernal Heights Blvd and Powhatan. I live at 38 Nebraska Street, 
mid-block below the proposed subdivision. 

I wanted to voice my position against this subdivision. The proposed subdivision into four lots ar~ planned to 
support four large luxury homes that are out of scale with the.surrounding homes. These homes will have 
more square feet of built space compared to the lot size. We live in a special use district, where open space 
has been protected histo.rically to ensure the character and open space areas are maintained around 
homes. The use of open space has been strictly enforced for those applying for permits to renovate and 
extend them homes into open spaces. This protection of open space has proven well for Bernal Heights; it has 
allowed for homes with backyards and open areas surrounding homes that encourage people to w;:tlk around 
and enjoy the landscape. Bernal Heights is unique in this fashion _and as a result, we have seen new families 
move into our neighborhood - these include couples with babies and young children. These families move to 
Bernal Heights because of the unique availability of space. It would be a pity to see things change by 
supporting a subdivision that would not create similar spaces. 

Additionally, the subdivision will create an unusual and very dense buil~ing block on an irregularly shaped 
space. Just by w·alking around the area of the subdivision, it becomes very clear that the homes surrounding 
this open sp·ace are built on lots with ample space around them. This subdivision would be a significant 
departure froff! the lots and the homes in both space and size. 

I do hope you take into consideration these concerns and not allow for a subdivision.- We recognize homes 
will be built on this open space, but we need to be smart about this and consider that the lots should be 
uniform in size and should keep in cha_racter with the neighborhood - which encourages people to spend time 
outside in both their front a.nd backyards. 

Kind regards, 

Karteek Patel 
38 Nebraska Street 
San Francisco, CA 94110 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

kathyangus@gmail.com on be.half of Kathy Angus <kathyangus@comcast.net> 
Sunday, September 20, 2015 12:56 PM 
BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Subject: Hearing Notice - September 29, 2015 - Tentative Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights 
Boulevard 

150858 

On Behalf of the Bernal Heights South Slope Organization, which has been in existance for over two decades, I 
would like to voice my opposition to the proposed construction at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard. Bernal has 
historically known as a working class neighborhood and homes are accordingly small and modest, which is 
particulariy appropriate because they built on some of the smallest lots in the City. 

The construction at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard proposes 4 houses, both out of scale and of far to high density 
to be in character with the neighborhood. This particular location is a corner that impacts many residents and 
visitors to the area. 

The South Slope Organization agrees with the following statements put forth in many other letters submitted by 
Bernal neighbors. 

• The four proposed lots are intended to support four large luxury houses that are out of scale with surrounding 
houses - with more square feet of built space compared to lot size. · 

• The result will be a very densely built block, on an irregularly shaped space, out of keeping with the character of 
Bernal Heights. 

We strongly suggest that these proposed homes be seriously downsized to reflect the character and density of 
the neighborhood. 

Kathy Angus 
Co-Chair Bernal Heights South Slope Organization 
99 Banks Street, SF 94110 .. 

Kathy Angus 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

Matt Peterson <m.w.peterson@gmail.com> 
Friday, September 18, 2015 11 :28 AM 
BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Bernal/Powhattan open space dev appeal letter 

150858 

I'm opposed to the current proposal to build 4 luxury houses at the intersection of.Bernal and Powhattan. While I do 
support the development of this. property into something beyond the open space it currently is (shared community 
space, garden, playgrnund or even houses at comparable scale), I am very much against the proposed development for 
three major reasons: 

1. It moves SF even further away from building residential property that the majority of SF workers can ever afford. 
Berna l's generally lower housing prices (in comparison to the rest of t~e city), is one of the few safe entry 
neighborhoods for first time home buyers. When my wife and I purchased our house 5 years ago, Bernal was the 
only neighborhood we could realistically consider. 

2. The density of buildings will block a quintessential beautiful Bernal view of the surrounding city that residents 
appreciate on their walks around the neighborhood. These moments are a critical component ta the charm and 
appeal of Bernal to all people who visit and live here. · · 

3. The proposed houses are out of scale from the surrounding neighborhood houses. 

Thanks, 

Matt Peterson 
115 Nevada St. 
415-254-1137 

1 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

John Carroll 
Legislative Clerk 

Michael Lerner <michael@community-arts.org> 
Thursday, September 10, 2015 12:20 PM 
Carroll, John (BOS) 
Tentative Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
San Francisco City Hall 
Room 244 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

Dear Mr. Carroll, 

Kindly include my comments below in the Supervisors' packets for the September 29 hearing. 

I've lived on Nebraska Street in Bernal Heights since 1982, during which time I've seen many changes to the 
neighborhood, almost all for the better. Now a developer intends to subdivide the steep, triangular lot at 40 Bernal 
Heights Boulevard in order to build four luxury homes a half block from my home. I'm not at all against development, 
but as a San Francisco resident for over 40 years, I feel compelled to write to express my dismay at the scale and scope 
of the proposed project. 

My house is around 900 sq feet and th9se of my neighbors are not much larger. Houses in Bernal Heights rarely exceed 
1,500 sq feet. The proposed houses, which will all exceed 3,000 sq feet, looming over our little neighborhood ar~ totally 
inappropriate. They will degrade the quality of life for the entire neighborhood, only benefiting the developer and four 
buyers that can afford $3 million+ for housing. The developer's proposal makes a mockery of the Bernal Heights Special 
Use District guidelines. 

I believe that my position, that of my neighbors and the East Bernal Heights Design Review Board is reasonable: Scale 
back the proposed number of houses to three and reduce the size to that of the existing houses in the neighborho.od as 
stated in the guidelines. For that reason I respectfully request that the Board of Supervisors deny the subdivision 
application. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Lerner 
9 Nebraska Street 

415.509.1916 
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EdwlnM.Lee 
Mayor 

Mohammed Nuru 
Director 

Jerry Sanguinetti 
Bureau of Street Use & Mapping 
Manager 

Bruce R. Storrs P.1...5. 
City and County Surveyor 

Bureau of Street Use & Mapping 
1155 Market st, 3rd floor: 
San FranEisco, CA 9410'3 
tel (415) 554.5827 
Subdivision.Mapping@sfdpw.org 

sfpubllcworks.org 
facebook.com/sfpublicworks 
twitter.com/sfpublicworks 

Date: January 15,. 2015 

THISIS NOT A BILL. 
The City and County Surveyor has approved a tentative· map for a proposed subdivision 
located at: 

Address Block Lot(s) 
40 Bernal Heights Blvd· 5640 010 

This subdivision will. result in: 

4 Lot Subdivision 

This notification letter is to inform you of your right to appeal this tentative approval. 

IFYOU WOULD LIKE TO FILE AN APPEALOFTHE TENTATIVE APPROVAL: 

Yol.I must do so in writing withthe Clerk of the Board of Supervisors within ten (10) days 
of the date of this letteralon~with a check in the amount of$298.00, payable fo SF 
Public Works. 

The Clerk of the Board is located at: City Hall of San Francisco 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 
San Franctsco, CA 94102 
·(41~i· $54~5:1,84 

If you have any questions on this matter, please call us at (415} 554 - 5827 or our email 
address: Subdivislon.Mapping@sfdpw.org .. 

Sincerely, 

L1tfr-. 
/' . . Fbfl/ 

Bruce R. Storrs, P.L.S. 
City and County Surveyor 
qty and County of S<m Francisco 
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010. AB ............._ ________ _ LOT ----------.--

PROJECT TYPE: 2 LS --- ·-----·-·-----
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o NO. OF EXISTING UNITS (NC· only):_. __ .;_.· --'---­
(CFCO REQUIRED) 

e. REDEVELOPMENT: YES r~---J 
L_. 

NO 

· .. 2.~. 2--~. 1t RECEIVED DATE:: 
. (SEE BSM DATESTAMP) 

D 

YEAR 
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LO$-IN BY. Y. . . · . 
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Ci!Y and Coun!Y of San Francisco 

June 4, 2014 

Application for Parcel Map I Final Map SubdivlSioh 

Director of Public Works 
1155 Market Street, 3rd Floor 
San Francisco, CA94103 

Dear Sir: 

Department of Public Works 

In compliance with the California Subdivision Map Act, the:san Francisco Subdivision Code, the San 
Francisco Subdlvisibn Regulations, arid all amendments theretb, I/we,. the undersigned sLibdivider .. or 
agent, hereby submit to you for your review and processing a pr9posed Parcel Map I Final Map 
Application and ·CheQklist and all applicable· items, fee, documents and data checked thereon. 

Respectfully, 

Attachment: Application Pa.cket 

Pare.el Map I Fi.nal Map Appliqation (March 31, 2010) 
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City and County of San Francisco Department of Public Works 

D. APPLICATION FOR PARCEL MAP I FINAL MAP SOBDIVISION 

Property.Address: Bernal Heights Boulevard (Vacant Lot) 

Assessor's Block: 5640 Lot. Number(s): 01 O 

E-'mail: 

Existing number of lots: 1 Proposed number of lots:4 

Thi"s subdivisipn reswlts in an airspac;e: NO 

STATE Oj= CALIFORNIA 
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

For DPW·BSM use only 

10 No., B.2.. 5 :-r 

-.t... 
c..... 
~ 
I 

t.O 

" :Jr 

r.:£1 
+-

I (We) 1360-1364 Stevenson Street, LLC, a California limited liability company; 

:JJ 
rn 
(') 
fT1 

< 
frJ 
c 

declare, under pena:tty of perjury, that I am (we are) the 9wner(s) [authorized agerit of ~he owner(s)] of 
the property that is the subject of this application, that the statem~nts herein and in the attached exhibits 
present the information required fer this applic;ation, and the information presented is true and correctto 
the best of my (our) knowlec;lge and belief 

Date: -.f-..9?~1 lf-'---1--'--L_.__i _ 
I I 

New Coristruction.·condominiurn Application (March 31, 201.0) 
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City and County of San Frrutcisco Department of Public Works 

D. APPLICATION FOR PARCEL MAP I FINAL MAP SUBDIVISION 

Property Address: Bernal Heights Boulevard (Vacant Lot) 

. Assessor's Block: 5640 Lot Number(s):_Qj_Q 

E-mail: 
. I "··"', 

Existing number oflots: 1 Pro7§ed nt.im~~: of lots: .2'. 

This subdivision results in a.1:1 ai(space: NO ~\...," · 
"-..__ 

'"···-,., "·-. 

STATE OF CA[.IFORNlA · 

/ 
I 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

For DPW-BSM use only 

. 'ID No.:,3;ts~ 

...:... 
·N" 

~ 
-< 
N 
o:'J , 
:x 
w -<.rt w 

I (We) 1360-1364 Stevenson Street, LLC, a California limited liabilify company, 

::0 
fT1 
0 
rn 
< rn 
0 

declare, under penalty of perjury, that I am (We are) .the owiler(s) [authorized agent of the owner(s)J of 
the property that is the.subject of this application, that the statements herein and in the attached exhibits 
present the· information req.uired for this application;. and the information presented is .true and correct to 
the be.st of my (our) knowli:idge and belief. 

Date: 5 / ZA J Wl LI 
I / I 

1390-1364 Stevenson Street, LLC, a California limited 
· liability company 

Slgned:~·-+f~ 
iaran Harty, Manager 

New Construction Condomhiium Applibatidn (March 31, 201 O) 
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City and County of San Francisco 

RECE.tVEO· 

Phone: (415) 554-5827 
Fax: (415) 554-5324 

www.sfdpw.org 
Subdiliision.Mapplng@sfdpw.org 

·14 JUN -9. PH 2: 41 .. 
Department of Public.Works 

Office-of the City and County Surveyor 

Edwin M. Lee, Mayor 
Mohammed. Nuru .. Director 
Fuad S. Sweiss, PE, PLS, . 

City Engineer & Deputy Director of Engineering 

June 3, 2014 

Herzig & Berlese 
414 'Gough Street; Suite 5 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

Dear Mrs. Berlese: . 

Project ID: . 
.Project Type: 

Address·# 

NIA 

, 

1155 Market Street,. 3•d Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94'103 

Bruce R. Storrs, City and County Surveyor 

8257 

2 Lot Subdivision 
Street Name Block Lot 
40 Bernal Heights 5640 010 
.Slvd 

This is to inform you that the application package, which you submitted to this agency, is incomplete. The 
following items are to be revised as. indicated below in ord_er to continue the processing of this application: 

• Provide revised Applfcation. 
o The D. q.pplication and. the propo.sition "M" findings form· show·that the purpose of this project 

is to subdivide one lot It in to two lots. However the-Tentative Map submitted with the 
application shows· four lot subdivis.ions. 

• Our reproduction and mail service will =not accept envelopes except #1 O regular envelopes with 
rounded gummed flap. The envelopes provided with the application are not the proper envelopes 
requested per D.PW applicatrons. 

Please submit all items in one complete_pa_ckage. 

Pursuant to the Subdivis'ion Map Act and the San Francisco Subdivision Code, this application is deemed 
incomplete until the above· referenced items are provided. Any mandated Agency time frames, if applicable, 
shall not commence until all missing items have been submitted. 

NOTE: These items must be submitted within 1 O business days of the date of this letter or this 
application will b·e returned and the project will be terminated. 

Should you have any questions; please do not hesitate to call.our office at (415) 554,.:5827. 

Sincerely, 

(~1~l~~-
8'ruce R. Storrs, PLS ()-----· 
City and County Surveyor 
City and County of San Francisco 

cc: Daniel Westover - Westover Surveying 

IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF f.IFE IN SAN FRANCISCO 
Customer Service Teamwork 
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· . / RECEIVED 
GlFidelity National Title ComPi'.a.DY.y' 

2 . r. n.Al 8 PM ~: 53 
PRELIMINARY REPORT 

In response to the application for a policy of title insuranqe referenced herein, Fidelity National Title Company 
hereby reports that it is_ prepared to issue, or cause to be isi';ued, as of the date hereof, .a policy .or policies of title 
insurance ·describing the land and the estate or interest therein hereinafter set forth, insuring against toss which 
may be sustained by reason of any defect, lien or encumbrance not shown or referred to as an exception herein or 
not 13xcfud13d from coverage pursuant ti). the prinfeij Sc/Jeqales, Conditions anq Stfpufations or Conditions of said 
policy forms. 

The printed £xceptions and Excfusions .frorn the cove[9ge and Limitations on covered Risks of said policy or 
policies are se.t forth in Attachment One. The policy to b& .issued may contain an arbitration clause. When the 
Amount of Insurance is less than that set forth in the arbitration clause,· all arbitrable matters shall be arbitrated at 
the option of either the Company or the Insured as the exclusive remedy of the parties. Limitations on Covered 
Risks applicable to the CLTA and' ALTA Homeowners Policies of Title Insurance which establish a Deductible 
Amount and a Maximum Dollar Limit ofUabl!ity for certain coverages are also set forth in Attachff!ent One. Copies 
of the policy fonns shOuld beread. They are availableftom the office which issued this report. 

This report (and any supplements or amendments hereto) is issued solely for the purpose of facilitating the 
is_suance of a policy of .title 1nsl1rance and no liability is assumed hereby.. !fit is desired fhflf !i1;1bility be assumed 
prior to the issuance of a policy of title insurance, a Binder or.Commitment should be requested. 

The po/icy(ies) of title insurance to be issued hereunder wifl be policy(ies) of Fidelity National Title Insurance 
Company, a California.corporation. · 

Please read the exceptions shown or referred to. herein and· the exceptions and exclusions set forth in 
Attachment One of this report carefully. The exceptions and exclusions are meant to provide you with 
notice of matters which are not covered under the terms ·at the title insurance policy and should be 
carefully considered. · 

/tis important to· note· that this preliminary report is not a written representation as to the condition of title 
and maynot list altliens, detects: and encumbrances affecting title to the land. 

Countersigned By: 

.CLTA Preliminary Report. Form - Modified (11.17 .. 06) 
SCA0002.402.doc r Updated: 04.24, 14 

Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. 
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Visit Us on our W~bslte:. www.fntio.com 

9-Fidelity National Title Company 
ISSUING OFFICE: 2150.John Glenn Drive, suae #300, Concord, CA.94520 

FOR SETTLEMENT INQUIRIES; _CONTACT: 
Fidelity National Title Company 

1388 Sutter.Stree~ Suite 1200 • San Francisco, CA94109 
(415)563-3500. • FAX (415)563-0103 

Another Prompt Delivery From Fide/ityNational :Title Company TitlE1 Department 
Where Local Experien(:e And Experlis~ Make A Difference 

PRELIMINARY REPORT 

Title Officer: James. Jack 
Title No.; FSFM-3031400488-Jj 

TO: Herzig & Ber1$se · 
414 Goagh Street, Suite#5 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Attn: Jessica McAree 

Escrow Officer: Glenda Corkery 
E-Mail-: GCorkery@fnf.com 

Escrow No.: FSFM-3031400488 -GC 

PROPERTY ADDRESS(ES): Lot 10; Block 564:0 (Bernal Heights), S;;in Franci~co, CA 94110 

EFFECTIVE DATE: April 21, 2014 at 07:30Allli 

The form of policy or policies of title insurance contemplated by this report is: 

ALTA Loan Poliey"2006 

1. THE ESTATE OR. INTEREST IN THE LANO HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED OR. REFERRED TO COVERED 
BY THIS REPORT IS: 

AFee 

2. TITLE TO SAID ESTATE.ORINTERESTATTHEDATE HEREOF lSVESTED. iN: 

1360-1364 Stevenson Street1 LLC, a California Limited Liability Company 

3. THE LAND REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

SEE EXHIBIT-"A" ATIACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF 

CLTA Pre!lmlnary Report Forf!l -.Modified (11.17;06). 
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For APN/Parcel ID(s):. Lot 10, Slock 5640 

EXHIBIT "A" 
Legal Description 

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN'THE CITY OF SAN FRANCISCO, COUNTY OF 
SAN FRANC.ISCO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND IS DESCRIB!=D AS· FOLLOWS: 

Beglmiing at t!Je point of intersection of the Northerly line of Powhatten Avenue with the Easterly line of 
Rosenkranz Street and thence running Northerly along said line of Rosenkranz Street 23.121. feet to the 
Southeasterly line of Bernal Heights BouleYard from Powhatten Street arid Nevada Street to Bradford Street, etc.", 
recorded July 11, 1949 in Map 13ook''P" at Page ·s.o in the Office of the. Recorder of the City and County of San 
Francisco, State of California; thence running Northeasterly along said line of Bernal Heights Boulevard on the arc 
of a curve to the left whose tangetit .deflects 7'1: 02' 16'1, the preceding co.urse. with radius 425 feet, central angle 

.10° 32' 16" a distance of 78:·166 feet; thence runni'ng Northeasterly on th.e preceding curve 62.310 feet; thence · 
running thence Northeasterly on the arc ofa curve to the right tangent to the preceding course with radius 285 
feet, central angle 2° 56' 49;', a distance of 15.173 feet·to the Westerly line of Carver Street; thence deflecting 115° 
33' 11" to the right from the tangE;'lnt to the preceding curve and runnlng Southerly along said line of Carver Street 
90.536 feet to said Northerly lfne of Powhattan Avenue 140 feet to the point of beginning. 

Being Lots 1139and1141 and portions of Lots 1135, 1136, 1137, 1138and1140, Gift Map N6. 3 
. ~.,,.,,.- .,,..,..--·~ _....... _,,_..--- -----
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Title.No.: FSFM-3031400486-JJ 

AT THE DATE HEREOF; EXCEPTIONS TO COVERAGE IN ADOlTION TO. THE PRINTED EXCEPTIONS AND 
EXCLUSIONS IN SAID POLICY FORM WOULD BE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Property taxes, which are a lien not yet due and payable·, including any assessments collected with taxes 
to be levied for the fiscal ·year 2014-20'.)5. 

2. The herein described property lies within th~ boundaries of a Mello ·Roos Community Facilities District 
("CFO"), as follows: 

CFD No: 901 
For: School Facility, Repaii: arid Maintenance 

Thl.s property, along with all other parcels.in the CFO, is liable foran annual special tax. This special tax is 
included with and payable with the·general property taxes of the. City and County of San Francisco. The 
tax may not.be prepaid. .. · 

Further infonnation.may be obtained by contacting: 

Chief Financial Officer 
San Francisco Unified School .. District 
i 35 Van Ness Ave. - Room 300 
San Francisco; .CA 94:102 
Phone (415) 241-6542 

3. The lien of supplemental or escaped assessnients of property taxes, if any, made pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 3.5 or Part 2, :Chapter 3, Articles. 3 and 4 respectively (commencing with Section 75) 
of the Revenue arid Taxation Code ofthe State of Califorhla as a. resl)lt of the transfer of t1tl'e to ·the vestee 
named in Schedule A; or as a result of changes in ownership or new construction occurring pr!or to date of 
policy. 

4. A deed of trust to secure an ·indebtedness in the c;imount shown below, 

Amount: 
. Dated: 
Trustor/Graritor 
Trustee; 
Beneficiary: 
Loan No.: 
Recording Date: 
Recording No.: 

$325,000.00 
October 17, ;?.013 
1360-1364 Steverison,Street, LLC, a California Limited. liability Company 
Fidelity National Title.lnsuranc;e Company 

· First Rep.ubl!c Bank 
22-51415.4-4 
Octciqer 22, 2013 
2013-J774225~00, Reel L0'0.8, Image 0202, Official Records 

5; Any rights of:the parties in possession of a portion of; or .all of; said Land, which rights. are not disclosed by 
the.public records. 

The Companywill require, for review, a full and complete copy of any·unreGQrded agreement, contract, 
license and/or lease, together with all supplementr:;, assignments and amendments thereto, before issuing 
any policy of title insurance without excepting this item from coverage. 

The Company reserves the right to except additional items and/or make additional requirements after 
reviewing said documents. 

6. Matters whi9h may be disclosed by.an lnspeGtibn and/or by a correct AL TA/ACSM Land Title Survey of 
said Land that is satisfactory to.the Company, an.d/or by inquiry of the parties in possession thereof. 

CLTA Preliminary Report f©rrn - Mocflfied (11.17.06) 
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EXCEPTIONS 
(contlhued) 

Title No.; FSFM-3031400486-JJ 

7. The Company will require the following .documents.for review prior to the issuance of any title assurance 
predicated upon a conveyance or encumbrance from tne entity named below. · 

Limited liability Company: 1360-1364 Stevenson Street •. LLC; a California limited liability company 

a. A copy ofits operating agreement, jf any, and any and all amendments, supplements .and/or 
modifications thereto .• certified by the appropriate manager or member. 

b, If a dome~tip Limited Liability Company, a copy of its Articles of Organization and all E!ITiendment 
thereto with the appropriate filing stamps. · 

c. If the Limited Liability Company is member-managed a full and complete current list of members 
certified bythEi appropriate manag.er or member. 

d. If the Limited Liability Company was formed in a forelgnjurisdiction, evidence, satisfactory to the 
Company that it was validly formed,· i$ in good standing and authorized to do business in the state 
of origin. 

e. If less than all members, ormanagers, as appropriate,. will be executing the closing documents, 
furnish evidence of the authority of those signing. 

The Company reserves the" right to add additional items or make further requirements a~er review of the 
requested documentation. 

8. The Company will.require that an Owner's Affidavit be completed by the party(s) named below before the 
issuance of any policy of title insurance. · 

Party(ies): 1360~1364 Stevenson Street, ll-C, a .Califomia Limited Liability Company 

The. Company reserves the right to add additional items or make further requirements after review of the 
requested Affideivit. · 

9. The transaction contemplated in connection with this Report is sut>Ject to the review and approval of the 
Company's Corporate Underwriting Department. The Company reserves the right to add additional items 
or make further requirements after such review. 

CLTA Preliminary Report Form - Modified (11.17.06) 
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Note 1. 

·Note 

Note 2. 

Note.3, 

· Note4. 

Note 5. 

Title No.: FSFM-303140.0488-JJ 

NOTES 

Note: Property taxes for the fiscal year.shown below are PAID. For proration purposes the amounts 
Were: 

Tax ID No.:· 
Fiscai Year: 
1st lnstallm13nt: 
2nd Installment: 
Exemption: 
"Land: · 
lrriprcivements: 
Personal Pcoperty: 
Code Area: 
·smNp.: 

Lot 10, Block 5640 
2013-2014 
$5,6~'9.71 
$5',~W.71 
$0.00 
$941.114.00 
$0.bO 
$Q.OO 
·1000 
157652 

Prior to close of escrow, please contac~ t~e Tax; Collector's Of.fice to confirm all amounts .owing; 
including current fiscal year taxes, supplememtal taxes, escaped assessments and any delinquencies. 

Note: The only conveyance(s) affectfr:ig said Land, ·wnlch recorded within 24 months of the date of 
tt)is report, ;:ire as follows: · 

Granter: David M. Poulsen, a married man1 as his: sole and separate property and Kareen 
L. Poulsen, a married woman, as her sole and separate property, who acquired title as an unmarried 
woman · 
Grantee( 1360-1364 Stevenson Street, UC, a California Limiteq Liability Company 

·Recording Date: October·22, 2013 
Recording No.: 2013.j774224-00, Reel Lboa·, Image 02:01, .Qfficial Records 

Your application for title insurance was· placed by refere.nce to· on!y a street-address .or tax 
identification number; Based on our records, we believe that theJegal description in this report covers 
the parcel(s) of La:nd ttiat you requested. If tM le·gal descriptlbn is incorrect, the sel!e.r/borrower must 
notify the Company and/or the settlement company in order to prevenf errors and to be certain that.the 
correct parcel(s) of Landwill appear.on any documents.to be-recorded in connection with this 
transaction and on the polir;:y·oftitle ins!Jr.ance. 

If a county recorder,, title.insurance cqr,npany, esc~ow company, real estate broker, real estate.agent 
or association provides a copy of a declaration, governing document or deed to any person, California 
law requires tnat the document P-roviped sh al! include a st!'lternent regarding any unlawful restrictions. 
Said statement is to be in at least 14-point bold face type antj may be stamped on the first page of any · 
dqcument provided or inclµ.ded as a cover page attached to the requested document. Sh·0uld a party 
to this transaction request a copy of any document reported herein that fits this category, the 
statement is to be included in the manner described. 

Any documents being executed in conjunction with this. transaction must be signed in the presenc~ of 
an authorized Company employee;. an authorized employee of an agent, an authorized employee of 
the insured lender, or.by using Bancserli or other approved thlrd•party.service. ifthe above 
requiremehtt? cannot !;le met, please 'i;:a!I the company at the number provided in this report. 

END OF NOTES 
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NOTICE 

You may be entitled to receive a Twi;inty And No/100 Dollars ($20.00) di!;lcount on escrow services ifyou 
purchased, ·sold or refinanced Jesidential property lh California between May 19, 1995 and November 1, 2002. If 
you had more than on.a qualifying transaction, you may be entitled to multiple discounts. 

If your previous transaction involved the same property that is subject ofyour current transaction, you do not have. 
to do anything; the Company will. provide the discount, provided you are paying for escrow or title services in this 
transaction. ' 

If your previous transaGtiori involved property different from the property that is subject of your current transaction, 
you must - prior to. the close of the current transaction - inform the Company of the earlier transaction, provide the 
address of the property involved in the previous transaction,. and the date or approximate date that the escrow 
closed to be eligible for the discount. 

Unless you inform the Company of the prior transaction on property that is not the subject ·of this transaction, the 
Company has no obligation to conduct ah investigation to determine if yoµ qualify for a discount. If you provide the 
Company Jnformation concerning a prior transaction, the Company is required to determine if you qtialify for a 
discoUht which is subjectto other terms and conditions. 

AG Setliement Discount Notlce 
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Orcfoi' No.! FSFM-3031400488--GC 

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL 
. PRIVACY.NOTICE 

Eff.ecti've: ~ariuary 24, 2014 

Fidelity Natlonal Financial, Inc .. and its m<1Jority-owned subsidiary· companies: providing real estate-· and loan-related services (collectively, 
!'FNF~, "our' or ''w~·~ respe_ct i;in.d are commiti:ed .to prc;itecting ·your privacy, This Privacy Notice lets you know haw. and for what purposes 
your Personal lnformatidn (!'Is· defined tierein) is beihg collected, processed ana used 'by FNF.. We pledge that we will take reasonable .step:> 
(o ensure ttiat your Person~l Information wi!I ol)ly be,used in.ways that !'Ire in compllancewith this Privacy Notice. 

This Privacy Notice Is only ln effect tor any generic Information and Personal lnforrrialii:m cbllected·arid/or owned by FNF, Including collection 
through any fNF wetisite·and any on.line teatures, servlce.s 11n!llor prggrams offered by FNF (collectively, the "Website"). This Privacy Notice 
is not applicable. to any other web p<iges, mobile applications, social media sites, eniall lists, generic Information or Personal Information 
collected ancj/or owned by anrentlty other than FNF. · · 

Coilection and Use of Information . 
The types of personal rnformation.FNF collects may include,.among otherthings:(collectively, "Personal rnformation"); (1) contact information 
(e.g., name, ·address, phone n.uniber; eman adqress); (2) demographic lnforrn.atron (e,g.; date of birth, gender marital status); (3) Internet 
protocol (or IP) address or device ID/UDID_i -(4) social seturlty number (SSN), student ID (SIN), driver!s license, passport, and either 
government ID numbers;·(5) financ;ial <1ccountinforma,tion; and (S) !~formation re~aled to,offenses or crimin~I canviclions. 

In the course· of our business, we m~y collect Personal Information about you .from. the following sources; 
'Applications or other form!> we re.celv!:! from you or your authorized· r.epreseritatlve; 
Information we receive:fromyou through the Website: 
Information about-your .transactions with .or ser\ilces performed by us, our affiliates, or others; arid . 
From consumer or other reporting agencies.and. ):lubllc records maintained by governmental entities that we ·either· obtain directly. from 
those entities, or fro!JI our affill<:1tes or others. · · 

.lnforma,tion coll9pted by .FNF .is used for three l')'laln purposes;" . 
• To provide products. and services to' yciu or :one or more .third party sef.vice providers {collectively, '!Third· Parties") who are obtaining· 

services on your behalf or !n connectfon with-a.tr:ansa.ction iil:volving you. 
To improve-our products anti services tliat we perform for you or for Third Parties .. 
To communicate· with you and fo _inform you·about FNF's; FNF's affiliates and·lhlrd parties' products and services. 

Additional Wavs Information Is Collected Thr'ougtHhe Website . 
Browser Log Files. our ser.vers automatically log· each vislfor to ihe Website and collect and record certain information about.each visitor. 
This informatfon may indude !P address, browser lanQ.Uage, b,rowser.type, operating system, domain names,.browsing hlsto~ (lncludlng time 
spenhf a domain, ·ume ano date of)'ciur visi\), -referrin·gtexit web ·pag.es and· URLs, ahd numb·er of clicks. The. domain name and IP address 
reveal nothing personal .ai;Jol!t the user.ot~er than the· IP address from which the user has-accessed the Website. . 

Cookies. From. time. to titne, FNF or·other third parties may send .. a ''cookie" to your computer. A cookie is a -small piece of data t11at is .sent 
to your Internet browser :from a web server and stored on your ·compute~s· hard drive and that can be re-sent to the serving website on 
subsequent vl~ils. A cookie, by. itself, cianri"ot r'\)ad other d!Jfa ·froni your hard dii;;k ·or. read other cookie files already on your computer.. A. 
cookie, by itself, does not damage your system. We, our.advertisers and other third· parties may use cookies to Identify and keep .track of, 
among other things, those areas of tfle Website and thir~:f party websites thlilt:YoU have visited in ·the past In order to enh~mce yqur next visit to 
the Website. You can choose whether or not to accept cookies by chanl)lng :the· setlings of your Internet brows·er, but some functrohallty of 
the Website may be impaired or not fupc!fon 11s intended. See the Thjrd Party·.Opt Out section below; 

Web Beacons. Some of our web pages and electronic communications may contain images, which may or may not be vislble to you,_ known 
as·Web Beacons (sometimes referred to as·"clear gifi\11

) •• Web Beacons collect only limlted. In.formation th<il includes.a cookie number; time 
and date ofa page view; and a 'description of the page on.which the Web -Beacon resides .. We may ·also carry Web Beaco·ns placed by third 
party advertisws: These Web Beacon·s do not carry any Personal Information and are only used fo track usage of the Website and ·activities 
associated with the Website. See the.Third Party Opt Out section below, 

Unique Identifier. We may assign you a unique iniern~I fdeotifier to help keep track of your future vlslts. We may use this information to 
gather aggregate demographic· iriforrnation about our·visltoi's, and We may use it· to personalize 'the information you see on the Website arid 
some of the electrorilc communications you receive fi'om ·us. We ·keep itils Information .for our Internal use, and this information is not shared 

. With others. 

Third Party 0-pt Out. Altliou!;Jh·we do not pr.esently, in the "future-we may.allow third-party companies to serve advertisements and/or collect 
certain -anonymous information when you visit the Website. These companies may use· non~personally Identifiable Information (e.g., click 
stream information, browser type, time and date, subject of advertisements·ciicked or scrolled over.) during your visits to ttie Website in order 
to provi\le advertisements ab.out products and services. llk11ly to be of greater Interest to you. These. companies typically use a cQokie or third 
party Web Beacon to collect thfs information, as 'further·described above. Through these technologjes-.. the third l)arty may have access to 
an\I use nor:i-petsonalized inform!'ltion about your onlfne usa11e activity. 

Privacy Slalerpent 
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PRIVACY NOTICE 
.(continued) 

You oan .opt-out of.online:behavloral services throu·gh any one of the Ways· described below. After yo4 opt-out,.y.ou may· continue 10.ret;eiye 
advertisements, but those a_dvertisernents wUI no. longer be as reievant io·you, · · 
• You can opt-out via th_e Network Advertising :Jnitiatiile iridjjstry opt-out at.http://www.nl!tworkadvertlslng-.org/. 

You can opt-out via the. Cqnsumer Choice Page at www.aboutads.info. 
For.those In the U.K., you can i:ipt-ouf:ilia .the ·1AB -UK's iridustcy qpt-out at www.youronlinechoices.com. 
You can conjigure your web .browser (Chrome, Firefox,_ Internet Explorer, Safari, etc.). to delete and/or control ttie use of cookies, 

More infotm<!tion can be found in the Help system o(your·browser •. Note: If you opt-out.as described above, you.should not d~leteyour 
cookies. ff you delete.yoilr:cookies; you will need to opfout-again. · 

When Information Is Disclosed By FNF 
We may provide. your .Personal lnforrn1:1tion (excluding ·fnfo_rmation we. r:eceive .fron:i consumer :cir -other credit reporting agencies) to various 
individuals and companies, as permitted by Jaw, without obtainin9 your _pricirautharization. Such laws do not allow consumers to restrict 
th.ese disclosures, DI!ic\os.l!res m_1;1y in.ci:ude, w~hout llmltci!lon. the followliig; · 

To .agents, brokers, representatives, cir others to provide you with se!Vices you have .requested, and to enable us to detect.or prevent 
:crirninal:activlty, frauc;I, materlal.misrepresentatiqn, or npndlsclosl!re in connection wUh.an insurance transaction; 
To third-party contractors or. service.providers who prolilde serilices or perfor.rn i:nai'keti[ig services. or otlier functions o.n our'behalf; 

·•· To Jaw enforcement.er oiher governmental authority in connection with an investlgatlon,.·or:Clvil :or criminal subpoenas or-court orders; 
and/or · 
To lenc;lers,. lien holders; judgment creditors, or other· parties claiming an encumbrance or an interest in tlUe whose claim or interest must 
be determined, settred, paid.or releai;ed prio~ to a title or.e¢cr0w closing. · 

In adc;lition to. the 9ther times when we mighi disclose information about you, we might also disclose information when requir.ed by law or In 
the good,faith belief that such.c;llscioslire ls h.$c;essafy tq: (1) cor]lply Wi.!h .a legal proces5·or applicatile·iaws; (2) enforce t~is Priv.acy Notice; 
(3) respond to ·claims that any. materials, doc1Jrnents, Images, .gra:phit:s, logos'; designs, audio, video .and any other information provided by 
you violates the rights of third. parties; or (4) proteci {he rigMs, property orpersomll safety ofFNF, ifs users or the public . 

.We maintain reasonable safeguards tO keep the Personal Information that. Is disclosed' to us secure. We provide Personal Information a_nd 
non·-perso[lal li:ifgrmatlon to ·oi,ir subsidiaries, affili?ted CQmPf!.ni.es, and .other l:;Jusiiw1?Ses pr persons for the purposes of proi::esslng such· 
information on our behalf and promoting tiie· services of our·trosted business p·artners, some or all of Which may store your information on 
seivers outs.Ide qf ttie Uniteyd States, we req1,1ire that :tflese parties ;;igree. to process such Information In comP.liance with our Privacy· Notice 
or fn a simtlar, inciustr:y-standaril. rnanher, and We use reasonable. efforts to limit their use- of such information and to use -other appropriate 
confident[ality <ind ·security measures. Ttie us.e-.of your information by qne of our trusted pusiness partners may be subject. to that parfy's· own 
Privacy Notice. We do not, however, dis.close information we·collect from consumer ·or credit reporting agencies with our affiliates or.others 
without your consept, In conformi~ with appll(:able law, u.nless,such disclosure is: otherwise permitted by law. 

We also reserve the .right to .dis.close Personal Information and/or non-Personal lnform·auon to take precautions against liability, investigate 
anc:! defe.nd against: <1nY third:par!Y cl<i!im.s or allegations, assist .government enforcem.ent agencies, protect the securify or integrity of the 
Website, and protect-the rights-, property, or personal safety of FNF,:our.users or others. 

We reserve th.e right to .transfer your Personiil Information .. as. well as. any. other·infOrrnation, in connection with the sale .or other disposition of 
air or part of the FNF .business and/or assets. We also cannot make any representations regarding the use or transfer of your Personal 
Information or other Information that we .may have Jn the event ,ofqur bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, receivership or an assignment 
for the benefit of creditors, and you expressly agree .arid cohseri(to the Lise arid/or trarisfer ·of your Person·a1 ·information or other !nforlT]atlon 
in connection with :a sale or .transfer of some or-alf ofour assets in any oflhe above described proceedings. Furthermore, we cannot and wlll 
not be respon·slble for any oreach of seclirlty by any third parties or f9r any actions ·of any third parties that receive any of the Information !hat 
i& disclosed t.o us. · · . 

Information from Children 
We ·do not ccillec:t Personal Information from any per.son thaf we khow· to be under the age of thirteen (13). Specifically~ the Website ls not 
Intended qr desig(led. to atlf'i!l_ct ChiJqren un,der the. age ·~f thirte13n (13);_ You affirm· that you <!re e>ith.er rnqre th~n 1 B years of age, or an 
emanCipated minor, or possess legal parental or guardian consent; and ·are fully able and competent to enter Into the terms. conditions, 
obliga!ions, aff[rniatlonii, r13pr0sentations, andwarranties se\ forth in th(s P.rlvacy Notice, and to abide by ?tnd comply with this Privacy Noti~. 
In any case •. you affirm that'you are over the age of 13, .as: THE WEBSITE IS NOT INTEND.ED FOR CHILDREN UNDER 13 THAT ARE 
UNACCOMPANIED·aYHIS OR HER PARENT.OR LEGAL GUARDIAN. 

Parents· snould be aware tl)a~ FNF's Privacy Notice will goverri our use of Personal ll)forrniiltlon, but als.o that ih{o(mation that ·1s voluntar.ily 
glv.en .by chfldren - or others - In email exchanges, bulletin .boards ·or the like may be used by. other pa_rtles to gen·erate unsolicited. 
communications. FNF encourages all parents to instruct their ·phlldren In the safe and responsible use of their Personal Information while 
using the Internet, 

Privacy Outside the Website 
The Website· may contain Various Jinks to ·other wetisites .. inclOdirig links ·fo various third party se_rvice provlilers. FNF is hot an·d. ca11not. be 
responsible for the privacy practices -0r tlie content- of any of those other websites. Other than under agreements with certain reputable 
organizations and companies, and except fort.hlrd pany service providers whose ser.vices either we use or you voluntarily elect to utilize, we 
do not share any of the Personal Information thaf :y0u provide to us wlfh any of the websites. to which the Website Jinks, although we .may 
share aggregate, nori~Personaf lriforniation: With tf'u;ise other' third partle·s. Please che9k with those website!! ·in order to determine their 
privacy policies and your rights under them. 

Privacy Statement 
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PRIVACY NOTICE 
(cpntihued) 

European Union Users 
-If you are .a·cftizeh of tlie European l)nion, please note that we may .transfer your Personal :Information ·outside 1he European Union for use for 
iany of !IJe purpose·s described ·1n this Privacy Notice .. By providing FNF with your Personal lrifortnation, _you cons(lnf fo both our collection 
and .sucfl transfer ofyour Personal Information in accordance with this Privacy Notice. · 

Choices with Your P.ersonal Information . 
Whether yoµ submit Personaf. ·]nformation to FNF is entirely· up to you. You may decide not to submit Personal lnforma:lion, in which case 
FNF may not be able lo provide certain services or products to you. · 

You· may choose to prevent FNF from disclosing or using your Personal Information under certain circumstances ("opt out''). You may opt out 
of any -disclosure. or use of your Personal ·1nformatloil for purpiises that are incompatible with the purpose(s) for which it 'was originally 
collected or for which y9u subsequently gave authorization by notifying us by one of the methods at the end of this Privacy Notice. 
Furthermore, even where your Personal Information is.to be dtsclosed and use~ iri. accbrdance with the $lated purposes ·in _this Privacy 
Notice, you may· elect-to opt out of such-disclosure to and use by a third patty· that is not actlnll as an.agent of FNF. As ·described above, 
there are some .USEµ; from which you canriot-opt-out. 

Please note th al op.ting .out of. the: disclosure and use of your P.ersonal lriformation as: a prospective employee. may prevent you from being 
hired as an e!Tiployee· by FNF ta· !lie :extent thatprovlslcm of your Peraorial Iii formation Is required to apply.for an Qpen position. 

If FNF .colfe.cts Personal Information from .you, such lnfonnatlon Wiil not be dlS:ckised. or used b5'. FNF for· purposes .that are lncompalible with 
the pLirp_Ol!ll(s) for which it· was origlnal!Y collecteii or for-which you subsequently gave authorization unless you affirmatively .con::;ent to such 
disclosure and use: 

You may opt out of online behavioral advertising oy·foilowing the Instructions set forth above under the above sectioli ''Additional Ways That 
Information Is Collected Throug_h tlie Website," subsection "Third Patty Opt Out." 

. Access and Correction 
To access your Personal. Information in the possession of FNF and correct lnac:Curacies ·of that Information In ounecords, please corifact us 
in the manner specified at the end of this Privacy Notice. We ask, Individuals to- identify themselves and the lnforrnatior:i requested to be 
accessed and· amended before processing such· requests, and we may decline to process requests In limited circumstances. as permitted by 
applicable prlV!!GY legislation~ · · · · 

Your California Privacy Rights, 
Under Califomia's "ShJne the Light'' law, Callfbroia re.sidents who· provide certain· .personally. ldentilial:/le Information In connection with 
obtaining prodtictS or servjces for· per~onal,_ family or household ilse a·re entitled to request and ·obtain from us onc·e a calendar yeai' 
Information· about the customer information we:shared, if any, with other businesses for their own direct marketing u.ses. If applicable, this 
information would include the categories of cu1>fomer "information and the naines and addresses of those businesses with which we shared 
customer information for the immediately priot-calenciar yeade.g., requests made in 2013 will receive information regarding 2012 sharing 
actlvilies). · · 

T-0 obtain this infpmu:itlon ·on behalf of FNF,. please sencl an email message to ·privacy@fnf;com with "Request f~r California Privacy 
Information" In the subject llnei .and in the body of Yo.Ur message. We ·wm provide the requested information to you at your email address in 
response. 

Please be aware that not all Information sharing is covered by the "Shine the Light'' requirements and only information on covered sharing will 
be fncluded ·in our response. 

AQdltibnallY. because we m1:1y collect your Perso·nal Information from time to time, California's Online Privacy Protection Act requlres.u~ to 
disclose hoW we respond to· "do not track" requests an¢'.other slm.ilar mechanisms. Currently, our policy is that we do not recognize "do not 
traek" requests from· h;terriet brow!)ers and similar !l~vi~;;. 

Your Consent to'This Privacy Notice 
By submitting Personal Information to FNF,.you _qonsent tQ !he collection and use of information by· us as specified above. or as we otherwise 
see. flt. lncompliance with thfs .Privacy. Notice, unless· You ·inform us othel'Wlse by means of the procedure identified below. lf we decide to 
change tnls Privacy .Notice, we. wlll mak.e an ef(or! to post those :changes on the Website. Each time we. collect informatitln frol!l you following 
any amendment of.this Privacy Not!CE! will signify your assent to and aece11t<mce of !ts revised terms for all previously collected information 
and Information collected frani 'you in the future. We-may use comments; information or feedback that you may submit jn any manner th·at we 
may cho()se witho\Jt notice or c9mpensation ti> y_ou. 

It you have additional questions or commentS, please let us .know by sending your-comments or requests ta: 
Fidelity National Financial, Inc. 

'6.01 Rlverslqe Aye~µi;i 
J.ackson-;rllJe, Florida 32204 
Attn:.Chlef Privacy Officer 

(888) 934-3354 
prlvacy@fnf.com 

Copyright ©2014. Fidelity National Financial, Inc. All Rights ResecVed. 

EFFECTIVE AS OF: JANUARY 24, 2014 I LAST UPDATED: JANUARY 24, 2014 

Prtvaoy Slatemeril 
SCAo002412.<;lac/ Updated: 02.03.14 
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ATTACHMENT ONE 

CALIFORNIA LAND TITLE ASSbCIA TION 
STANDARD COVERAGE POLICY-1990 

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 
The following matters are expressly excluded from the ~Ver<1ge of this policy and the Company will not pay lass or. damage, costs, attorneys' 
fees or expenses. whiCh arise by reason of: · · 
1. (a) Any. Jaw, ordinance or .governmental regulation· (Including but not limited to building and zoning laws, ordlnan~es, or reg1,1latlons} · 

restricting, regulating, prohibiting or relating {I) 1he r;iccupancy, use, or enjoyment of the. land; (ii) the. character, dimensions or 
location of any improvement now or hereafter· erected on j:he land;. (iii) a separation in ownership or a change in ·the dimensions or 
area of the lan.d or ·any parcel of which .the land is or was a· part; or (iv} environmental protection, of the effect .of. any violation of 
these'laws, ordinances or governmental regulations, except to the extent that a not\ce of the enforcement thereof or a notice of a· 
defect, lien or encumbrance resulting ·rrom a violation ·or alleged violation affecting the land has been recorded In th·e public records 
at Date of Policy: 

(b) Any governmental police power not excluqed by (a) above, except to ~he exten! that a .notice Of the exercise thereof or a notice ofa 
defect, lien er encumbrance resulting 1i;om a violatlcin or alleged violatlon affecting the land has been recorded In the public records 
af Date of policy, 

2. Rights of eminent dornaln unless notice of the exerci.se thereof has been recordeq in ·the public records at Date of P.olicy, but not 
excluding ·rrorn coverage any taking which has occurred prior to Date of Policy which would be binding on ·the rights of a purchaser for 
value without knowledge. · 

3. Defects, liens, encurnbr!lnces, adverse claims, or other matters: 
·(a) whether or not recorded in the public records at Date of Polley, but created, !>Uffered, assumed ·or agreed. to by'. the insured 
~~ . . 

(b) not known to the Company, not recorded In the public records at Date of Policy, bl.it known ·to the insured claimant and 'not 
disclosed In wr:iting to the Company by the Insured· claimant prior to ihe date the Insured claimant became an insured under this 
policy; 

(c) resulting in no loss or aamage tq \he insured claimant; 
(d) attachif!g or created subsequent to Date of Policy; or 

(e) resul!ir19 in .loss or damage which wou!d not have beeh sustaln.ed If the ln(lured claimant had p;:ild value for the insured mortgage or 
for the estate or interest ihsure~ by this policy. 

4. Unenforceabllity of the lien of the insured mortgage because of the inability or failure of the insured at Date of. P.olicy, or the inability or 
failure of any sub.sequent owner of the indebtedness, tp comply with tlie applicable doing business laws of the state 1.n which the land is 
situated. 

5. lnvaildltY or unenforceabillty of the· lien of the insured mortga1;1e; or .claim thereof, wriicti arises out of the transaction evidenced by ttie 
insured mortgage and rs based upon us!.JI)' or any consumer credit pfote<;\i.on or tru.th in.lending law. _ 

.6. Any claim, which arlses out of the transaction vesling in the insured. the estate. or interest insured by this pcif!cy or the transaction 
creating the interest of the insured lender, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy,· state insorvency or similar creditors' rights 
laws. 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE - SCHEDULE B; PART I 

This policy does not insure against loss or dam;:ige (and tlie Company will not pay costs,. attorneys' fees or expenses) which arise bY 
reas·on ot 
1. Taxes or assessments which. are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on 

real property or by the public records. Proceedings by .a public agen~ which ·may r.esult In tax~s ·or assessments, or notices of such 
proceedings, whether'or not shown by the records of such agency or b.y the public records, 

2. Any facts,. nghts, interests or claims which are ,not.shown by th~ public recori!s but which could be ascertained by an. inspection of the 
land or which may be asserted by persons· in possession ttiereof. 

3. Easemenis, Dens or encumbrances, or claims·thereof, not shown by the· public. records. 

4. Discrepancies, c.onfticts In boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, orany. other facts which a .correct survey would disclose, 
and whicli are. not shown by the public records. 

5. (a). Unpatented mining clalm5((b) reservations. or excer:;!ions· In patents or lh Acts authorizing !tie lssuahce thereof~ (c). water· rights, 
claims· or title to water, whether or not the rnatters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown.by the .. public records. 

6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material not shown by the public records. 

Attachment One (06103/11) 
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ATTACHMENT ONE 
(CONTINUED) 

CLT A HOMEOWNER'$ POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE (02-03-10) 
ALTA HOMEOWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSUAANCE (02-03~10) 

EXCLUSIONS 
In addition to the EXceptlons In Schedule B, You· are not in.sured ~galnst loss, casts, attorneys' fees; and expenses resulting from: 
1. Governmental police pr;iwer, and.the exlstenpe or·ViolaUon or !!lose portions of anflaw or 9overnmentregulatlon concerning: 

a. building; 
b •. zoning; 
c. land.use; 
d. improvements on the Land; 
e. land division; and 
f, environmental protection. 
This .Exclusion does not limltthe ~overage. de!lcribed irr Covered Risk 8.a., 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 23 or 27. 

2. The failure of Your ·existing structures,. or ·any part of them, to be constructed In accordance with· applicable building codes. This 
Exch,ision does not limit the coverage described In Covered .Risi<. 14 or 15. 

3. The right to take the Land by condemning it. Tlils Excllision·d9es not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 17. 

4. Risks: 
a. that are cr('1ated,. allowed, qi'' agreed to by You, whether or not they are·reccirded in' the Public Records:, 

. b.· that are Known to You at the-Policy Date, but not to.Us, unless 1hey' are recorded in the Public Records at the. Polley ~ate; 
c, th~t.result.in.nr;i loss to You; or 
d, that first occur after the policy.Date - ~his does.nqt limit the coverage df,)scribed in Covered Risk 7, 8.e., 25, 26, 27 or 28. 

5. Fallure to pay value for Your Title. 
6, Lack of a right: 

a. to any land outside the ai:ea specifically described and referred .to In paragraph 3 of Schedule A; and 
b. in· streets, alleys, or waterways that touch the Land. 
This· Exclusion does not limit the coverage descrlbed'in Covered Risk 11or21. 

7, The tran.sfer of 1he Title fo You ·is invalid as: a prefer.en!lal transfer or as a fraudulent transfer or conveyance under federal bankruptcy, 
state insolvency, or similar creditors' rlghts law's. · · · 

Attachment One (06/03/11) 
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ATTACHMENT ONE· 
(CONTINUED) 

LlMJTATIONS ON COVERED RISK$ 
Your insurance for the following Covered Risks Is ·limited on ·the Owner's Coverage Statement as 
follows: 

For Covered Risk 16, 18, 19and 2l, Your Deductible Amount and Our Maximum Dollar Limit of 
Liability shown in Schedule A. • 

The deductible amounts and maximum dollar limits shown on Schedule A are as·follows: 

.Covered· RiSk· 16:· 

Covered.Risk 18: 

Covered Risk 19: 

Covered Risk 21: 

Your Deductible Amount 

1.00% of Policy Amount Shown· in Schedule A 

$2,500.00 
(whichever is fess) 

or 

1.00% of Policy Amount S~own in Schedule A 
or 

$5,000.00 
(whicheveris less) 

1.00% of Policy.Amount Shown in.Schedule A 

$5,000.00 
(whichever is less} 

or· 

1.00% of Policy Amount Shown In Schedule A 
or 

$2,500.00 . 
(wh!cneveris less) 
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Our Maximum Dollar Limit of Llabllify 

$10,000.00 

$25;000.00 

$25,000.00 

$5,000.00 
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ATTACHMENT ONE 
(CONTINUED) 

AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
RESIDENTIAL TITLE INSURANCE POLICY (6-1-87)-

EXCLUSIONS 
In addition to the Exceptions lri Schedule B, you are not insured against loss, costs, attorneys' fees, l!nd ·expenses resulting from: 
1. Governmental PC11ice po\'ler, al)d the existence or violation of any law or government regulatlori. This Includes building and .zoning 

ordinances.and also laws.and regulations concerning: 
land use 

• · Improvements on the land 
land division 
environmental protection · 

Tllis exclusion does not apP.IY to violations or !he, enforcement of thes.e matters Which appear in the public records at policy date. 
This: exclusion does not limit the zoning coveras.e described Jn Items 12 and 13 of Covered Title Risks. 

2. The right fo take ihe lanc:l by co1Jc!emnlnQ it. unles.s: 
a notice ofexerclsing the right-appears in the public records on the Polley Date 
the iaki~g happened prior to the Policy Date and is binding· on you If you boughtthe land without knowledge of the taking 

s. Titl~ R.isl<s: 
lha.t are created, .alh;iwed, or agreed to bY you 
tiiat are known to you, but-not to· us, ori the Policy Date,unless 1hefappeared in the public records 
that result in no loss to ·YOLI · 
that first affect your·title after the. Polley· Date - this· does not limit the labor and material lien coverage in Item 8· of Covered Title 
Risks 

4. Fiiilure to pay value for your title: 
5. Lack .of a right: 

to any l~ncJ outs-Ide the:area speciflcallY. described and refe~red to in Item ~ of Schedule A 
or 

in streets, alleys .. or waterways that touch your land 
Tills exclusion does.not limit· the access coverage in Item 5 of Cpvered ntle Risks •. 

Attachmeni One (06/03/11) 
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AITACHMENT ONE 
(CONTINUED) 

200lrALTA LOAN. POLICY (06-17-06). 

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 
The following matters are expressly excluded from the coliera.ge of tlils policy, and the Gomp!jny will not pay loss or damage, cos~s. 
attorneys• fues, or expenses 1hal arise by reason ot· 
1. (a) Any law, .ordinance, pennlt, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning} restricting, regulating, 

· prohibiting, or relating to · 

(I) the occupancy, use, .i;ir enjoyment of t(le Land;. 

{ii) 1he character, dimensions, or·locatil:m of any improvement erected on the Land; 

(iii) ttie subdivision ofland; or 
{IV) :envlronmentaf protection; 

or the effect of any violation of th!)se laws, ordin!lnces; qr govemi:nental regulations. T\11s Exclusion 1 (a) does not niodify· or limit 
the coverage provided under.Covered Risk 5. 

(b), Any governmental police power.. This Exclusio.n 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage·provlded·under covered Risk 6, 

2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does·notmodify or lhhitthe coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8. 
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse. clalms, or other matters 

(a} created, suffered,.asslitned, or agreed to by the: Insured Claimant: 

(b) not Known fo the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the lnimred. Claimant and Mt 
disclosed in writing. to the Company bY· thi'!· Jnsured Claimant prior to the date Jlie ·Insured Claimant became .an Insured undf;!r this 
policy;· · 

(c) restJ!tlng·in no loss or damage to the Insured ·claimant; 

(d) attt;ictilng or created slibseqllentfo Date of Policy (however, this (j~es not modify or llmitthe coverage provided under Covered Risk 
11, 13., or 14); or ' . 

(e) resulting.in loss or damage thatwouid not have been sustained if the lrtsured Ciafrnanthacf paid value for the Insured Mortgage, 
4. Unenforceability of the lien of the Insured ·Mortgage bee<1use .o.f the lnablllty or failure of an Jnsured to comply with applicable 

doing-business laws of the sfate where the L;md Is situ;!lted. 
5. Invalidity or unenforceabfllty In whole or in part·of the lien of the Insured Moitgage. tllat arises out of the transaction evidenced by the 

Insured Mortgage and Is based upon usury or any consumer credit protection or trlith-ln-lending .faw. 
6. Any claim, by· reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state Insolvency, ·or similar ·credlto~ rights laws, fhat the transaction 

creating the lien of the Insured Mortgage, Ii; 
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulenf .transfer,. or · 

(b) a preferen1lal transfer for any. reason not stated in Covered Risk 13(b) of this.policy·. 
7. Any llen on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching befyieen Date of. 

Polley and the ·date of recording of the Insured Mortgage ln the Public· Records, This Exclusion does not modify or limit the ·coverage. 
provided under. Covered Risk 11(b); · · 

The above policy for.m may J:>e lssueq to afford either t;tandard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above Exclusions from 
Coverage, tlie Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage. policy will also Include the following Exceptions from Coverage: 

· EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 
This policy does not insu~e against loss or damage (and the· Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses) that arise by reason of: 
1. (El) Taxes or assessments .that ate nofshown as exisilng:Uens by the record.s of ariy tcilclng authority that levies taxes or assessments .on 

real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that niay result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such 
proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of sucti agency or by the· Public Records. 

2. Any facts, rights, Interests, or claims that are. nof shown by the Public Recdrds bllt that could be ascertained by an irtspeclicin of the 
Land qr that may be asserted by persons In possession of the l,anci. 

3. ·Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof,.n<;>t snown by the Putillc Records. 
4. Any encroachment. encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate 

and complete land sur\/ey of the Lahd and not shown by tlie Public Records, 

5, (a) Unpatented mining claims; .(b) reserv.ations gr exceptions In paterits or In' Acts· authorizing th~ fssuance thereof~ (c) water rights, 
claims or title .to water, whether.or. not.the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Pt1bllc Records. 

6. Any lien .pr right to a· lien for services, labor or maforlar not shown by the P.\Jbllc Records. 
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ATTACHMENT ONE 
(CONTINUED) 

2006 AL TA OWNER'S POL19Y (06-17-06) 

EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 

The follqwing matters .are· expressJy exclude.d from the coverage ofthls· policy,. and ·the: Company- will noi pay loss or damage, costs; 
attorneys• fees, or exrenses that arise.by reason on · 
1. (a) Any law, ordinance·, permit, or governmental regu'lation (ilibludin'g those relating to building arid zoni[lg) restricting; regulating, 

prohibiting, or ri:llatlng to· 
(Q the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of tbe,~and;. 
(IQ. the character, dimensions, or·locatlon· ofany improvement erected on the !;and; 

(iii) the. -subdliti$fon of.land; or 
(iv) envirpnmen~I pr.ofoct1on; 

· or the :effect ·orany violation of these• laws, ordinances, or ·governmental ·regulations. This Exclusion 1 (a) does not modify or limit 
·the coverage provided under Cc;iv!lred 'Risk 5. 

(b) ·Any governmental police .power. This Exclusion ·1 (ll) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6. 
2. Rights of eminent dqmaln. l:his ~clusion does not·modify. or lim)t II.le· coverage provide_d under Covered Risk 7· or 8. 
3. Defects, llens, encumhranp~s •. adversei'clalms, or·other matters 

(a). created, suffered, as·sumed, or agri;1ed t«;l by the.Insured. Claimant; 

(b) nqt Known to the Company, not record!?d in. the Public;. ,Records :at P<1te. of Policy, but Known ·to the Insured Claimant and not 
·dlsclo.sed in writing to the Company by. the Insured Claimant prlor to the date the Insured Claimant became ·an Insured under this 
policy; 

(c) resulting in no loss or damage·to the lnsu,red Claimant: 

{d) attactilr19 or created subsequentto Daie·o( Po)icy (howt')ver, this does i:ioi modify or limit tlie coverage.provided .under Covered Risk 
9 and Hi); or · 

(e} resulting in loss or ilamage that would ·not have been: sustained· If the Insured Claimant-had paid value for the Title,. 
4. Any claim, by reason·of ~he operation·of federal bank~upti:y, state lrisolllency, or similar creditors' rights Jaws, ·that.the 'transaction vesting 

the Title as shown in Schedule A, ls 
(a) a fraudulentcorweyance or frauduhmt transfer.; or 
(b) a preferential tr1;1nsfedor any reason norstated iii Covered Risk ·9 of this policy. 

5. · Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes. or assessments Imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching :between Date of 
Policy and the date of recoriJlng .. of tile deed or <;1ther instrument of tra.nsfer In the Public Records that vests Title as shown In 
Schedule A. 

The above poljcy·form may be issued to afford either Standard Collerage or Extended Coverage .. In .addition to the above Exclusions from 
Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage In. a Standard Coverage policy will also include the foilowlng Exceptions from Coverage: 

EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 
This policy ·does not lhsu re against. loss or difmage (arid the Company. will not pay costs, attorneys' .fees. or expenses) that a·rise liy reason of; 

1. (a} T<?xes or assessments that are· not shown as·exiStlng liens bY. ttie records of any ta)<irig authorlty that levies taxes or assessments on 
real property or by the Public· Records; (b). proceedings bY a public agenqy that. may result In taxes or assessments, or notices of.such 
proceedings, whether or not shown by. the.records of such .agency or bY the. Public Records. 

2, f.ny facts, rlghts, interests, or claims tliat are not showi:i by the Pllbl!o Records but tbat could be ascertained by a.n inspection c;if the 
Land or that.may be asserted by persons In possession of the Land. 

3. Eas·ements, liens or encumbrance:;;, or·clalms thereof, not shown by the Public· Records •. 
4. Any encroachment, encumb'rance, violation_, variation, or adverse ~lrcurnstance affecting the Title thal would be disclosed by an accurate 

and complete land sury_ey of the Land and not shown by the f;>ubl)c Records. 
5. (a} Unpatented miniog· claims; .(b) reser:vatioqs· or exceptions In patents or in Acts authorizing tne Issuance thereof;. (c) water rights,. 

claims or title to water, Whether-Or not the matters excepted under {a), (b}, or (c) are sh·own by the Public Records. 

6. Any lien or rlf,Jht'to .a lien for s·er:vlces; labor or material not shown by the 'Public Records. 
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ATTACHMENT ONE . 
. (CONTINUED) 

ALTA EXPANDED COVERAGE RESIDENTIAL LOAN POLICY-(07~26-10) 

EXCLUSiONS FROM COVERAGE 
The following matters are expressly .excluded from the coverage <Jf this policy and the Company will not·pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys~ 
fees or expenses which arise by reason of: · · 
1. (a) Any law, ordinah·ce, permit, or governmental regulation (Including those relating to· building and zoning) rei;;tricting, regulating, 

prohibiting, or relating to 
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment 9fthe Land; 
(ii) the chflraf:ter, _dimensions, or location 9f llOY improvement erected on .th·e Land; 
(iii) the subdivision of land; or 
(hi)· environmental protection; 

or the ·effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or .governmental regulations. This Exclusio.n 1 (a) .does not modify ·or llmlt 
the coverag·e provided under covered Risk 5, 6, p(c}, 13(d), 14cir16. 

(b} Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1 (b):does not modify or'll.mit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5, 6, 13(c), 
13(d}, 14 or 16. . 

. 2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or lrrnit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 6. 
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other.matters 

(a} created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by .the Insured Claimant; 
(b} not. Known to the Company, not recorded iii the Public .Records at Date of Polley; bl.it Known to ihe Insured Claimant and not 

dlsclo5ed in writing to the Company by the) Insured Claimant prior lo 1he date tl]e Insured Claimant became an Insured under this 
policy; · 

(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured.Claimant; 
(d) .attaching or created subsequent to Date of Polley (however, this does not modify or limit.the coverage provided under. covered Risk 

11, 16, 17; 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 27 or2~); or 
(e) resulting in _loss or damage that would not.h<1\fe been·sustalned If the Insured Claimant had paid value for the lnsu~ed Mortgage. 

4. Unenforceability ·of the lien of the Insured Mortgage because of the Inability or failure of an Insured to comply with applicaple 
doing-business laws of the state where the Land is-situated. 

5. Invalidity or unenfori:eability in whole or in part of the lien of .the Insured Mortgage· that arises out of the· transaction evidenced by the 
Insured Mortgage and ls based upon t1suiy, o.r any consumer credit protection or.t(uth~ln-lendlng law. This Exclusion does not modify or 
limit the·coverage provided in Covered Risk 26. 

6. /l,ny claim of invalidity, unenforeeablllty or lack of prlorlly of the lien of the insured Mortgage as to Advances or modifications made after 
th.e·lnsured has Knowledge tha·t the vestee shown in Schedule A ii; no longer the owner of the estate or Interest.covered by this policy. 
This E>;clusion-does not modify or llmltthe coverage provided in Covered Rislc 11. · · 

7. Any. lie.n on th.e TIJJe for real estate truces or assessments imposed by gove.rnmental authomy and cre.ated or attaching subsequent to 
Date of Polley. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided In Covered Risk 11 (~) or 25. 

B.. The failure of the residential structure, or any portion of it, to have been consitucted·be.fore, on or after Date. of Policy In accordance with 
applicable bull.ding c;odes. This Excluslol) does not modify or·lirT)it the coverl)ge provided In Covered Risk 5 or 6. · 

9. Any claim, by reason of the ope~tion of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar ·creditors" rig~ts laws, that the. transaction 
creating the.lien of.the Insured mortgage; ls 
(a} a fraudulent.conveyance cirfraudulenttransfer, or 
(b} a preferential transfer for any reason not stated.In Covered Risk27(b) of this policy. 

Attachment One ·(06/03/11) 
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Notice ofAvailable. Discounts 

Pursuant to Section 2$55.3 in Title 1 O of the Qalifomia. Code of Regulations Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its 
subsidiaries ("FNF")· must deliver a notice of.each discount available under our current rate filing along with the 
delivery of .escrow instructions; a preliminary report or commitment. Please be aware that the provision of this 
notice does nof constitute a waiver ofthe consumer's right to l;le charged the filed rate, As such, your transaction 
may not quaiify for the below discounts. 

You are encouraged to discuss the applicability: of one or mote of the below discounts With a Company 
representative. These discounts are generally described below; consult the rate manual for a full description of 
the terms, conditions and requirements· for such discount. These discounts orily apply to transactions involving 
serviCes rendered by the fNF Family of Companies. Thii;i notice only applies to transactions· involving property 
improved with a one-to~fourfamily-r.esidential dwelling. 

Not all discpunts are offered by every FNF .Company. The di$Co!.mtwill only be applicable to the l=NF Company as 
indicated by the named discount.. 

FNF Underwritten Title Companies. 
CTC - Chicago Title Company 
CLTC - Commonwealth Land Title Company 
FNTC ..., Fidelity National Title Company 
FNTCCA- Fidelity NGitional Title Company of C~lifornia 
TICOR-Ticor Title Company of California 
L TC - Lawyer's Title Company 

Available Discounts 

Underwritten by FNF Underwriters· 
CTIC - Chicago Title Insurance Company 
CL TIC - Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company 
FNTIC....; Fidelity National Title Insurance Company 
FNTIC - Fidelity National Title Insurance Company . 
CTIC - Chicago Title lnsl:lrance Company 
CLTIC- Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company 

FEE REDUCTION SETTLEMENT PROGRAM (CTC, CTIC, CLTC; CLTIC, FNTC, FNTCCA, FN'rlC, LTC, 
noo~ . . . . 
Eligible customers shall receive a Twenty And No/100 Dollars ($20.00) reduction in their title and/or escrow fees 
charged by the Company for each eligible transaction in accordance Wlfli the terms of the Filial .Judgments 
entered· in The People of the State of California ef al. v. Fidelity Nationa( Title insurance Company et al., 
Sacramento Superior Court C~se No, 99AS02793, and related cases. 

DISASTER LOANS (CTIC, CL TIC, .FNTIC} 
The charge for a Lender's PciUcy (Standard or Extended coverage) covering the financing or refinancing by an 
owner of record, within twenty-four (24) months of the date .of a declaration of a disaster area by the government. 
of the United States or the State of California on any land located hi said area, which was partially or totally 
destroyed in 'he disaster, will be fifty per.cent (50%) of the appropriate.title insurance rate. 

CHURCHES OR CHARITABLE NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS {CTIC, FNTIC) 
On properties used as a church_ or for charitable purposes within tl)e.scqpe of the normal activities of sucn entities, 
provided ·said charge is normally the church's oblfgation the charge for an owner.'s policy shall be fifty percent 
(SO%) to seventy percent (70%) of tha appropriate .title insurance rate, depending on the type of coverage. 
selected. The charge for a lender's policy shall be thirty-two percent .(32%) to fifty percent (50%) of the 

' appropriate title insurance rate, depending onthe·type ofcoverage selected. . 

Notice of Available ·Discounts 
SCA0002412.di:>c ( l,lpdated: ·02.03.14 
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20139J77422400002 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY;: 

.San Francisco Assessor-Recorder 
Carmen Chu, Assessor-Recorder 
DOC·. 

. 2013·J774224-00 
Fidelity National TIUe Compa11y 
Ord~r N().,. FSNX-7051300184 Acct 2005-Fid"elity Title Company Concord 

Tuesday, OCT 22, 2013 09:44:55 
Ttl Pd $21".00 Rcpt # 0004815012 
REEL LOOS IMAGE 0201 When:Re,c9rded Mail Document To: 

1360-1364 Stevenson Street. LLC 
4i Sa~:a: SI. O/p !J.,'5lf'""'4J-:.ff.AJfP 

. San Francisco, CA ~qifi;;i.;;t:. 

Oal/RE/1 ·2 . 

APN/Parcel ID(s): 5640-01 O .SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

VAtMf-1.:Pr . GRANT DEED 

The undel'Signed grantor{s) declai'e(s) 

Iii The (Soci.lmentary transfer tax is $ 5,202.00 and Is :computed on: 
Iii the full value of tt)e interest or property conveyed. . . 
. o the fUllvaliJe-less the liens or encumbrancesi'emaining ttjereon.atlhetlme of sale. 

The property Is located in ~"the City of San F.rancisco. 

FO.R A VALUA1;3LE· CONSIDERATION, receipt of wlllcb Is hereby-acknowledged, David M. Poulsen, a .married .man 
as his sole. and sepa~ate property and Kareen L Poulsen, a married woman as her sole and separate properfy, who 
acquired title as an unmarried woman, 

hereby GRANT(S) to 1360-1364 S~venson Street. LLC, a Cali(ornla ilmited Jlability company, 

the following dei;cribed r.eaJ property in the.Ci!Y .of San Francisco, County of.San Francisco, State of California: 

SEE EXHIBLT "A'' ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF 

Dated: October 17, 2013 

IN WITNESS WHE;Rgop, the undersigned have execµte~ this document oh the date(s) set forth below. 

~~ ·~~ 
David M. Poulsen reeoLPOulsen . 

State of California 
County· of Sonomc:i 

On October .J.L. 201"3, before me, C9urtney Trlcil.a, Notary Public, personally appeared David M. Poulsen and Kareen. 
L Poulsen, who proved to me on the b.asis of satisfactory evidence \o be the persons whose names are subscribed to 
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that. they execu"ted the· same in their .authorized capacities, and that by 
thefr signatures on the insfrumentthe _persons, or the entity upon behalf of which "the persons acted, executed the 
instrument. 
I certify uryder PENAL 1Y OF PERJURY under the laws of \he State of California that the foregoing· paragraph is true and 

~~~~Su, y hand and offi.clal"seal ) 
0 

e' 
0 0 

couR:rNEYTRiotA! 
. ' ';" COMM. #1978154 m 

. ~"""-, ~ ffi NOil\RYPUB!:IC• Cll.llFORNIA :P 
. ~.. '>.. =i . SONOW.A COUNT'/ ..,.._ 

Signature ' --= ) . Mycoiilnl.exp1rHJUno10.201e· ( 
.• 4i1.¥ .•• ; .••••••• 

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS AS DIRECTED ABOVE 

(Seal) 

Grant Deed 
SCAOOD0129.doo I Updated: 10.23.12 

Prlnmd; 10.17.13 fll) 07:01PM 
CA·FT-FSNX-01500.080705-FSNX-7051300184 

Order: Quicl<View_ Doc: CASFRA:2013 0077.4224"'06075 Page 1of2 Createi:I By: jfnxie.weidmark Printed: 5/20}2014 9:05:28 AM PST 
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" -
EXHIBIT "A" 

legal Descriptrqn 

For APN/ParcQI ID(s}: ~10 

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN 11-IE ·criy OF SAN FRANC)SCO; 
COUN1Y Of SAN FRANCISCO, STATE OF CAUFORNlAAf:.!D IS DES(;RIBEDAS FOLLOl,/IJS:. 

Beginning at tf:le.point-ofintersec;bon of ttie Northerly lina-.of Powhattan Avenue with the Easterly ilne of 
Rosenkran:z: Sfreef and thence~ runninf] Northerly along said line of Rosenkranz Street 23.12:1 feel to the 
Southeasterly line of Bernal Heights Boulevard from Powhatteh ~reet and' Nevada Street"fQBradforcf 
Street, etc.,", recorded July 11; 1949 i~ap Book "P" at Page~- the Office of the Ree'orde~.of the 0ify 
and County of San Francisco, State of'.'Califomiaj thence rvnning Northeasterly· a1ong said line of Bernal 
Heights Boulevard on the arc of a .CUN~ to the left whose tangent deflects 72 • 02' 16", the precediri'g 
course with r:adius 46-5..feet, eentral angle 10.o~16" a distance of7B;1·sa feet; thence running 
Northeasterly on the preceiling:c;urve $2,.aiO feet; thenc;e running 1hen~ortheas!erly on the. arc of-a: 
curve to the right tangent ta the preceding .i:otirse with-raaius 265 feet; reptral ahg!e 2 ° 56' 49'!, a distance 
of t&.J.Z3 feet.to the Westerly line of Garver Street; thence ~effecting 115 ° 33' 11"fo the nghi·from the .. 
tangent to· the preceding curve and nmning Southe.rly along said lii:le of Carver Street 90.536 feefto said 
Northerly line.of P0Whatten ·Avenue: 140 feel to the point of beginning, · 

Ei.elng Lots 1139 and 1141 and portions of Lots 1135,.1136, 1137, 113~ and 1140~ M~p No.!P7" 

. Pripied: 10,17.13@ 07:01PM. GraritDaed. 
SCAOOOO 129.doc I Updated: 10.23.12 0M'l"-FSNX·01500;0B07.05-FSNX;705130011PI 

Order: QutckVlew_ Doc: ·CASFRA:2013 007·74224,,,06075 .Page2 of2 Create(f By: jinxie.weiamark Prjnted: 5/20/2.oH9:05!28 AM PST 

5292 





City and County,ofSan Francisco 

G. FORMS 

·Form No. 1 
Proposition "M" Findings Form 

The Eight Priority Policies 
of Section 101.1 of San Francisco Planning Code 

Date: May 21, 2014 

Address .Bernal Heights Boulevard (Vacant Lott 

Assessor's Block5640 Lot(s).010 

Proposal: Parcel Map I Final Map Subdivision 

EIGHT PRIORITY GENERAL PLAN POLICIES 

Department of Public Works 

As· a result of the pi;issage of Proposition M (Section 101.1 ofthe San Francisco Planning Code), 
findings thatdemonstrate with the eight priorjty policies of Secti.on 101.1 must be presented to the 
Department of City Planning as. part of you.r project application review for general conformity with San 
Francisco's General Plan. . · 

Photographs of the subj.act property are required for priority policy review and must be submitted 
as part of the application .. 

INSTRUCTIONS TO APPLICANTS: Please present information in detail about how your application 
.relates to each of .the eight priority policies listed below. The application will be found to be incomplete if 
they responses are notthorough. Use a separate document and attach if more space is needed. 

Eight Priority Policies 

1. That existing neighborhood-serv'ing retail uses be preserved and ·enhanced and future opportunities for 
resident employment in.and owriersnip of such business enh~nced; 

The map divides the existing Jot into two lots. Irr the future. the ·developer intends to construct four single 
family residences. There will be two residences on each lot. When occupied; the homes will provide 
customers for existing neighborhood retail businesses .. 

2. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to preserve the 
cultural and 'economic diversity of thenei9hborhood; · 

New Construction Condcimihium Application (March 31, 2010}. 
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City and County of San Franci.sco 

E. PARCEL MAP I FINAL MAP SUBDIVISION APPLICATION CHECKLIST 

Check the followin 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 0 0 

0 D 

D 

D D 0 

2; 

3. 
4. 
5. 

6, 

7. 

8. 

Four (4) copiei,;i ofTeqtative Parcel Map 
[DPW copies: 3-EiSM Mapping; 1-City Planning] . 
Note: One additional copy wlll.be r~qiilred if projeet,falls within 
the ·urisdiction of SFRA. see· a e 7. · 
Four: (4) copies cif Tenta~ve Flnal Map 
[DPW copies: 3-BSM )'v1apping: 1"Clty Planning] 
Note:· One additional copy wlll.be required lfprojectfalls within 
the ·udsdiction of SFRA. ·see a e · 
SubdiVision Fee ($ · · ) 

. Pretltnihe!ry Title Report (daied within .3 months) 

Grant.Deeds and any other r.ecorded documents for: 
0 Sub act ~lie and O Ad olners 
Current 3R Report, 
.see item number 6 a e. 8 for .details 

Neigbborhood notification 
package fqr Tentative 

Map. decision 

· D 300-Foot Radius Map 

D Address List 

0 Envelopes 

Photographs of supje~t property, as follcws: 
[Public Works Code Sec. 723 .. 2 & Planning Code] 

~rant photo from the street looking .at the property., 
including sidewalk wit/'loufobstructioM 

5l:,Photo from left side showing property line and 
sid(()Wal~ fronting subject sitE:l · 

· ~Photo from right side showing property Hne and 
_ §ideWalk fronting subject stte 
~hoto of re~r·of property· 

9. Proposition "M" Findings demonstrating consistency 
with Eight Priority·General Plan Policies [Planning 
Code.s~c. 101.1(b)J 

10. Submitthefollowirig for 
review by D~partrt'lent of 
Building Inspection, If 
required. See page 8. 

Completed Form 
Numbet 2. 

4 

3 

1 
2 

1 

2 

1 

2 

1 

*ADD/nONAL COPY To DBI .... SEE REQUIREMENTS PAGE Bj' ITEM 10 

Pagl!. '15 of 22 
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City and County of San FrElilcisoo Department of Public Works 

The new residences will be carefully designed so that its architecture meshes with the architecture of the 
surrounding structures, , 

3. That the City's supply of affordable housing .be preserved and enhanced; 

This proiect will contribute four new moderately-priced residences. to Ban Francisco's housing supply. An 
iQcrease in housing uliits. lesseM deinahd and contributes to tlie reduction of prices .. 

4. That commuter traffic not Impede Muni transit servicE?.or overburden streets or neighborhood parking; 

This project will not increase ·commuter traffic. It will not overburden Muni services or San Francisco 
street traffic nor will it cause parking ·problems. 

5. That a diverse ecc:momic base be maintained by protecting the· industrial and service sectors. from 
dis placemen~ due to commercial office development and that future .opportunities for resident .employment . 
and ownership in these sectors be enhanced;· 

This project will have no impact on the industrial or service sectors. 

6. That ~he· City achieve the. greatestpossible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life in an 
earthquake; · 

This prc;iject will be hew construbtfon and wlll combly with current building codes regarding seismic safety. 

7. That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved; and 

This project will have no effect on this policy. 

8. That our parks 'and open sp~ce and access to sunlight and vistas be protected from development; 

No parks or open space will be affected bythis development. The project will not block access to sunlight 
or vistas. · · 

Attached are photographs of the subject property. Please call if you need any additional information to 
determine that this project is in conformity with San Francisco's Master Plan .. Thank you. 

oate: 5 /'&r / ·io1 ·l..../ 
. I r ' 

1360~1364 Stevenson Street, LLC; a California.limited 
liability company 

Si~n,.d: ~"+I~ 
. C1aran Harty, Manager . ~ 

. _,,,,,__ 

New Construction Condominium Application {March ·31, 2010) 
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City and Coun:ly of San Francisco Department of Public Works 

May21, 2014 

· Application for Parcel Map I Final Map Subdivision 

Director of Public Works 
1155 Market S.treet; $1

d fldor 
San Francisco, CA .94103 

Dear Sir: 

.......... 
. r-,.. 

:r: 
> 
-< 
N 
CO: 

..... 
:IC 
(.ii) .... 
'1T 
.t:.,J:; 

In compllance with th.e California Subdivision Map Act, the San Francisco Subdivision Code, the San 
Francisco Subdivision Regulations, and all amendments thereto,- I/we, the undersigned subdivider, or 
agent, hereby submit to. you for your review and processing a proposed Parcel Map I Final f0ap 
Application and Checklist and all applicable items, fee, documents.and data checked thereon. 

Respectfully; 

1'360-1364 Stevenson Street, LLC, a California limited 

Date: 5/ Z.J f LOI·'=( 
I . I . 

liability co~ . 

Signed: ~ C£.-r:~O/~ ,. . (ci/ran Harty, Manager 

Attachment Application Racket 

Parcel Map/ Fina! Map Application (March 31, 2010) 
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City and County ofSan·Francisco 

G. FORMS 

RECEIVED 

N JUN -9 PH 2: 41 · 

Form No ... 1 
Proposition 11M11 Findings Form 

The Eigh~ Pri9rity Policies 
of Section 101. 1 of San Francisco Planning Code 

Date; June-4, 2014. 

Address Bernal Heit;1hts Boulevard (\(acailt.Lot) 

Assessor's Block 5640 Lot(s) 010 

Proposal: Parcel Map I Final Map Subdivision 

'EIGHT PRIORITY GENEAAL PLAN POLICIES 

· Department of Public WorkS 

As a re.suit of the passage of Proposi.tiO:n M (Section 101.1 of the San Francisco Planning Code), 
findings thE!t demonstrate with the eight priority policies of Section 101, 1 must bE! presented to the 
Department of City Planning .as part of your project application revitiw for general· conformity with Sc,m 
Francisco's General Plan. · ' · 

Photographs of the .subject property are required for.priority policy review and must be submitted 
as part ofthe application. · 

INSTRUCTIONS TO APPLICANTS: Please present information In detail about how your application 
relates to each ofthe eight priority policies listed below. The application will be found to be incomplete if 
they responses are not thorough. Use a ·separate document arid attach if more space is need.ed. 

Eight Prlo(ity· Policies 

1. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future opportunities for 
resident employment in and ownership .ci.f such business enhanced; 

The map divides the existin'g lot into four Jots. In the future. ttie developer intends to construct four single 
family residences. There Will be one residence on each lot. When occupied, the homes will provide 
customers for existing neighborhood retail businesses. 

2. Th?t existing hOL!S.ing and neighborhood character be conserved and protect1::1d in order to preserve the 
cultural and economic diversity of the neigh_borhood; 

New Construction Condominium AJ)plication (March 31, 2010). 
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City and County of San Francisco Department of Public Works 

The new residences' will be carefully designed so that its architecture meshes with· the architecture of the 
surrounding structures. · 

3. That the City's supply ofaffordable housing be preserved and enhanced; · 

This project will contribute four-new moderately~prlced residences. to San Francisco's housing supply. An 
increase in housihg units lessens demand and contributes to the reduction of prices. 

4. That commuter tr;:i.ffic not.impede Muni·transi.t service .cir overburden street~ or neighborbood parking; 

This project will not increase commuter traffic. It will not overburden Muni services or San Francisco 
street .traffic nor will it cause parking problems. 

5. That a diverse economic base be mairitain,ed py protecting tbe. industrial and service sectors from. 
displacement due to commercial office development and that future opportunities. for resident employment 
and ownership In these sectors.be enhanced; 

This project will have no impact on the industrial or service secto.rs. 

6. That the city achieve the greatest. possible preparedness to protect.against Injury and loss. of llfe in an 
earthquake; 

This protect will be new construction and will ·comply with current building codes regarding ,seismic safety, 

7. That l13ndmarks .and historic puildlngs be preserved;· anct 

This project will have no effect.on this pollcv. 

8. That our parks and open space and access to sunlight and vistas be protected from development; 

No parks or open space will be affected by this development. The project will not block access to sunlight 
or vistas. 

Attached are photographs of the subject property. Please call if you need :any additional informatfon to 
determine that this project is in conformity with San Francisco's Master Plan. Thank you. 

136'0-.1364. Stevensbh Street, LLC, a California limited . 
liability company . · 

Date: ----h"!-'-f-j_v,,,___0__,_lf_:·_ .signed: --..,-,-~---r--r--_,__.,....----
bfL; I Ciaran Harty, Manager 

New Construction Condominium Application (March 31. '2010) 
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HERZIG & BERLESE 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW· 

IVY COURT, SUITE-51 414 GOUGH STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA94102 
(415).86·1-8800 FAX (415') 861-0259 

BARBARA E, 'HERZIG 
MARGARET J. BERLESE 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

Hi Cheryl, 

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

May28,2014 

Department .of Public Works 
Cheryl Chan 
1155 Market Street, 3rd Floor 

. San Francisco, CA 94103 

Herzig & Berlese 

Block: 5640 Lot:l 0 
Bernal Heights Boulevard (Vacai1t Lat) 

~, 

~· s 
·-< 

"' co 
-w-:x 
w 
(ft 
4) 

:::0 
m· 
() 

rn 
< 

fTl 
C'J 

This letter is to explain why there is no 3R tepott .or adjoiner deeds included in the application 
packet. 

3R: 1bis is currently a vacant lot so we are unable to obtain.a 3R. 

Adjoiner Deeds: The lot is bordered by roads and, therefore, ther~ are no adjoining lots. 

Thank you, 
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[" $Al..J F"RANOISC:Cl ... SINCE lB6S xamtntr PUBLIC NOTICES SAN MATEO Coumr: 650-556-1556 
SAN FRANCISCO CAU: 415-314-1835 

SAN FRANCISCO ExAMINER • DALY CITY INDEPENDENT. SAN MATEO WEEKLY. REDWD.00 C1rr TRIBUNE • ENQUIRER-BULLETIN • FOSTER CITY PROGRESS • MILLBRAE - SAN BRUNO Sun • BOUTIQUE & VILLAGER 

GOVERNMENT 

NOTICE OF REGULAR 
MEETING SAN 

FRANCISCO SOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS LAND USE 

AND TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE SEPTEMBER 

21,201s ~ 1:30 PM crrv 
HALL, LEGISLATIVE 

CHAMBER, ROOM 250 
1 DR. CARLTON B. 

. GOODLETT PLACE, SAN 
.FRANCISCO, CA 

Th! 

HEARING BOA 
SUPERVJSORS OFTHE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN 
FRANCISCO 

NOTICE IS HEREBY 
GIVEN THAT lhe Board of. 
Supervisors of !he City and 

Francisco 
earing to 

Tuesday, September 29, 2015 
iime: 3:00 Jl'm. Location: 

A~:sk~~~ 25~f8~rba~~~ 
B. Goodlelt, Place, San 
Francisco, CA 94102 
Subject: File No. 150054. 
HearlnE of persons Interested 

~ ~u~i~e~~~0d~~d~~~s~ 
~~;~~;1if~~~1~n~~~~l~~ 
sul:idlvlslons at addresses 
wrthln lhe Parkmercer:j 
Project, Assessor's Block Nos. 
7303, 7303·A, 7308, 7333. 
0, 7326, 7330, 7331, 7335, 

!~~4, ~~~~ 1a~~Vi~~~n?e%~J 
findings un~er the Califomla 
Environmental Quall~ Act. 

• ~1~V~~~~;g~1b~\ir 1~ir! 
Parkmerced Action Coalition 

n accordance with 
AdmlnlstraUva Code, Sectron 
67.7-1, persons who are 
unable to attend the hearing 
on lhiS· matter may submit 
wriUen comments prior to 

~es\m~~h~e~l:~rifb~~~~ 
~:Jr~rf n ~hi~~a~~~~~!~~a 

ADVERTISEMENT 
FOR BIDS 

CITY & COUNTY 
OF SAN FRANCISCO 
PUBLIC UTILITIES 

COMMISSION 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

DIVISION 
Mountain Tunnel Access 
and Adlt Improvement 
Contract No. HH·901 

Sealed bids wlll be received 
at 525 Golden Gatei Aveinue, 
3rd Floor Tuolumne 
Room, SF, CA 941021 until 
2:00 P.M. on 1115/2015. 
Hard copy versions of plans, 
spec!ncS.tlcns and bidding 
documents are available at 
525 Golden Gale Avenue, 
1st Floor. Customer Service 
Desk, SF, CA 94102 for a 
non·tefundabfe $150 ree paid 
by cash or by check payable 
lo "SFPUC." Call (415) 551· 
4603 for rurthet iillormation. 
A CO version is available to 
paid Pian holders only fer an 
addlUcnal fee of $10. Visit 
http://sfwalef.org/cootraclS for 
updates. Please be advised 
that prior lo receiving these 

purchasers 
lo comP.!ale, 

comply wilh a 
graemenl 

is subject 
compliance m 
enroroament 

and the San Francisco 
Office of Labor Standards 
Enforcement. No conlraclor or 
suboonlractor may be lls!ed 
in a bid rar a pubUc works 
project and no contractor 
or subcor:ilfactor may be 
awarded a contract for public 
work on a pubnc works 

~~1eo1fRu~:;sc~H~~~e~~ 
Code SecUon 1725.6 [with 

llmlted el!cepUons from this 

~n~~ir~~d~rt ~~f~~~nfaurp~~~ 
Code Section 1n1.i(a)J. 

~~o I~;~~= ~~~d~~o~~cJ 
access to the Mountain 
TUhnel. The llro]ect Includes 
lnsta!llng new concrete adlt 

~~uJls, fl:~ lm~~H'!!~i~: 
Instrumentation. The work Is 

~k~;rtEn~~~!~!u:~~~~re 
Is $510001000. The Contract 
wlll be awarded lo the lowest 
responsible and responsive 
bidder. 
Bid discounts may 

~ien~ff~~ed A~~1C1:irarie~ 
Code Cha ter 140. The 

may il)c!ude, ut not limfled, 

~ !~k:f~~~~~grk,m3~~0~£~ 
drilling and h[as!lng, concrete 
work, metal fabricat!on, and 
insttumentaUan, Please refer 
lo Section 01 60 00 in the 

~e~a~~~~~s of ~~~~~~~~ 
to achieve lhe. LBE 
subconlracUng parllclpallon 
requirement 
Interested bidders are 
encouraged to attend a 
pre·bld and r;ontractor 

~1b':~~Jd9 at t'l!ke::h~~= 
Drive, Moccasin, CA.i Main 
Dinlng hoom at 10 A.M., on 

~r~~~b:~1e~da~~!5·arr~~ 
f~~~eriJnghJ~1~~~4~5 ~~~~ 

re;qu remen!S, except those 
who exceed the above 
stated LBE subcontraotlng 
garUclpaUon requirement bY 

or~~A~~1nt~g~e ~d=~~ 
site lnspecUon wlll be held 
rol!owlng the meellng {If 
needed). 
A Class "A" California 
Contractors License Is 
required lo bid. Futthermora, 
each Usted subcontractor 

~c~~~ rig:~e:; fo~P~gP~b~k 
each subconlraotor wm be 

r;rto~~~~~dance with San 
Francisco Administralive 
Code ("Administrative Code") 
Chapter 61 no bid Is accepted 
end no contract in ellcess 
ot $600,000 Js awarded by 
the q1ty and County of San 

than a opts a resolulion 
awarding the contract. 
Pursuant ta Charter Section 
3.105, all contract awards are 
subjeol lo certiffcaUon bY. the 
Controller as to the avallabl1ity 
orrunds, 
Bidders are hereby advised 
lhal Iha Contractor lo whom 

Adminislril.Uve Coc!e within 
two weeks after notificaUon of 
award by the SFPUO General 
Manager. 
This Project Is 
the requirements 
Francisco Local nn icy 

~C:t ~:;::tryriu~~ofi~~ 1~{~) 
of the AdmlnlslraUve Cprle. 

F 
FORTH~ 
OUNTY 
NCISCO 
YCOURT 

Case Num er: JD05·3202 
In the Maner of: H.L.LS., A 
Mt nor 
To! JOHNNY LEE 
STEVENSON, Alleged Fa!her, 

~J!1mi~1o ~!h~~ ~n°t{s)(~l 
said minor. 
You are hereby noU/led that 
the San Ftancisco Juvenile 

~~:r:0hrarin~~~~uan~1~ 
Wei/are and Jnsl1tutlons Code 
Section S66.2a, ta delermina 
v...tlether your parental dghts 
should Ce terminated end 
your chlld(ren) be freed rrom 
flour custody and control for 

0~e0 f~J:ose of having him 

BY bRDER OF 'THIS COUR! 
you are hereby olted and 
requited to apP.ear berora lhls 
Court on Iha Oay of January 
13, 2016 at 1:15 p.m., al 
the Juvenile Dependency 
Court. 400 McAJUster Street, 

~~Ur~nl!~the~~nrfh'~)!c~ 
~i7s:J:in~r(s)Y s~~l~a~@· 
be declared rree from the 
custody and control of his 
parent(s). This proceeding ls 
ror the purpose o( developing 
a permanent plan for !he 

to: RICHARD SMITH, 
Alleged Father; and any other 
~~~~~sbrc!~i~l~~n~or.be tha 
'1lu are hereby noUfled that 
the San Franofsoo Juvenl!e 

~r~;~S:nhlarin~~~~!uan~~~ 
Welfare and lnslllulions Coda 
SecUon 366.26, lo determine 
whether your ·paten!al rights 
should lie lerminaled and 
your chi!d(ran) be freed from 
your custody and control for 
~Jo ~~{fose of having him 

BY ~ROER OF'THIS COURT, 
you are hereby cited ano 
required lo appear before this 
Courton Iha Clay of December 
2, 2015 at 1:16 p.m., at 

~~urt~~~ni~cA~:Fe~n~~~:, 
~~~1~m1:~5the~8~n:r~~;:c~ 
~~ws~u~n~r(ajY st~~l~~~l 
be declared free from lhe 
custody and control of his 
Patenl{s). This prooeedlng ls 
for the purpose of developing 
a permanent plan ror the 
child{ran). whlch e-0uld include 
adopUon. 

~J':a~fS~':ite~ ~~ :gg.:::: 

consequences of the enUUed 
acUon. lhe parent(s} or !he 
mlnor(s) have lhe rlglit lo have 

~~::us~~!:Pt[~tis4! 
3835 
By: ANNIE TOY, Depuly Clerk 

REQUEST FOR 
QUALIFICATIONS 

(RFO) 
Contracting Opportunity: 
Open Spttce Manasament 

Services 
Mission Bay1 

San Francisco 
The Office ol Communlly 
Investment and Infrastructure, 

~:n W1arici:S~r A~~:;yo~:~ 
~&i:~'nts o}s Qual~:~~~ 
from experienced professional 
rcroperty management firms, 

s~i~~~{rac~~. ftP~~~rJ: 
~~:~~~~.1 ' s~g~W~~~~8d 
other services related lo 
the operalion or the publlc 

~~ans~~~ N~r~S:nd ~o~~ 
Red6'o'elopment Project Areas. 
CerUfied SBEs and LBEs 
are encouraged to submit 

~~=~:~~H!t · meeUng for 
pros~olhle oanlraclors: 10:00 

ior 
at 

~ld~.~~2J~?g~.org 
Office of Comrriunlly 
Investment and Infrastructure 
One South Van Ness Avenue1 
5" Floor, San Francisco, CA 
94103 
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other and BRADLEY 
B. POSNEt=l-PEORO aka 
BRADLEtY G. POSNER, 

All~e,!{~~~~iri~ f~b~~~ 
~enl(s) of said mrnor. 
Yau are hereby notified that 
the San Francisco Juvenile 
Oependenoy Couft has 
ordered e hearfng pursuant lo 
Welfa:re and lnstiltitians Code 
Seolion 386.26, lo determine 
whether your parentar rights 
should tie lermlnated and 
your ohHd(ren) be freed from 
your custody and control for 
the purpose of having him 

~~og~~ER OF 'THIS coum: 
you are hernby cited and 
required lo appear berore !his 
Court on lhe day of November 
18, 2016 at 1:15 p.m., at 

~urt.J'fo~ni~0Al?i:1~~ng~~Y, 

custody and control of his 
parenl(e).· This proceeding Is 
ror the purpose of devs!op!ng 
a permanent plan for lhe . 
~~~\ro~~· which could Include 
It you ear on the above-

BULK SALES 

NOTICETO CREDITORS OF 
BULK SALE 

(SECS. 6104, 6105 U.C.C. & 

eSc~b~~~ fi~:::!jo 
DATE: September 15, 2015 

~r~~~rdsor w:~a~11h1&ivria'rii~~ 
seller lhal a sate that may 
consmute a bulk sale has 
been or wl!l be made, 
The lridlvldua!s, partnership, 
or cotpomle names and the 
business addresses of the 
seller are: 
Joseph O Murillo and 
Rehata Bernarda Murillo 
450 Manor Plz, Pacifica, CA 
94044 
ihe Individuals, partnership, 
or corporate names and the 
business addresses of Iha 
buyer ere: 
Pacifica Natural Foods, Inc 
460 Maner Plz, PaclfTca, CA 
94044 
As Usted by lhe selle:r, all 
other business names and 
addresses used by the seller 

~tl~n s~6f; fista~a~e~:~t ~f 
deUvered !o Iha buyer ate: 

NONE KNOWN 
The assets sold or lo be 

!~':d ar~~Ecn~SJ'NWm~r~. 
FIXTURES, EQUIPMENT. 
TRADENAME, GOODWILL, 
LEASE, LEASEHOLD 
IMPROVEMENTS, 
COVENANT NOT TO 

~0fJ~~~~s~~~N6~ 
'THE BUSINESS KNOWN 
AS~ Pacifica Fanners Market 
ANO ARE LOCATED AT: 450 
Manor Plz1 Pacifica, CA 
94044. 
The place, and date on or 
after which, the aulk sale ls 
lo be consummated:Buslness 
& Escrow Service Center, 
Inc. 3031 11sch Way, Suite 
310 San Jose, CA 95120 
on or before ~. The 
last date to We claims Is 
1015/2015, unless there ls a 

~i~~h 1::~8a1U;;:;i:re~~~g b~ 
filed until the dale the license 
lransrers. 
BUYER'S SIGNATURE: 
Pacifica Natural Foods, Inc 
By: lnder Mohan Singh, 
Secretary 
By: SarOoo/ Singh Khehra, 
President 
9/18/15 
NSPE-2795634# 
EXAMINER 

CIVIL 

ORDER TO SHOW C 
FOR CHANGE OF N 

Case No. CIV 5351 
Superior fa, 
County of San Ma eo 
PeUlion of: Karim s. Fahmy for 
Change of Name 

ER ES TEO 

FahmyWed 
court for a 

decree changing names as 
roJIOWS! 
Karlm Safwat FahmY to 
Ka.teem Safwa.t Fahmy 
The Court ordere that all 
persons Interested In ~I~ 

granted. I 
m Umaly I 

~~8.:}fn:e 
·Notice of Hearing: 
Date: 10·16·16, Tirne: 9:00 

Tu~·· ~~~~J~rlhem~~rt is 

~?t~, <G1A8~o~;nter? Redwood 
A copy of !his Order to Show 
Cause shall be published at 
least onoe each week for rour 
successive weeks prior to 
Iha dale set for hearing on 
lhe peUUon In the followlng 
newspaper of general 
circulation, _ printed In lhls 
county: The Examiner 
Oate:S/1/15 

2# 
EXAMINER .. BOUTIQUE & 
VILLAGER 

TO ALL 
PERSONS: 
Petitioner Andrea Hyegena 
Kim filed a peUUon wUti lhis 
court for a decree- changing 
names as follows: 

~~~~: Hy~fi~~1~e Kim lo 
The Court orders that all 
persons lnteresled In this 
matter 
court et 
below lo 
why th 
name st;oul no e granted. 
Any person objecU119 lo the 
name changes described 
above must file a written 
objection lhat Includes the 
reasons for !he objecUon at 
least two court days before 
the matter Is scheduled lo 
be heard and must appear 
at lhe hearing to shaw cause 
why the peUOon should not be 
granted. If no written obJecUcn 
rs timely filed~ Iha court may 
·~~~f n:1e pa 'lion without a 

~~f: 1cg,~~2~1g; 11me: 9:00 
AM, Oapt.:PJ 
The address of the court Is 
400 Counly Center, Redwood 
City CA 94083 
A copy or lhls Order to Show 
Cause shall be pubUshed 
at least onoe ea.ch week 
for rour successive weeks 
prior lo the date set for 
hearing on the pe!Ulon In 
the follo 
en era.I 

Dale: 8124/15 
John Grandsaert, Judge of lhe 
Superior Court 
914, 9111, 9/18, 9/25/15 
SPEN~2791700# 
EXAMINER.: REDWOOD 
CITY TRIBUNE 

FICTITIOUS 
BUSINESS 

NAMES 

ACTITIOUS BUSINESS 
NAME STATEMENT 

File No. 26661 B 
The fo person(s) Is 
(are) 
TAO 
APA 
739 
City, 
Maleo 
Arnulfo V. · Prado, 638 Soolt 
Ave, Redwood City, CA 94053 
This blislness Is conducled by 
en Individual 
The reglstrant(s) commenced 
to transact business under 
lhe JtcliUous business name 
or names /Isled above on NIA 
I declare that aU inrormaUon 
in !his statement is true and 
correcL (A (egislrant who 
declares as true fnrormatlon 
which he or she knows lo be 

~J~r~~i?~~ ,,O~~ crime.) 
This statement was Ulad 
with the Coutlly Clerk of San 
Malec County on Seplembar 

~;~\~hurch Counly Cleric 
Glenn S. changUn, Deputy 
Clerk 
9/18, 9/25, 1012, 10/9115 
NPEN·Z796493# 
EXAMINER· BOUTIQUE & 
VILLAGER 

AZ 



Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: SF Docs (LIB) 
Sent: 
To: 

Thursday, September 24, 2015 7:59 AM 
Carroll, John (BOS) 

Subject: Re: Please Post the Attached Hearing Notices 

Categories: 150854, 150858 

Hi John, 

I have posted the hearing notices. 

Thank you, 

Michael 

From: Carroll, John (BOS) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 23, 2015 4:12 PM 
To: SF Docs {LIB) . 

. Cc: BOS Legislation, {BOS) 
Subject: Please Post the Attached Hearing Notices 

Good afternoon, 

Please kindly post the attac.hed hearing notices for public review. 

150584 
150858 

Best,. 

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

• • i/lfi!J Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors !;:ustomer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not requlr~d to provide personal identifying 
information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the pub/le submit to the 
Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not 
redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information-Including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a 
member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other public documents that mr:mbers 
of the public may inspect or copy. 

1 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: SF Docs (LIB) 
Sent: 
To: 

Friday, September 18, 2015 11: 19 AM 
.SOS Legislation, (BOS) 

Subject: Re: Please Post the Linked Hearing Notice - Hearing Notice - September 29, 2015 - Tentative 
Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

Posted/SF Docs/9/18/2015/Laurel Yerkey 

. From: BOS Legislation, {BOS) 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2015 10:50 AM 
To: SF Docs {LIB) 
Cc: BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Subject: FW: Please Post the Linked Hearing Notice - Hearing Notice - September 29, 2015 - Tentative.Map Appeal - 40 
Bernal Heights Boulevard · 

Good morning, 

Please kindly post the below-linked hearing notice for public viewi.ng. 

Best, 

John Carroll 
Legislative Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 
San Francisco City Hall, Room 244 

Sari Francisco, CA 94102 
(415)55.4-4445 - Direct I (415)554-5163 - Fax · 
john.carroll@sfgov.org I bos.legislation@sfgov.org 

• t(.O Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying 
information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees: All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the 
Cleric's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Cleric's Office does not 
redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information..:..including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a 
member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other public documents that members 
of the public may inspector copy. 

From: BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2015 10:48 AM 
To: 'chriswit@saber.net' <chriswit@saber.net>; 'betsybrown@comcast.net' <betsybrown@comcast.riet>; 
'pberlese@hbcondolaw.com' <pberlese@hbcondolaw.com>; Givner, Jon (CAT) <jon.givner@sfgov.org>; Stacy, Kate 
(CAT) <kate.stacy@sfgov.org>; Byrne, Marlena {CAT) <marlena.byrne@sfgov,org>; Malamut, John (CAT) 
<john.malamut@sfgov.org>; Nuru, Mohammed (DPW) <Mohammed.Nuru@sfdpw.org>; Sanguinetti, Jerry (DPW) 
<Jerry.Sanguinetti@sfdpw.org>; Sweiss, Fuad (DPW) <Fuad.Sweiss@sfdpw.org>;. Storrs, Bruce (DPW) 

1 
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<Bruce.Storrs@sfdpw.org>; Sanchez, ::icott (CPC} <scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>; Jones; Sarah (CPC} 
<sarah.b.jones@sfgov.org>; Rodgers, AnMarie {CPC) <anmarie.rodger_s@sfgov.org>; Starr, Aaron (CPC) 

<aaron.starr@sfgov.org>; BOS-Supervisors <bos-supervisors@sfgov.org>; BOS-Legislative 
Aideshttps://outlook.office365.com/ecp/UsersGroups/EditDistributionGroup.aspx?reqld=1441732280579&pwmcid=S& 
ReturnObjectType=l&id=e461deOa-e6fa-453b-849b-ab7bfda77739#·<bos-legislative_aides@sfgov.org>· 
Cc: Calvillo, Angela {BOS} <angela.calvillo@sfgov.org>; Caldeira, Rick (BOS) <rick.ca19eirn@sfgov.org>; Adina, Seema 

{DPW) <seema.adina@sfdpw.org>; BOS Legislation, (BOS} <.bos.legislation@sfgov.org>; Carroll, John (BOS} 
<john.carrqll@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Hearing Notice - September 29, 2015 - Tentative Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

Good morning, 

The Office of the Clerk of the Board has scheduled an appeal hearing for a Special Order before the Board on September 
29, 2015, at 3:00 p.m. · 

Please find linked below the Hearing Notice for the Tentative Map Appeal for the proposed project at 40 Bernal Heights 

Boulevard. 

Hearing Notice - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

I invite you to review the entire matter on our Legislative Research Center by following the link below. 

Board of Supervisors File No. 150858 

Thank you, 

John Carroll 
Legislative Clerk 
Board of.Supervisors 
San Francisco City Hall, Rciom 244 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
(415)554-4445 -'Direct I (415)554-5163 - ~ax 

john.carroll@sfgov.org I bos.legislation@sfgov.org · 

• . ll,~ Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour acGess to Board of Supervisors legislation and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided In communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal Identifying 
information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. Alf written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the 
Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available ta all members of the publ/c far inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not 
redact any information from these submissions. ihis means that personal information-including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a 
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
Friday, September 18, 2015 10:48 AM 
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
BOS-Legislative 
Aideshttps://outlook.office365.com/ecp/UsersGroups/EditDistfibutionGroup.aspx?reqld= 
1441732280579&pwmcid=5&ReturnObjectType=1 &id=e461 de0a-e6fa-453b-849b­
ab7bfda77739# 
Calvillo, Angela (BOS); Caldeira, Rick (BOS); Adina, Seema (DPW); BOS Legislation, (BOS); 
Carroll, John (BOS) 
Hearing Notice - September 29, 2015 - Tentative Map Appeal - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

150858 

·The Office of the Clerk of the Board has scheduled an appeal hearing for a Special Order before the Board on September 
29, 2015, at 3:00 p.m. 

Please find linked below the Hearing Notice for the Tentative Map Appeal for the proposed project at 40 Bernal Heights 
Boulevard. 

Hearing Notice-40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

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
john:carroll@sfgov.org I bos.legislation@sfgov.org 

• II:([) Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfai:tion form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hbur access to Board of Supervisors legislation and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act anii . 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying 
information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the 
Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made availa.ble to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not 
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
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PROOF OF MAILING 

Legislative File No. . 150858 

.City Hall 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 · 

· San Francisco 94102-4689 
Tel. No. 554-5184 
Fax No. 554-5163 

'TDD/TTY No. 544-5227 

Description of Items: Hearing of persons interested in or objecting to the decision 
of Public Works dated August 24, 2015, approving a proposed 4-lot subdivision 
located at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard, Assessor's Block No. 5640, Lot No. 01 O; 
and making environmental findings under the California Environmental Quality 
Act. (District 9) (Appellant, Betsy Brown and Chris Witteman, on behalf of 
Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors) {Fil~d September 3, ·2015). 

I, John Carroll.· , an employee of the City and 
County of San Francisco, mailed the above described document(s) by depositing the 
sealed items with the United States Postal Service (USPS) with· the postage fully 
prepaid as follows: 

Date: September 18, 2015 

Time: 9:20 a.m. 

USPS Location: Repro Pick-up Box in the Clerk of the Board's Office (Rm 244) 

Mailbox/Mailslot Pick-Up Times (if applicable): N/A 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Instructions: Upon completion, original must be filed in the above referenced file. 
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Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: Carroll, John (BOS) 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 8:29 AM 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Panopio, Sandra (ADM); Hooker, Sarah (ADM) (311) 
Pon, Adrienne (ADM); BOS Legislation, (BOS) 
Translation Request (Public Notice) -150858 
HEARING NOTICE.doc 

Categori~s: 150858 

Good morning, 

Please translate the following public notice into Chinese, Spanish, and Filipino: 

Link Language: 
September 29, 2015 - Board of Supervisors - Appeal Hearing - Parkmerced Project 

Public Hearing Notice: 
Date: Tuesday, September 29, 2015 

Time: 3:00 p.m. 

' 
Location: Legislative Chamber, City Hall, Room 250, 

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102 

Subject: Hearing of persons interested in or objecting to the decision of Public Works dated August 24, 2015, 
approving a proposed 4-lot subdivision located at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard, As~essor's Block No. 5640, Lot No. 010; 

. and making environmental findings under the California Environmental Quality Act. (District 9} (Appellant, Betsy Brown 
and Chris Witteman, on behalf of Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors) (Filed September 3, 2015). 

Angela Calvillo 
Clerk of the Board 

Dated: 
Posted/Published: 

September 15, 2015 . 
September 18, 2015 

Pursuant to the protocols, the translations in each language should be received by replying to all recipients of this e­
mail within three business days, or by 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, September 22, 2015. 

Thank you, 

John Carroll 
Legislative Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 
San Francisco City Hall, Room 244 

. San Francisco, CA 94102 
{415)554-4445 - Direct I (415)554-5163 - Fax 
john.carroll@sfgov.org I bos.Jegislation@sfgov.org 

• tlo Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation and archived matters since August 1998. 
- 1 
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Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure und_er the California Pr;blic Records Act and 
the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal Information provided will not.be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying 
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

Importance: 

Categories: 

glenda_sobrique@dailyjournal.com 
. Wednesday, September 16, 2015 9:26 AM 

Carroll, John (BOS) 
g lenda_ sobriq ue@dailyjournal.com 
CNS: Documents for Reference No: JEC -150858 - 40 Bernal Heights Blvd Ten Map Appeal 
Hearing Notice, OrderNo: 2796145 
b9a 1f138-7f92-4c26-baec-7bf4edf6cc66 .pdf 

High 

150858 

Attached are the following documents: 

Thank you. 

Glenda_Sobrique 

1 

5312 



Carroll, John (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

glenda_sobrique@dailyjournal.com 
Wednesday, September 16, 2015 9:26 AM 
Carroll, John (BOS) 

Subject: Confirmation of Order 2796145 for JEC -150858 - 40 Bernal Heights Blvd Ten Map Appeal 
Hearing Notice 

Categories: 150858 

Dear Customer: 

The order listed below has been received and processed. If you have any questions regarding this order, please contact 
your ad coordinator or the phone number listed below. 

Customer Account Number: 120503 
Type of Notice : GPN - GOVT PUBLIC NOTICE 

Ad Description : JEC - 150858 - 40 Bernal Heights Blvd Ten Map Appeal Hearing Notice 
Our Ord~r Number· : 2796145 
Newspaper 

Publication Date(s) 

Thank you. 

GLENDA SOBRIQUE 

: SAN FRANCISCO EXAMINER 10% 

: 09/18/2015 

DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION 

CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER SERVICE BUREAU 

Phone: (800) 788 7840 I (213)229-5300 
· Fax:. (800) 540 4089 I (213 )229-5481 

2 
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CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER SERVICE BUREAU 

DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATIO'N 

Mailing Address: 915 E FIRST ST, LOS ANGELES, CA 90012 
Telephone (213) 229-5300 I Fax (213) 229-5481 

Visit us @ WWW.LEGALADSTORE.COM 

John Carroll 
CCSF BO OF SUPERVISORS (OFFICIAL NOTICES) 
1 DR CARL TON B GOODLETT PL #244 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102 

COPY OF NOTICE 

Notice Type: GPN GOVT PUBLIC NOTICE 

Ad Description JEO - 150858- 40 Bernal Heights Blvd Ten Map 

To the right is a copy of the notice you sent to us for publication in the SAN 
FRANCISCO EXAMINER. Thank you for using our newspaper. Please read 
this notice carefully and call us with ny corrections. The Proof of Publication 
will be filed with the County Clerk, if required, and mailed to you after the 
last date below. Publication date(s) for this notice is (are): 

09/18/2015 

The charge(s) for this order is as follows. An invoice will be sent after the 
last date of publication. If you prepaid this order in full, you will not receive 
an invoice. 

Publication $258.75 

NetTotal $232.87 

Daily Journal Corporation 
Serving your legal advertising needs throughout California. Call your local 

BUSINESS JOURNAL, RIVERSIDE 

DAILY COMMERCE, LOS ANGELES. 

LOS ANGELES DAILY JOURNAL, LOS ANGELES 

ORANGE COUNTY REPORTER, SANTA ANA 

SAN FRANCISCO DAILY JOURNAL, SAN FRANCISCO 

SAN JOSE POST-RECORD, SAN JOSE 

THE DAILY RECORDER, SACRAMENTO 

THE DAILY TRANSCRIPT, SAN DIEGO 

THE INTER-CITY EXPRESS, OAKLAND 

(951) 784-0111 

(213) 229-5300 

(213) 229-5300 

(714) 543-2027 

(800) 640-4829 

(408} 287-4866 

(916) 444-2355 

(619) 232-3486 

(510) 272-4747 

I lllllll llll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111111111111111111 * A 0 0 0 0 0 3 8 7 7 4 3 4 * 

EXM 2796145 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC 
HEARING BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CITY AND COUNTY OF 

SAN FRANCISCO 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
THAT the Board of Supervi­
sors of the City and County 
of San Francisco will hold a 
public heartng to consider 
the following appeal and said 
public hearing will be held as 
follows, at which time all 
Interested parties may attend 
and be heard: Date: 
Tuesday, September 29, 
2015 Time: 3:00 p.m. 
Location: Legislative 
Chamber, City Hall, Room 
250 1 Dr. Carlton B. 
Goodlett, Place, San 
Francisco, CA 94102 
Subject: File No. 150858 •. 
Hearing of persons Inter­
ested in or objecting to the 
decision of Public Works 
dated August 24, 2015, 
approving a proposed 4-lot 
subdivision located at 40 
Bernal Heights Boulevard, 
Assessor's Block No. 5640,. 

· Lot No. 010; and making 
environmental findings under 
the California Environmental 
Quality Act. {District 9) 
{Appellant, Betsy Brown and 
Chris Witteman, on behalf of 
Bernal/Powhattan 
Neighbors) (Filed September 
3, 2015). 
In accordance with Adminis­
trative Coda, Section 67.7-1, 
persons who are unable to 
attend the hearing oli this 
matter may submit written 
comments prior to the time 
the hearing begins. These 
comments will be made as 
part of the official public 
record in this matter and 
shall be brought to the 
attention of the Board of 
Supervisors. Wrttten 
comments should be 
addressed to Angela Calvillo, 
Clerk of the Board, City Hall, 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett 
Place, Room 244, San 
Francisco, CA, 94012. 
Information relating to this 
matter Is available in the 
Office of the Clerk of the 
Board and agenda Informa­
tion ralatlng to this matter wtll 
be available for public review 
on Friday, September 25, 
2015. 
Angela Calvillo Clerk of the 
Board · 
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BOARD of SUPERVISORS 

September 9, 2015 

FILE N0.150858 

City Hall 
Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

San Francisco 94102-4689 
Tel. No. 554-5184 
Fax No. 554-5163 

/.J ;, 11C (/ ; \ Lu\;:11.. l::JMf l(...., £, c; 

~t:{0~N 1D 0~ 

~~~'-L ~(\ 

ltH .. 

Re_ceived from·the Board of Superv. ___ _ 
in the amount of Three Hundred and Six Dollars ($306), 
representing filing fee paid by Chris Witteman (Appellant) for 
Appeal of the Tentative Map for the 40 Bernal Hill Boulevard. 

PUBLIC WORKS 
By: 

~'UV kol\I u.___ 
Print Name 

. cfl/ 1s-/~\r 
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City Hall 

BOARD of SUPERVISORS 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

San Francisco 94102-4689 
Tel. No. 554-5184 
Fax No. 554-5163 

TDD/TTY No. 554-5227 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Board of Supervisors of the City and 
County of San Francisco will hold a public hearing to consider the following appeal and 
said public hearing will be held as follows, at which time all interested parties may 
a.ttend and be heard: 

Date: Tuesday, September 29, 2015 

Time: 3:00 p.m. . 

Location: Legislative Chamber, City Hall, Room 250 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett, Place, San Francisco, CA 94102 

Subject: File No. 150858. Hearing of persons interested in or objecting 
to the decision of Public Works dated August 24, 2015, 
approving a proposed 4~1ot subdivision located at 40 Bernal 
Heights Boulevard, Assessor's Block No. 5640, Lot No. 01 O; 
and making environmental findings under the California . 
Environmental Quality Act. (District 9) (Appellant, Betsy Brown 
and Chris Witteman, on behalf of Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors) 
(Filed September 3, 2015). 

In accordance with Administrative Code, Section 67.7-1; persons who are unable 
to attend the hearing on this matter may submit written comments prior to the time the · 
hearing begins. These comments will be made as part of the official public.record in 
this matter and shall be brought to the attention ·of the Board of Supervisors. Written 
comments should be addressed to Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board, City Hall, 1 Dr. 
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA, 94012. Information relating 
to this matter is available in the Office of the Clerk of the Board and agenda information 
relating to this matter will be available for public review on Friday, September 25, 2015. 

DATED: 
POSTED/PUBLISHED: 

September 15, 2015 
September 18, 2015 
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City Hall 
1 Dr. Cai. . B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

BOARD of SUPERVISORS San Francisco 94102-4689 
Tel. No 554-5184 
Fax No. 554-5163 

TTD(ITY No. 5545227 

=51mm~rn~jitf 

Bw.J:. 2015 if-9 J=129 B~= 

~Im: ""f Lf: 3 ~ 

:f;ftl!i: "$0 ' ft~-~- 250 ¥: ' 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett· Place, San 
Francisco, CA 94102 

~m: ;fi~~ll 150858 ° ~gftlSlW~}l{~R~ A.±~I:f%~:JJ~2015if.8B 24 E3 
?JT1'Ftl:\8kJ5~5E1Yg'.1_% • ~:i:~5~5E$~7-:i:~f!lii8kJ4:f:~ffeit:~iU • :!:it . 
:Elf: : Bernal Heightsm405!7E • ~{ti"BkJ1!t:T~5J}t1i,~5640 • :f:itffeit:5!7E~010 ; :illL{;& 
f!J r 1.JOfM:Il~Jif m5~ J (California Environmental Quality Act) {'F t±f$ 
~~IT 0 (~9~m) CtJ!f )\.: Betsy BrownWCliris Witteman, {i;~ 
Bernal/Powhattan~!!:!) Ca~2015if.9 B 03 B Bf!'.50 ° 

EM: September 15, 2015 
5&!1510-{:{ff: September 18, 2015 
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City Hall 
1 Dr. Ccu B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

BOARD of SUPERVISORS . San Francisco 94102-4689 
Tel. No 554-5184 
Fax No. 554-5163 

TID!ITY No. 5545227 

NOTIFICACION DE AUDIENCIA PUBLICA 

JUNTA DE SUPERVISORES DE LA CIUDAD Y CONDADO DE SAN FRANCISCO 

Fecha: 

Hora: 

Lugar: 

As unto: 

Martes, 29 de septiembre 2015 

3:00 p.m. 

Alcaldia, Camara de Supervisores, Salon 250 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102 

Expediente N°.150858. Audiencia de las personas interesadas a 
· que se opanen a la decision del [Departamento de] Obras Publicas 
fechada el 24 de agasto de 2015, . aprobando una sub-division 
propuesta de 4-lotes localizada sabre la 40 de.· Bernal Heights 
Boulevard, Bloque del Tasadar No. 5640, Lote No. 01 O; y hacienda 
hallazgas mediaambientales bajo la Ley de Calidad Ambiental de 
California. (Distrito 9) (Apelante, Betsy Brown y Chris Witteman, en 
nombre de los vecinos de Bernal/Powhattan) (Archivado el 3 de 
septiembre, 2015). 

Ae: 9 . CA.c.v~ 
(Angela Calvillo 

Secretaria de ,la Junta 

FECHADO: 15 de septiembre 2015 
Publicado/Publicado: 18 de septiembre 2015 

5318 



BOARD of SUPERVISORS 

September 8, 2015 

Betsy Brown and Chris Witteman . 
on behalf of Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors 

c/o 114 Nevada Street 
San Francisco, Cf\ 94110 

City Hall 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244 

San Francisco 94102-4689 
· Tel. No. 554-5184 
· Fax No. 554-5163 

TDD/TTY No. 544-5227 

Subject: Tentative Map Appeal ~ 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

Dear Ms. Brown and Mr. Witteman: 

This is in reference to the appeal you submitted con·cerning approval of the subject 
Tentative Map for properties located at: . · · 

40'Bernal Heights Boulevard, Assessor's Block No. 5~40, Lqt No. 010. 

Pursuant to Subdivision Code, Section 1314, an appeal hearing has been scheduled on. 
Tuesday, September 29, 2015, at3.:00 p.m~, at the Board of Supervisors meeting to be 
held in City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Legislative .Chamber, Room 250, San 
Francisco, CA 94102. 

Please provide to the Clerk'.s Office by 12:00 noon: 

11 days prior to the hearing: 

8 days prior to the hearing: 

names and addresses of interested parties to be 
notified of the hearing, in ·spreadsheet format; and 

any documentation which you may want available to 
the Board members prior to the hearing. 

For the above, the Clerk's office requests one electronic file (sent to 
b'os.legislation@sfgov.org) and one hard copy of the documentation for distribution. 

. . 

NOTE: If electronic versions of the.documentation are f10t available, please suomit 18 hard 
copies of the materials to the Clerk's Office for distribution. If you are ~nab le to make the 
deadlines prescribed above, it is your responsibil!ty to ensure that all .parties receive · 
copies of the materials. 
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40 Bernal l:leights Boulevard - Tentative Map Appeal 
September 8, 2015 
Page2 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact John Carroll, Legislative Clerk, at 
(415) 554-444?. 

Sincerely, 

~~-~ 
Angela Calvillo 
Clerk of the Board 

c: 
Project Contact, Peggy Berlese 
Jon Givner, Deputy City Attorney 
Kate Stacy, Deputy City Attorney 
Marlena Byrne, Deputy City Attorney 
John Malamut, Deputy City Attorney 
Mohammed Nuru, Director, Public Works 
Jerry Sanguinetti, Public Works-Bureau of Street Use and Mapping 
Fuad Sweiss, City Engineer, Public Works 
Bruce Storrs, Public Works 
Scott Sanchez, Zoning Administrator, Planning Department 
Sarah Jones, Planning Department 
AnMarie Rodgers, Planning Department 
Aaron Starr, Planning Department 

~· 
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Introduction Form 
By a Member of the Board of Supervisors or the Mayor 

Time stamp 

I hereby submit the following item for introduction (select only one): or meeting date 

D 1. For reference to Committee. (An Ordinance, Resolution, Motion, or Charter Amendment) 

D 2. Request for next printed agenda ·Without Reference to Committee. 

~ 3. Request for hearing on a subject matter at Committee. 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

4. Request for letter beginning "Supervisor inquires" 
'------------------~ 

5. City Attorney request. 

6. Call File No. ._I _______ __,j from Committee. 

7. Budget Analyst request_(attach written motion). 

8. Substitute Legislation File No. I._ _____ ~ 

9. Reactivate File No . ._I _____ ~ 
D 10. Question(s) submitted for Mayoral Appearance before the BOS on 

~~------~----~ 

~lease check the appropriate boxes. The proposed legislation should be forwarded to the following: 
· D Small Business Commission D Y oµth Commission D Ethics Commission 

D Planning Commission D Building Inspection Commission . 

fote: For the Imperative Agenda (a resolution not on the printed agenda), use a Imperative Form. 

;ponsor(s): 

Clerk of the Board 

subject: 

Public Hearing - Appeal of Tentative Map - 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard 

fhe text is listed below or attached: 

Hearing of persons interested in or objecting to the decision of Publfo Works dated August 24, 2015, approving a 
proposed 4-lot subdivision located at 40 Bernal Heights Boulevard, Assessor's Block No. 5640, Lot No. 010; and 
making environmental findings under the California Environmental Quality Act. (District 9) (Appellant Betsy 
Brown and Chris Witteman, on behalf of Bernal/Powhattan Neighbors) (Filed September 3, 2015). 

Signature of Sponsoring Supervisor:~ ~ ~~ 

For Clerk's Use Only: 
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